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To Our Shareholders:

We will long remember the global economic crisis of

2008 and the impact it had on businesses throughout

the United States. Perhaps more than anything slse, the
challenges we faced underscore the importance of staying
true to fundamental operating principles and a business
model that is straightforward.

We did exactly that in 2009. Our strategy is focused
on maximizing shareholder value by maintaining a long-
term focus on the fundamentals of our business. Despite
the economic pressures we faced throughout the year, we

remained commitied to that strategy, and the results of our

approach are evident in our accomplishments for the year.

John W, Somerhalder §
Chairnan, President and Chief Executive Officer

2009 Performance Highlights

Financial Results

It 2009, we achieved record earnings of $2.88 per shars (difuted), compared with earnings of
$2.84 per share (diluted) in 2008. Each of our business segments performed well and contributed
to these strong results, Our utility businesses overcame substantial challenges 1o customer growth
throughout the year by staying focused on conirolling discretionary expenses and on improving
business processes. Our non-utility businesses continued to expand thelr coniribution to our
business through disciptined growth in strategic areas and capitalizing on market opportunities.

We paid cash dividends of $1.72 per share in 2008, including a 2.4 percent dividend increase
announced in February 2008, In February 2010, our Board of Directors approved a 2.3 percent
dividend increase, to an indicated annuat rate of $1.76 per share. We realize the importance to
our shareholders of maintaining a stable dividend, particularly during periods of uncertainty in the
financial markets,

For the fiscal year 2009, AGL Resources generated total shareholder return of 23 percent,
outperforming our indusiry peer group of natural gas utility companies.

We were able to successfully navigate the challenges of weakness in the capifal and credit
markets throughout the year. We maintained our strong balance sheet and credit ratings, and had
ampie liquidity to support our business. We also continued to have good access to the capital
markets, as evidenced by our issuance of $300 million of 10-year senior notes in August 2009

at a very favorable rate of 5.256 percent.



Operating Highlights

In 2009, we achieved a number of important goals that we believe position our business
for future success. We made sighificant progress-on each of our large capital projects, we made
additional invesiments in the business that will contribute to our growth and we continued our
focus on achieving reasonable regulatory outcomes for our utility businesses.

To enhance the reliability of our

Financial Highlights distribution system in Virginia, we completed

in mdiions, i i i i

erjccepf;ershare arnounts and market price 2009 2008 Change our Hampton Roads CrOSSIng p'pe“ne prjeCt,

Operating revenues $2,317 52800 (17%) cannscting the northern and southern parts of

Net income aftributable to our system. This project is now in commercial
AGL Resources Inc, $ 222 § 217 2%

Earnings per common share

operation and providing enhanced reliability

and diversity of supply to our customers.

attributable to AGL Resources Inc.
common shareholders We also completed construction on our

Basic
Diluted

$ 289 § 2.85 1%

$ 288 § 284 106 Magnolia pipeiine project in Georgia, with
u A (¢]

commercial operation beginning in November

Dividends declared
per common sharg $ 1.72 ¢ 1.68 29 of 2008, This F}rOJECt Qrﬂ\!ide$ the abi%ity to

Market capitafization {year end) $2,826 $2411  17% transport natural gas from the Elba Island

Market price {year eng, closing) $36.47 $31.35 16%

Totat assets $7.074 $6,71C 5%

liquefied natural gas (LNG} terminal into some
of our key Georgia markets, particularly the

metro Atlanta region, and shouid be an

Total shareholder return 23% {12)%

especially valuable source of supply during
peak demand periods.

We made significant progress during the year on construction of our Golden Triangle Storage
project in Texas. The long-term market fundamentals support the need for additional high-
defiverability natural gas storage in the Gulf Coast region. We initially are building two storage
caverns deep inside the Spindletop salt dome, which will add 12 billion cubic feet (Bef) of working
gas capacity, with the potential to expand the facility to 38 Bef of working gas capacity by buitding
three additional caverns in the future and enlarging the first two caverns. We anticipate putting the
first cavern into commercial operation during the second half of 2010,

In 2G09, we reached an agreement with Piedmont Natural Gas, cur partner in the SouthStar
Energy Services joint venture, to increase our ownership interest in the partnership from 70 percent
to 85 percent. The $58 million purchase closed in early 2010 and should position us to benefit from
future growth in this business.

We continued to execute on our requiatory strategy in 2009, and it remains one of our highest
priotities in 2010. The goal of that strategy is to enhance our ability to achieve our autherized return
levels in each of our utility jurisdictions and to minimize or eliminate regulatory lag associated with

the recovery of prudently incurred expenses and capital investments in the business.



In Georgia, we received regulatory approval for a new infrastructure investment program,
known as STRIDE (Strategic infrastructure Development and Enhancement}. Implementation of
this 10-year, $400 million program is critical to meating future demand on our system and ensuring
the highest system reliability and integrity, particularly in outlying areas of the metro Atlanta region
and during peak demand periods. The Georgia Public Service Commission has approved the first
phase of the program, allowing us to invest approximately $221 million over a three-year period.

We resolved our rate case in New Jersey, resulting in a 33 million base rate increase. We
expect to file our general rate case in Georgia, our largest franchise, during the second guarter of
2010. We also have filed for a modest increase in Tennessee, and expect a decision in that case
during 2010.

Industry Fundamentals

As the cleanest-burning fossi| fuel, natural gas is playing an increasingly important role in
America’s future as our nation moves toward a low-carbon energy sirategy.

Recent discoveries of natural gas in shale formations throughout the United States, combined
with advancements in drilling and extraction technologies, have dramatically increased the long-
term domestic supply of natural gas. This expanded supply of natural gas supports America’s geal
of energy independence by further reducing our reliance on foreign energy imports.

Natural gas can piay a vital role in reducing greenhouse gas emissions and is needed in
combination with renewable and intermittent supply scurces such as wind and solar. We believe
natural gas will be criticat to our country’s energy future for many years to come.

We are excited about the long-term fundamentals of our business and about being part of
an industry that is so vital to the future economic growth of our country. Qur commitment to you,
our shareholders, is that we will remain focused on executing on the same long-term strategy that
contributed to our success this past year. On behalf of our more than 2,400 employees, we truly

appreciate your invesiment and your continued confidence in our company.

Sincerely,
y

‘. John W, Somerhalder ||
Chairman, President and Chief Executive Officer

February 26, 2010






Air. Water. Earth. Fire. These classic elements are the fundamenial,

essential materials of all life. Our continued existence is dependent on each.

In the world of energy, natural gas is elemental to America. it uniguely
answers the concerns of Americans for an energy solution — the flame that
fuels our way of life — in a manner that respects the alr, water and earth
around us, With its singular environmental and efficiency properties, this
abundant, domestic resource is Mother Nature’s best solution for meeting

the energy needs of today’s generation and of those o come.
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In 2009, the American public and our legislaiors continued to wrestle with answers for our nation’s
energy needs. it's a crucial challenge: How will we continue to meet the energy needs of our present
generation while securing the energy needs of future generations in a manner that respects the
world around us?

Today, one elemental solution stands out: natural gas.

While the reasons are many, perhaps the most compelling is that natural gas is available here
and now to help address America’s environmental, energy and economic goals.

In terms of air quality, natural gas is the cleanest-burning fossil fuel — by far. Compared with
coal, America’s leading source of electric generation, natural gas produces 44 percent less carbon
emissions. Versus oil, natural gas provides energy for home heating with 27 percent less carbon
emissions. And compared with propane, natural gas offers the same energy for healing, cooking

and transportation with 16 percent less carbon emissions?

100-vear supply — and growing

Domestically abundant natural gas is a readily available solution for energy independence. In
the past decade, proven U.S. natural gas reserves have increased approximately 45 percent to more
than 244 trillion cubic feet. Beyond that — thanks to the development of new extraction technologies
for natural gas shales — America now has an estimated 100 years® worth of supply at current
consumption levels.

Just as important, natural gas is the ideal partner for alternative energy sources like solar and
wind, thanks to its ability to provide around-the-clock backup energy when the wind doesn't blow
or the sun doesn't shine.

Finally, a growing natural gas industry has demonstrated its ability to contribute to America’s
sconomic health, with direct employment rising from 500,000 jobs in 2008 to 600,000 in 2008.
Increased exploration and development, as well as

.5, Natural Gas Supplies*
construction and maintenance of pipelines, storage facilities in teitior culsic fest

and other infrastructure, would result in even more jobs,

additional revenues and tax payments that would contribute to
the country’s ecenomic health.

At AGL Resources, we believe that clean-burning,
domestically abundant natural gas is the answer for today
and tomorrow, and we are using more than 150 years of
experience in this business to ensure that natural gas is the
elemental fuel of choice for our customers, our investors

and our planet.

With 100 vears worth of

domestic reserves, natural Qs
2008 2007 2008 200G 2010

iz & readily avallable solution ©
e ) ¢ Unproven shale gas & other uriconventional
reduce America’s refiance on . , .
¢ Unproven conventional lincluding Alaskal

impested energy. S Proven reserves (s types & focabions)

“ndustry statistics are based on information from the American Gas Association, “U.S. Enargy Information Agministration
America’s Naturat Gas Alliance and the U.S. Department of Energy.
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With a century's worth of domestic natural gas reserves, continued investment in America’s natural
gas infrastructure is elemental as our nation pursues energy independence.

In November 2009, AGL Resources completed the Magnolia pipeline, providing our customers
access to liguefied natural gas imports arriving at the Elba Island terminal near Savannah, Ga. The
pipetine, which provides 83,000 dekatherms of daily capacity to Atlanta Gas Light customers, 1s an
important investment that diversifies our gas supply and serves as a backup scurce for fuel during
hurricane season, when Gulf Coast deliveries can be disrupted.

As 2009 came to a close, wa were putting the finishing touches on the Hampton Roads
Crossing (HRX} pipeline, linking two service areas in Virginia separated by the James River and
Chesapeake Bay. HRX's eco-sensitive construction included complex underwater directional
drilling and what is believed to be a worid record bore for 24~-inch pipe. Today, HRX offers
207,500 dekatherms of additional daily capacity to the region.

We also continued to replace aging pipelines with plastic and coated-steel pipe in Florida,
Georgia, New Jersey and Tennessee. These upgrades to improve safety and refiability bave also
reduced methane emissions — an accomplishment that earned AGL Resources the Environmental

Protection Agency’s Natural Gas STAR Continuing Excellence award in October 2008.

Growing site for storage

At Golden Triangle Storage in Texas, we completed the first year of cavern creation deep in
the Spindietop salt dome and began constructing a compressor station and dual 24-inch pipelines,
Commercial availability of the first cavern is planned for the second half of 2010,

ke our pipeline projects, storage facilities are elemental components of America’s natural gas
infrastructure, Today, they serve as insurance against hurricanes and other events that could impact
production or delivery. In addition, storage during the low-demand summer months ensures ample
supplies are available for the winter heating season. Going forward, the importance of storage
facilities is expected to rise, as extraction from shale significantly increases the supply of natural

gas to the market.

infrastrjoture investments ke
Hamplon Roads Crossing play o

vifal rofe in agsuring the relialbifity

of natural pas.
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At AGL Resources, we responded to the most challenging economy of cur generation by
staying focused on the fundamentals of our business, which enabled us to grow net income
attributable to AGL Resources Inc. from $217 million in 2008 to $222 million in 2009 and increase
diluted earnings per share from $2.84 in 2008 to $2.88 in 2009,

While strict fiscal discipline contributed to much of our success in 2009, at AGL Resources —
even in the toughest times - we also seek new ways to leverage opportunities for continued growth.

This is elemental to good corparate stewardship.

Growing footprint

in July 2008, we entered into an agreement — that went into effect Jan. 1, 2010 - to increase
our ownership stake in SouthStar Energy Services from 70 percent to 85 percent. This investment
should provide ongoing value to our shareholdars as we receive a greater share of profits from sales
to retail customers of Georgia Natural Gas, the largest gas marketer in Georgia with approximately
504,000 end-use customers. SouthSiar also supplies natural gas to customers in Alabama, Florida,
North Carolina, Ohio, South Carolina and Tennessee.

in December 2009, we achieved a major milestone in our proposed expansion of the Jefierson
Island Storage & Hub (JISH) facility: approval by the Louisiana Mineral and Energy Beard of an
operating agreement between JISH and the state. The agreement enables us to pursue the
regutatory approvais needed to construct two additional natural gas storage caverns at the site,
where the two existing caverns have operated safely since entering commercial service in 1694,

On the wholesale side of the gas marketing business, Seguent Energy Management — which
entered 2010 ranked by Platts Gas Daily magazine as the 14th-largest wholesale gas marketer in
North America — continued the expansion of its fooiprint into the western U8, and Canada.

The relentless drive by our employees o create new ways to grow our business ~ in even the
most challenging economic environment - is an elemental part of delivering shareholder value at

AGL Resources.

CGieorgia Natural Gas is the first
gas marketer in Georgia o include

racyoled nafural gas from landiilis

m

s part of fls nalural gas suppiv,
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Throughout 2008, AGEL Resources worked with reguiators whe oversee our local distribution
companies to craft new opportunities to bring additional benefits to the most elemental part of our
business: our customers.

As proponents of a proven rate design called "decoupling,” we are working to break the
traditional link between earnings and the volume of natural gas sold. This rate design separaies
volume from an approved rate of return for providing service and infrastructure, and it befier aligns
the interests of a utility and its customers. In November 2008, Chattancoga Gas filed a rate case
proposal that could make Tennessee the 21st state to approve a rate design that encourages
customers to pursue energy efficiency and conservation of resources while aiso affording the utility

the ability to earn its authorized rate of return,

SMART idea

In 2009, we launched regulator-approved energySMART programs in Virginia and New Jersey.
Under these programs, Virginia Natural Gas and Elizabethtiown Gas educate customers about energy
efficiency and conservation. The programs also provide incentives to purchase high-efficiency
natural gas-fueled equipment, helping customers reduce their energy bills.

Cur customer-focusad regulatory strategy also pursued rate-based cost recovery of
infrastructure investments.

n April 2009, Elizabethtown Gas received approval from New Jersey regulators to accelerate
our plan to invest $60 million in pipeline replacement over a period extending to 2011. Beyond
improving the reliability of our natural gas system and creating opportunities to add customers o our
service, these upgrades support the state's economic stimulus plan by generating local jobs.

in October 2009, Georgia regulators approved a multi-year system upgrade to improve Atlanta
Gas Light's abllity to provide natural gas service on peak demand days, Called STRIDE (Strategic
Infrastructure Development and Enhancement), one component of the program represents an
investment of approximately $178 million in metropolitan Atlanta, where the growing population
now extends beyond much of our inferstate supply points and high-pressure transmission pipeline
system. In January 2010, we received approval of a second component of STRIDE called the
Integrated Customer Growth Program, which enables Atlanta Gas Light fo invest up to $45 million
to serve new cusiomers currently without pipeline access and aliows us o install pipelines to create
new economic development corridors,

In December 2009, we opened a new customer-care call center in New Jersey, We expect the
local call center will improve scheduling and service call efficiency for Elizabethtown Gas customers,

During 2008, Americans witnessed a steady stream of media coverage touting new discoveries
and expanding opportunities for natural gas, bringing an increased public awareness to our
business. Through customer-focused regulatory strategies and infrastructure investments, we are
ensuring customers have ready access 1o America's most abundant, environmentalty friendly fuel ...

today and fomorrow,

energy SMART

Save Money And Resources Today
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AGL Resources and its subsidiaries have a long-standing commitment to serve the commuunities
where we live and work,

Our efforts are guided by a corporate-wide philosophy that there is more than a good way o
do businsess; there is a right way. Our employees embrace the belief that donating tire and effort is

often a more meaningful contribution than simply writing a check,

L eading by example

In 2009, our employess held many leadership positions in community organizations, including
serving as the Atlanta-area chair for the local United Way and Habitat for Humanity organizations,
In Texas, Sequent Energy Management expanded iis support of the Juvenile Diabetes Research
Foundation by serving as corporate chair of the local Walk to Cure Diabetes.

While we do not pursue good works in anficipation of rewards, we are honored that
Elizabethtown Gas employees mentoring at-risk students received the 2009 Award for Excellence
for Public Service from the New Jersey Business & Industry Association. The award recognizes
leadership in finding solutions to pressing social or economic problems.

We are similarly proud of Atlanta Gas Light’s partnership with Cool Girls, Inc. — an eary-
intervention program dedicated to the empowerment of at-risk girls. A rewarding experience in its
own right, the cutreach efforts also earned our employees the 2009 Community Impact Award from
the Corporate Volunteer Council of Atlanta.

Across our businesses, similar stories evolved in 2009: the manning of energy-assistance
phone banks by Chattanooga Gas employees to help those unable to afford winter heating ...
the Palar Plunge, in which Virginia Natural Gas employees brave the frigid Atlantic Ocean annually
in February io raise money for Special Olympics ... Jefferson Island Sterage & Hub's support of a
high school near the Louisiana facility that will enable the school to purchase new uniforms and grow
its award-winning marching band ... and a coastal beach clean-up program that allows Florida City
Gas employees to demenstrate their commitment to the environment,

It’s that genuine spirit of giving and involvement exhibited by our employees that helped
AGL Resources gain recognition as one of the top-10 places to work in Atlanta in 2009 by
the Atlanta Business Chronicle.

Employess embody AGL Resources’

fong-time involvement with Habital

for Humaniiy.



AGL Resources’ Operations at a Glance

We are an energy sarvices holding company,
headquartered in Atianta. Qur principal operations
are described below.

Distribution Operations

Atlanta Gas Light provides natural gas dslivery
service to approximately 1.6 million residential,
commercial and industrial end-use customers
throughout Georgia.

Chattanooga Gas provides natural gas service to
approximately 62,000 residential, commercial and

~Industrial customers in Hamilton County and

Bradley County, Tennessee.

Elizabethtown Gas provides natural gas service t¢
approximately 273,000 residential, commercial and
industrial customers in northwestern and east-
central New Jersey.

Elkton Gas provides natural gas service to
approximately 6,000 residential, commercial and
industrial customers in northeastern Maryland.

Florida City Gas provides natural gas service to
approximately 103,000 residential, commercial and
industrial customers in southeastern and east-
central Florida.

Virginia Natural Gas provides natural gas service to
approximately 273,000 residential, commercial and
industrial customers in southeastern Virginia.

Retail Energy Operations

SouthStar Energy Services is a joint venture
operating in Georgia under the trade name Georgia
Natural Gas. The business supplies natural gas to
approximately 504,000 retail and commercial
customers in Georgia, approximately 103,000 end-
use customers in Ohio and Florida and to more
than 300 interruptible customers throughout the
southeastern United States.

Whoiesale Services

Sequent Energy Management, our Houston-
based subsidiary, provides customers throughout
the United States and in Canada with the ability
to optimize their natural gas asset portfolio and
increase cost effectiveness from wellhead to
burner tip. Services include natural gas asset
management, producer and storage w
services, full-requiremenis supply and
peaking needs,

Energy Investments

Jefferson Island Storage & Hub operates
a high-deliverability natural gas storage
faciiity in Louisiana. The facility consists
of two salt-dome storage caverns with
1G Bef of total capacity and approximately
7 Bef of working gas capacity.

Golden Triangle Storage is bullding a high-
deliverability natural gas storage facility in Texas.
The project initially will consist of two underground
salt-dome storage caverns that will hold
approximately 18 Bef of total capacity and
approximately 12 Bef of working gas capacity.

AGL Networks is a carrier-neutral provider that
leases telecommunications fiber to a variety of
customers in the Atlanta, Phoenix and Charlotte
metropolitan areas, and has a small presence in
other cities in the United States. AGL Networks
provides conduit and dark fiber to its customers
under long-term lease arrangements, as well as
telecommunications construction services.
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John W. Somerhalder It 34
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Lead Director
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Under our bylaws, any director who aftains his or her 75th birthday, shall thereafter, upon completion of the term for which he or she was elected,
cease to be an active director. The terms of service for D. Raymond Riddle and Felker W. Ward, Jr. expire at the 2010 annual mesting because
they each have attained their 75th birthday. The dedication, insight and extraordinary service of these gentlemen are greatly appreciated.
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Glossary of Key Terms

AGL Capital AGL Capital Corperation

AGL Networks  AGL Networks, LLD

Atlanta Gas Light  Atlanta Gas Light Company
Bef Dillon cubic feet

Chattanooga Gas Chattanocga Gas Company

Credit Facility $1 bilion credit agresment of AGL Capital

EBIT Farnngs before interest and taxes, a non-GAARP measure
that inclutes operating income and cther iIncome and exclucas
financing costs, ncluding interast and debt and inCome 1ax expense
aach of which we evaluate on & consolidated level, as an ndicator
of our cperating performance, TOIT should not be considerad an
alternative 1o, or maore meaningful than, sarmings before ncoms
taxes, of net income attributable 1o AGL Resowces Inc. as
determined in accordancea with GAAP

ERC Environmental remedistion costs associated with our
distripution operations segment which are recoverabie through
rates mechanisms

FASB Financiat Accounting Standards Board
FERC Federal Energy Regulatory Commission
Fitch Fitch Ratings

Florida Commission Florics Public Service Commission, the
state regulatory agency for Florida Cily Gas.

GAAP  Accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States of America

Georgia Commission (Georgie Public Service Comimission, the
state regulatory agency for Atlarta Gas Light

GNG CGeorgia Natural Gas, the name under which SouthStar
dues business in Georgia
Golden Triangle Storage Golden Triangle Storage, inc.

Heating Degree Bays A measure of the effects of weather on

our businesses, calcuiated when the average daily actual tempera- -

tures are less than a baseline temperature of 65 degrees Fahrenheil.
Heating Season The pericd from November 1o March when
natural gas usage and operaling revenues are generally higher
pecause more customers are cornecied to ouwr distribution
systerns when weather is colder

Henry Hub A major inferconnection poird of natura gas pipelines
in Erath, Louisiarna where NYMEX natural gas future contracts
are priced.

Jefferson Island  Jeffarson Island Storage & Hub, LLC

LNG  Liguefied natural gas
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LOCOM Lower of weighted average cost or current market price
Magnolia Magnclia Entercrizse Holdings. Inc.

Maryland Commission Maryland Public Service Commission,
the state regulatory agency for Elkton Gas.

Marketers Marketers selling retail natural gas in Georgia and
certificated by the Georgia Commission

Mcef  Million cubic feet

MGP Manufactured gas plant

Moody’s Moody's Investors Service

New Jersey BPU New Jersey Board of Public Utllities, the state
regutatory agency for Elizabethiown Gas.

NYMEX New York Mercantile Exchange, Inc.

QCl  Other comprehensive income

Operating margin A measuwre of mcome, calculated as
operating revenues minus cost of gas, that excludes operation and
maintenance expense, depreciation and amortization, taxes other
than income taxes, and the gain or loss on the sale of our assets;
these items are included in our calculation of operating Income as
reflected in owr consclidated statements of income. Operating
margin should not be considered an alternatve 1o, or more
meaningful than. operating income as determined in accordance
with GAAP

QTC  Ovarihe-counter
Piedmont Piedmont Natural Gas

Pivotal Utility  Pivotal Utility Haldings, Inc,, doing business as
Elizabethtown Gas, Elkton Gas and Florida City Gas

PPE&E Property, plant and equipment

S&P Standard & Poor’s Ratings Services
SEC Securlties and Exchange Commizsion
Sequent Seguent Energy Management, LI
SouthStar SouthStar Energy Services LLC

Tennessee Authority Tennessee Regulatory Authority, the state
reguiatory agency for Chattancoga Gas.

VaR Value at risk is defined as the maximum poiential loss in
portfolio value over a spedified time period that is not expected to
be excesded within a given degree of probabllity
Virginia Natural Gas Virginia Natural Gas, Inc.

Virginia Commission  Virginia State Corporation Comimession,
the state regulatory agency for Virginia Natural Gas,
WACOG Weighted average cost of goods

WHNA  Weather normalization agjustment
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Part !

ftem 1. Business
Nature of OQur Business

Unfess the context requires otherwise, references to “we” “us”
“our,” the "company” and "AGL Resources” are infended to mean
consoficated AGL Resources Inc. and i subsidiaries.

We are an energy senvices holding company whose principal
business is the distribution of netural gas in six states - Florda,
Georgiz, Marviand, New Jersey, Tennessee and Virginia. Qur six
utilities serve aporoximately 2.3 miflion end-use customers, We are
also involved in several related and complementary businesses,
including retait natural gas marketing to end-use cusiomers primariy
in Georglg; natural gas asset management and related logistics
activities for each of our utllities as well as for ronaffiliated
companies; natural gas storage arbitrage and related activities; and
tha development and operation of high-celiverability natural gas
storage assets. We also own and operate a small telecommun-
ications business that constructs and operates condult and fiber
infrastructure within select metropolitan areas. We manage these
businesses through four operating segmenis and a non operaling
corporate segment.

Distribution Operations

Cur distribution operations segment Is the largest component of our
business and Inchudes six natural gas local distribution ulilfties, These
utiities construct, manage and maintain intrastate natural gas
pipelines and distribution faciities and include:

= Aflanta Gas Light in Georgla

= Chattanooga Gas in Tennessee

« Clizabethtown Gas in New Jersey
* Elkton (as in Marvland

& Forida City Gas in Florida

e Virginia Natural Gas in Virginia

Regulatory Planning Each utility cperates subject to regulations
of the state regulatory agencies in ifs servce territortes with respect
to rates charged {o our customers, maintenance of accounting
records and various service and safety matiers, Rates charged o
our customers vary according to customer class (residential,
commercial or indusirial) and rate jurediction. Rates are set at levels
nat generally should allow recovery of all prudently incurred costs,
including a returm on rate base suficient to pay interest on debt and
provide & reasonable return for our sharshclders. Rate base
generally consists of the original cost of utility plant in senvice,
working capital and ceriain other assets; less accumulated
depreciation ot utility plant in service and net deferred income tax
lishilites, and may inciude cartain other additions or deductions,
For our largest utiity, Atlanta Gas Light, the natural gas market
was deregulated in 1997, Prior to this, Atlanta Gas Light was the

[
[

supphier and seller of natural gas 1o 18 customers, Today, Marketers
sell natural gas o end-use customers in Georgia and handle
customer billing functions. The Marketers file helr rates montbly with
the Georgia Commission, Atlanta Gas Light's role includes:

s distributing natural gas for Marketers

« constructing, operating and maintaining the gas system infra-
siructure, including responding fo customer service calis and leaks

» reading meters and maintaining underlying customer premise
irformation for Marketers

« planning and contracting for capacity on interslate transporiation
and slorage systems

Atlanta Gas Light recognizes revenue under a straight-fixed-
variable rate design whereby it charges rates to its customers based
primarify on monthily fixed charges that are perlodically adiusted. The
Marketers bill these charges directly io thelr customers. This
mechanism minimizes the seasonality of Atlants Gas Light's
ravenuas since the monthly fixed charge is not volumetnic or diractly
waaiher dependent. However, weather indirectly influences the
number of customers that have active accounts during the heating
season, and this has a seasonal impaci on Atlanta Gas Light's
revenues since generadly more customers are connected in periods
of colder weather than in periods of warmer wezather,

All of our utitities, excluding Atlanta Gas Light, are authorized to
use a natural gas cost recovery mechanism that allows them to
adiust their ratas to refiect changes in the wholesale cost of naturad
gas and to ensure they recover 100% of the costs incuwred in
purchasing gas for their customers. Since Atlanta Gas Light does
not sell natural gas directly 1o its end-use custorners, it doas not
need or utifize a natural gas cost recovery mechanism.,

Regulatory Agreements Over the past several vears ol utliities
have been fliiling thelr long-term commitmients 1o rate freezes,
which began expiring in 2009, In 2009 we filed rate cases for
Elizabethtown Gas and Chattanoogs Gas which included reforms
that encowrage congsenvaticn and “decoupling.” In traditicnal rate
cesigns, our ulilites’ recovery of a significant portion of thair fixed
customer senvice costs is tied 10 assumed natural gas volumes used
by our custorners. We befleve separating, or decoupling. the
recovery of these fixed costs from the natural gas deliveries will slign
the nterests of our customers and utilities by encouraging energy
conservation and ensuring stable returns for our shareholders.

in March 2009, Elizabethtown Gas filed & rate case requesting
an annual increase to base rates of $25 million, The filing also
includied energy conservation programs and a proposed Efficiency
Usage and Adiustment mechanism (EUA), which is a form of decou-
pling. In June 2008, and in accordance with the New Jersey rate
case rules that require the filing of quartedy updates t¢ a case, we
filed & revised request for a $17 milion annual increase to base rates.
The prirary driver of the reduced request was a ravision 1o depre-
ciation rates.
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In Decamber 2008, the New Jersey BPU approved an agresment with Elizabethtown Gas regarding #s base rate filing and the energy
conservalion progrars. Under the terms of the agreemen:, Elizabethiown Gas received an increase in base rates which equates to approxi-
mately $3 milion on an annual basis, Additionatly, Elizebethtown Gas will reduce its overalt composite depresiation rate from 3.20% 1o 2.68%,
which equaies 1o an annual reduction in depreciation expensas of aporoximately 5 million. The agreement includes a two-year freeza on base
rates except as ray be adustad in the second phase of our rate case, In which the New Jersey BPU will corsider, among other things, our
request for the ELIA,

in November 2009, Chatianooga Gas filed a rate case with the Tennessee Authority requesting an annual increase o base rates of approsx-
imatety $3 miflion, The rate case proposal includes energy-efficiency and conservation programs, as well as a mechanism to recover lost
reverue resulting from these programs. A decision by the Tennessee Authority is expected in the second guarter of 2010,

The following table provides reguiatory information for our largest utilities,

Adfarta Gas Ligt™  Eizebettaowe Gas  Veginia Natura Gas

Florida (ity Gas Chattanonga Gas

Authorized return on rate base™ 8.53% 7.64% 8,24% 7.36% 7.88%
Estimated 2008 return on rate base®” 7.39% 8.55% 8.80% 4.47% 6.86%
Authorized return on equity™ 10.90% 10.30% 10.80% 11.25% 10.20%
Estimated 2008 return on equity™™ 8.02% 2.02% 10.68% 4.81% 7.90%
Authorized rate base % of equity™ 47 9%, 47 5% 52.4% 36.8% 44.8%
Rate base inciuded in 2008 return

on equity {in millionsy ™™ 31,323 %448 $44p $1E3 3105
Ferformance basad rates” ‘ v
Weather normalization™ v v "4
Decoupled or straight-fixed variable rafes™ v v

(4 2010 N/A
refurs on equity, and perceriage Of equiy wére those suthonzed as of December 31, 20048,
ya e nol necessmily corsistent wilh SAAP returs,

Current rades effective until™ Q3 2011 NFA G2 2010

g authiorized refurn on rale Ses

imates based of principiss £0;

iz City Gas includes the:
imated based on 15-mae
Frwolves fozen rates for & o
Frwolves regulatory mechanisms

e Florida Commregsion n Decamber 2007, n &8 rate Dase, relurn on rate base shd rstun on souity caiouiations,

These mechanisms are designed 10 help stapiize operating resulls by hcrsasing tage rate amourts charged 10 customers witsn weather iz warmer than nommal and decreasng amedns charged when weather

is colder than narmal,

®Subject t© change.
iy P0G, Atlanta
agread to postpone the fing untlh Apdl 1. 2010, bt ro ater than June 3, 2630,

Competition and Customer Demand All of our utilities face
competition from other energy products. Our principal competition is
from electric utidities and ol and propane providers serving the
residential and cormmercial markets throughout our service areas and
the potentlal displacement or replecement of natural gas appliances
with gleciric appiiances. The primary competitive factors are the
prices for competing sources of energy as compared to natural
gas and the desirability of natural gas heating versus alternative
heating sources.

Competition for space heating and general household and
smalt commercial energy needs generally occurs at the initial
instalistion phase when the customer or builder makes decisions as
to which types of equipment to install. Customers generally continue
to use the chosen energy source for the e of the equipment,
Customer demand for nalural gas could be affected by numerous
factors, including:

e changss in the availabifity or price of natural gas and cother forms
of energy
@ general economic conditions

coupled and siraight-fixed variable rae designs allow for he recovery of fixedd CuSIQMEr Service COSIS Separately Tom assumed natlral gas volumes used By Our Cusiomers.

ol filet 2 euest with the Georgia Tammission 1 postpons s scheduled fiing of & rate case in Novernber 2000, This request was appeovar by the Georgle Commission, which

* cnergy conservation

« legislaton and regulations

© the capablity to convert from natural gas to akernative fuels
» waather

e new commercia construction and

* new housing starts.

Due to the current general econemic downturn and the decline
in the housing markets in the areas we serve, customer growth
declined slightly in our distribution operations segment in 2009
relative 10 2008, a trend we expect 1o continue through 2010
For the year ended December 371, 2009, our year-over-year
consolidated utllity customer growth rate was slighily negative or
0.3)%. compared to 0.1% positive growth for 2008, We anticipate
overall customer growth in 2010 to be flat 1o negative, primarily as
a result of cominued slow growth in the residentlal housing markets
throughcut most of our service territories and the effects of a waak
sconomy on our commercial and industrial customers. in addition,
we confinue to experience some customer loss because of

2
Lo
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competition from aternative fust sources, including incentives offered
oy the fooat slectric utilities 1o swilch to electric allernatives.

The weak economy is expected 10 coniinue 0 1MpAct a
significantly larger portion of consumer household incomes during
the current winter heating ssason. However, natural gas prices and
the WACOG of cur natural gas inventories have declined significantly
since last year, which: 1s expecisd to resull in lower average customer
Bills and no significant increases in owr bad debt expenses,

We work with regulaiors and state agencies in each of our
wrischictions 1o educate customers throughout the year about energy
costs in advance of the winter heating season, and to ensure that
those customers qualifying for the Low Income Home Energy
Assigtance Program and other similar programs receive any needesd
assistance and we expect 1o continue this focus tor the foresesable
future, We have alsc worked with the Virginia Commission and the
New Jersey BPU during 2009 10 launch energySMART (Save Money
and Resources Today) programs in Virginia and New Jersey 1o
educate our customers about energy efficiency and conservation
and 1o provide rebates and other incentives for the purchase of high-
efficiency natural gas-fueied equipment.

We continue 1o use a vanety of targeted marketing programs
to attract new customers and to retain existing customers, These
effors include working to add residerdial customers, muitifamily
complexes and commercial customers who use natural gas for
purposes other than space hesting, as well as evaluating and
leunching new programs, products and services to enhance
customer growth and operating revenues. in addition, we partner
with numercus entities 1o market the benefils of natural gas
appliances and to identify potential retention options early in the
process for those cugtomers whe might consider converiing to
alternative fuels,

Capital Projects in October 2009, Allanta Gas Light recelved
approval from the Georgia Commission for the Strategic
Infrastructure Development and knhancement (STRIDE) program.
The Georgia Commission's approval included the program's inftial
hree years” expendifures, astimatec at approximately $178 million.
The purpose of STRIDE is to upgrade Atlanta Gas Light's distribu-
tion systern and liguefied natural gas faciliies in Georgia, improve its
aystem rellabllity, and create a platiorm to meet operational flexicil-
ity needs and forecasted growth, Under the program, Atlanta Gas
Light would be reguired 1o file a ten-year mfrastructure plan every
three years for review and approval by the Georgla Commission.
The program merges with Allanta Gas Light's existing pipefine
replacement program, which was inftiated in 1998 and is scheduled
to end in December 2013, In January 201G, the Georgia
Commission approved up to an additional $45 milion of expendi-
tures under the STRIDE program to extend Aflandz CGas Light's
pipeline facilities 1o serve customers without pipeline access and
create new economic development.

in Apri 2009, the New Jersey BPU approved an accelerated
$60 mition enhanced infrastructure program for Elizabethtown Gas

which started this year and s scheduled o be completed in 2011,
This program was created in response to the New Jersey Governor’s
reauest for uiliities (o assist in the economic recovery by increasing
infrastructure investmants, A regulatory cost recovery mechanism
will be established with estimated rates put inte effect at the begin-
ning of each year. At the end of the program the regulaiory cost
recovery mechanism will De trugd-up and any remaining costs not
presdously collected will be included in base rates. Elizabsathtown
Gas expects that approximately $38 million in capital expenditures
for this program will occur in 20106,

In November 2008, we completed our 343 milion Magnolia
pipetine oroject In Georgla that will enable us to diversify our sources
of natural gas through more access to natural gas supplies from
Southern Natural Gas’ Elba Island NG terminal located con
Georgla's Alantic coast near Savannah, This project should provide
increased refiahility of service in the event that supplies coming from
the Guif Coast are disrupted.

Collective Bargaining Agreements The foliowing table provides
information abou! cur natural gas wiilities® collective bargaining
agreermnents. These agreements represent approximately 12% of our

total employess,

Curkiract

# of Employees

Virginia Natural Gas
international Brotherhood of

Electrical Workers {Local No, 50} 125 May 2010
Elizabethtown Gas

Utiiity Workers Linion of America

{Local No. 424) 168 Nowv. 2011

Total 293

Retail Energy Operations
Our retail energy operations segment consists of SouthStar, a joint
venture currerdly owned 85% by our subsidiary, Georgia Natural Gas
Company, and 18% by Piedmont, SouthStar markets natural gas
and related services under the trade name Georgia Natural Gas to
retail custorners on an urregulated basis, primarily in Georgia as wed
as Ohic and Florida. In addition, SouthStar markets gas to larger
commercial and industrial customers in Alabama, Tennessee, North
Carclina, South Carolina and Georgia. Based on its market share,
SouthStar is the largest Marketer of natural gas in Georgia, with
average customers in excess of 500,000 over the last three vears,
Prior to January 1, 2010, we owned a V0% interest in
SouthStar and Pledment owned 30%. However, in July 2008, we
ertered into an amended ioint venture agreement with Pledmont
pursuant to wihich we purchased an additional 15% ownershio
interest for $58 million, effective danuary 1, 2010, thus increasing
our nterest to 85%. This purchase will affect our consolidated
starements of financial position, but will not resull in a gain or loss on
our consolidated statements of income. Prior to the effectiveness



of our ownership increase, SouthStars eamings for customers n
Georgia were alloczted 75% o us and 25% o Fiedmoent, while its
earnings for customers in Chic and Florida were allocated 70% o
us and 30% to Pleamaont. Farnings are now allocated entirely in
accordance with the ownership interests. We have no contractual
rights (¢ acquire Pledmont’s remaining 15% ownership interests.
The amended agreement was approved by the Georgia
Commission in October 2008,

SouthStar is governed by an executive committes, which ig
cornprised of six members, three representatives from AGL. Hesources
and three from Pledmont. Under a joint venture agresment, all
significant management decisions require the unanimous approval of
the SouthStar executive committee; accordingly, cur 85% financial
interest is considersd 10 be noncontroling. We record the earmings
aliocated fo Fiedmont ag & noncontrofling interest in our consolidated
staternents of income, and we record Fiedmont's portion of
SouthStar's capital as a noncontroling miterest in our consdlidated
statements of financial position.

SouthSiar’s operations are sensitive to seasonal weather,
natural gas prices, customer growth and consumption patterns
similar fo those affecting our wtility operations. ScuthSiar's retail
pricing strategies and the use of a variety of hedging strategies, such
as fuguras, options, swaps, weather derivative instrurmenis and other
risk management tools, nelp to ensure retall customer costs are
covered to mitigate the potential effect of these issues and
commodity price risk on s operations, For more information on
SouthStar's energy marketing and risk management activities,
see tem 7A, “Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market
Risk ~ Cormmodity Price Rigk,”

Competition SouthStar competes with other energy Marketers
to provide natural gas and related services {0 customers in Georgia
and the Southeast, In the Georgia market, SouthStar continues 1o
experience the negative impact to operating marging from
increased competition and an increasges in the number of customers
seeking the most competitive price plans. In addition, simdar to our
distribution operations, SouthSiar faces competition based on
customer preferences for natural gas compared to other enargy
products and the comparative prices of those products. Also, price
velatlity in the wholesele natural gas commodity market has
contributed to an increase in competition for residential and
commercial customers.

SouthSiar continues (o use 2 veriety of targeted marketing
programs 1o attract new customers and 0 retain existing ones.
Despite these efforts we have seen a 4% decling in average
customer count for the year ended December 31, 2009, as
compared to 2008, We belleve this decline reflects some of the
same economic conditdons that have affected our utitity businesses
as well as the more competitive retall pricing market for natural gas
in Georgia,
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SouthStar may alsc be affected by the conservation ang bad
debl trends, butits overall exposure is parfially miigated by the high
credit guality of ScuthStar's customer base, lower wholesale ristural
gas prces in 2008, disciplined collection praclices and the
unreguiated pricing structure in Georgia,

SouthStar continues to expand s business in othar stales
as wall, We are currently focusing these efforts on the Chio and
Florida markets,

Operating margin ScuthStar generates operating margin prima-
rity in three ways, The first is through the sale of natural gas to
restdential. commercial and industrial customers, primarily in
Georgia where SouthStar captures & spread between wholesale
and retall natural gas prices. Tne second i through the coflection
of monthly senvice fees and customer late payment faes,

SouthStar evaluates the combination of these two retall price
components to ensure such pricing is structured to cover related
redal customer costs, such as bad debit expense, customer service
and billing, and lost and unaccounted-for gas, and to provide a
reasonable proft, as well as being competitive to aftract new
customers and maintain market share. SouthStar's operating margin
iz affected by seasonal weather, natural gas prices, customer growih
and their related market share in Georgia, which has historically been
in excess of anproximately 33%, based on customer count.
SouthStar employs strategies to attract and retain & higher credit-
guality customer base. These sirategies resull not only in higher
operating margin, as these customers tend to utifize higher volumes
of natural gas, but also help 1o mitigate bad debt expense due io the
higher credit-quaiity of these customers.

Tre third way SouthStar generates operating margin is through
its commercial operations of optimizing storage and fransportation
asseis and effectively managing commodity risk, which enables
SouthStar to maintain compstitive retall prices and operaling margin,
SouthStar is allocated storage and pipelfine capacity that is used to
supply natural gas to its customers in Georgia. Through hedging
fransactions, SouthStar manages expesures arising from changing
commodily prices using nawral gas storage transactions 1o
captire operating margin from natural gas pricing differences that
occur over fime, SouthStar's risk management policies allow he use
of derivative instruments for hedging and risk management
purposes but prohibit the use of derivative instruments for
speculative purposes.,

Wholesale Services

Our wholesale services segment conssts pnmarily of Sequent, our
subsidiary Invalved In asset management and optimization, storage,
fransportation, producer and peaking services and wholesale
marketing. Seguent seeks gsset optimization opportunities, which
focus on capturing the value from idle or underutiized assets, tyoically
by participating in ransactions to take advantage of pricing differences
between varying markets and time horizons within the natural gas

el
L
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supph. storage and fransportation markets 10 generate earnings.
These activities are generally referred 1o as arbitrage opportunities.

Sequent's profitablity is driven by volatility in the natural gas
marketplace. Volatility arises from a number of factors such as
weather fluctuations or the change in supply of, or demand for,
natural gas in different regions of the country, Sequent sesks 1o
capture value from the price disparty across geographic locatons
and various time horizons ffocation and seasona spreads). In doing
so, Sequent also seeks 1o miligate the risks assodlated with this
volatifity and protect its margin through a variety of risk management
and sconomic hedging activities.

Sequent provides its custorers with natural gas from the major
producing regions and market hubs in the U.S. and Canada.
Sequent acquires transporiation and siorage capacity {0 meet s
delfvery reguiraments and customer obligations i the marketplace.
Sequent's customers benefit from #ts logistics expertise and ability to
deliver natural gas at prices thal are advantageous relative 10 other
allernafives available 1o e cuslomers,

Storage inventory cutlook Seguent’s expected natural gas
withdrawals are presented in the followng table along with the
operating revenues expected at the time of withdrawal. Sequent's
expected operating revenues are net of the estimated impact of
regulatory profit shanng under our asset managerment agreements
and reflect the amounts that are realizable in future periods based on
the inventory withdrawal schedule and forward natural gas prices
at December 31, 2009, A portion of Sequent’s starage inventory is
economically hedged with futures coniracts, which resuits in
reslization of a substantially fixed margin, timing notwithstanding.

Witndrawat schedule Expecied
{ins Bof) — from opeaing
resenvalr storage revenues
WACTGES.55) {in mitions)
2010

First quarter 16 %24

Second guarier 2
Third quarter 1 2
Total 14 530

Expected operating reventies will change in the fulure as
Sequent injects natural gas into inveniory, adjusts its injection and
withdrewal plans in response to changes in market conditions in
future manths and as forward NYMEX prices fluctuate, For more
information on Sequent's energy marketing and risk management
activities, see ftem 7A, "Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures
About Market Risk — Commodity Price Risk,”

Competition Segquent competes for asset management. long-
term supply and seasonal pesking service contracts with other
enerqy wholesalers, offen through a competitive bidding process.

Asset Management Transactions Sequent’s assat management
customers include affliated and nonafiliated utiities, municipal uti-
fties, power generators and largs industrial cusiomers, These cus-
tomers, due to seasonal demand or levels of activity, may have
centracts for ransportation and storage capacity which excesd their
actua requirements. Sequent enters into structured agreernents with
these cusiomers, wherely Secuent, on behall of the cuslomers,
optimizes the fransportation and storage capacity during periods
when customers do not use it for thelr own needs. Seguent may
capture Incremental operating margin through optimization, and
either share marging with the customers or pay them a fixed amount.

Sequent has entered into asset management agresments with
our affiiated utifities that include profit sharing mechanisms and fixed
fes payments that reguire Sequent to make aggregate annual
minimum payments of $14 milion. These agreements are scheduled
1o expire over the next three years. The foflowing table provides
payments made under these agresments during the last three years.

Prefit sharing /7 fee payments

I pitions 2009 P8 2007
Atlarta Gas Light $i6 $9 $ g
tlizabathiown Gas 11 5 8
Chattanooga Gas 4 4 2
Virginia Natural Gas 7 z 7
Florida City Gas 1 1 1

Total $38 $21 325

Transportation Transactions Sequent contracts for natwral gas
transportation capacity and participates in transactions that man-
age the natural gas commeodity and fransportation costs in an
atternpi to achieve the lowest cost 1o serve its various markets,
Sequent seaks 1o optimize this process on a dally basis as market
conditions change by evaluating all the natural gas supplies,
fransportation alternatives and markets o which it has access
and identifying the lowest-cost afternatives to serve the various
markets. This enabies Seguent to capture gecgraphic pricing
differences across these various markets as delivered natural gas
prices change.

As Sequent executes transactions to secure transporiation
capacity, it often enters into forward financial contracts o hadge its
positions and lock-n a margin on future transportstion activities. The
hedging Instruments are derlvatives, and Seguent reflects changes
in the derivatives’ fair value in its reported operating results in the
peried of change, which can be in periods prior to actual utiization
of the transportation capacity.

Producer Services Sequent’s producer senvices business prirarily
focuses on aggregsting natural gas supply from various small and
medium-sized producers jocated throughout the natural gas
production areas of the United States. Sequent provides producers
with certain logistical and risk management services that offer them
attractive options 16 move their supply into the pipeline grid.



Natural Gas Storage Transactions Sequent purchases natural
gas for storage when the current market price it pays plus the cost
for fransporiation and storage is less than the market price it
anticipates it could receive in the future. Seqguent attempls 1o mitigate
substantiaity alf of the commedity price risk associated with s
storage portiolio and uses derivative instruments 1o reducs he risk
associated with future changes in the price of natural gas. Sequent
selfls NYMEX futures contracts or OTC derivatives in forward months
{0 substantially fock in the opearaling revenue i wall Ultimately reaifize
when the stored gas is actually sold.

We view Sequent’s trading marging from two perspectives.
First, we base our somimercial declsions on economic value, which
is defined as the locked-in operating revenue o be reslized at the
time the physical gas is withdrawn from storage and sold and the
derivative instrument used to economically hedige natural gas price
risk on thal physical storage is setlled, Second is the GAAR
reporied value both in periods orior 10 and in the period of physical
witharawal and sale of inventary, The GAAF amaount i affected by
the process of accounting for the financial hedging instruments in
nierim periods at falr value between the period when the ratural
gas is injected intc storage and when # is ultimately withdrawn and
the derivative financial instruments are settied, The change in the
fair value of the hedging instruments is recognized in sarnings in
the period of change and is recorded as urvealized gains of losses.
The actual value, less any interim recognition of gains or fosses on
hedges and adjustments for LOCOM, i realized when the natural
gas is delivered 16 its ultimate customer.

Sequent accounts for natural gas stored in inventory differerithy
than the dervatives Sequent uses to mitigate the commedity price
risk associated with ifs storage porticiio. The nafural gas that Sequent
purchases and injects into storage is accounted for at the lower of
average cost or current market value. The derivatives that Sequent
uses to mitigate commodity price risk are accounted for at fair value
and marked to market each pericd. This difference in accounting
treatment can rasult in volatifty in Sequent’s reported results, even
though the expected operating revenue is essentially unchanged from
the date the transactions were intiated. These acccounting differences
alsc affect the comparablity of Sequent’s period-over-period results,
since changes in forward NYMEX prices do not increase and
decrsase on a consistent basis from year 1o year

Park and Loan Transactions Sequent routinely enters nto park
and loan transactions with various pipefineg, which allow Sequent to
park gas on, or borrow gas from, the pipeling in one petiod and
reclaim gas from, or repay gas to, the pipeline in a subseqguent
period, The economics of these transactions are evaluated and price
risks are managed in much the same way as traditional reservoir
and salt dome storage transactions are evaluated and managed.
Sequent enters into forward NYMEX contracts to hedge s
park and loan transactions, While the hedging instruments mitigate
the price risk associated with the defivery and receipt of natural gas,
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they can also result in volatilty in Sequent's reporied results during
the pertod before the indtial defivery or receint of natural gas. During
this period, if the forward NYMEX prices in the manths of delivery
and receipt do net change in egual amounts, Sequent will report a
net unrsatized gain or foss on the hedges, Once gas is delfversd
ungler the park and loan fransaction, earnings volatiity is essentially
ebminaled since the park and loan transaction contzing an
embedded derivative, which is also marked to market and would
substantially offset subseguent changes in value of the forward
NYMEX contracts used to hedges the park and loan ransaction.

Energy Investments

Cur energy nvestments segment Ncludes a number of businesses
that are related and complementary to our primary business. The
most significant of these businesses is our natural gas storage
husiness, which develops, acquires and operatas high-detiverability
salt-deme and other storage assets in the Guif Coast region of the
United States. Whils this business also can generate additional
reverue during tmes of peak market dernand for naturgl gas storage
services, the majority of our storage senvices are covered under a
portiolio of short, medium and long-term contracts at a fixed
market rate.

Jefferson ksland This wholly owned subsidiary operates a salt
dome storage and hub facility in Louisiana, approximatety sight mites
from the Henry Hub: and currently consists of two salt dome storage
caverns with 7.5 Bof of working gas capacity, 0.7 Bof/day
withdrawal capacity and 0.4 Eci/day injection capacity, The storage
facility s reguisted by the Loulsiana Department of Natural
Resources and by the FERC, which has limited regulatory authority
over storage and trensportation services. Jefferson lsland provides
storage and hub services through its direct connection to the Henry
Huby and its interconnection with eight other pipelines i the area,
Jefferson island's entire portfolio is under firm subscription for the
current healing season,

in December 2008, the Louisiana Mineral and Erergy Board
approved an cperating agreement between Jeflerson fsland and the
State of Loutsiana, The new agreement enables us 1o resume our
efforts (o obtain the environmental, safety and cther reguiatory
approvals needed to create two new storage caverns, which would
expand the tolal working gas capacity of Jefferson lsland to
approximately 18,6 Bef,

Golden Triangle Storage In 2008, our wholly-owned subsidiary,
Golden Triangle Storage. started construction on a natural gas
storage faciity in the Gulf Coast region of Texas. The project will
consist of two underground salt dome storage caverns that will hold
about 12 Bef of working natural gas storage capacity and 1otal
cavern capacity of 18 Bof. The fadiiity potentially can be expanded
to a total of five caverns with 38 Bof of working natural gag storage
capacity inn the future, 1t is also expected that Golden Triangle
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Storage wilt bulld an approximately nine-mile duat 24° natural gas
pipeling 1o connect the storage faciity with three intersiate and three
infrasiate pipelines. We expect the first cavern with 6 Bef of working
capadity to be in service in the second half of 2010 and the second
cavern with 6 Bef of working capacity to be in service in mid 2012,
We estimate, based on current prices for fabor, malerials and
pad gas, that costs 1o censtruct the faclity will be aporexmately
374 miltar, The actual project costs depend upon the facility’s
configuration, materials, driling costs, financing costs and the
amount and cost of pad gas, which includes volumes of non-
working natural gas used to maintain the operational intsgrity of the
cavern facifity. The costs for approximaiely 76% of these tems have
been fixed and are not subject © continued varlability during
construction. We are not able fo predict whether these costs of
congtruction wilt continue 10 increase, moderate or decrease from
current levels, as there could be corbinued volstiity in the
construction cost estimates.

Competition Our natural gas siorage facilities compete with
natural gas fadiiities in the Guilf Coast region of the United Siates.
All of the existing and preposed high deliverability salt dome natural
gas storage facilities in North America are located in the Gulf
Coast region,

AGL Networks This wholly owned subsidiary provides
telecommunications conduit and available for use or “dark” fiber
optic cable, AGL Networks leeses and sells its fiber to a varlety of
customers in the Atlanta, Georgla, Phoenix, Arizona and Charlotte,
North Carolina metropolitan areas, with a small presence in other
cities in the United States, Its customers include local, regional and
national telecommunications companies, internet service providers,
educational institutions and other cormmercial entities. AGL
Networks typically provides underground condut and dark fiber (o
s cuslomers under leasing arrangements with terms that vary
from one to twenty years. In addilion, AGL Networks offers
telecommunications construction services 1o 118 customers. AGL
Metworks' competitors are any entities that have laid or will jay
conduit and fiber on the same route ag AGL Networks in the
respecive metropolitan areas.

Corporate

Our corporate segrment includes our nonopsrating business units,
AGL. Services Company is a senvice company we established to
provide certain centralized shared services to our operating
segments. We aliocate substantially all of AGL Services Company's
operating expenses and interest costs 1o our operating segments in
accordance with state regulations.

AGL Capltal, cur wholly owned finance subsidiary, proviges for
our ongoing financing needs through a commercial paper program,
the issuance of various debt and hwybrid securities, and other
fingncing arrangements, Our corporale segment also includes
intercompany eliminations for fransactions between our operating

business segments. Qur EBIT resulis includs the impact of these
allocations 1o the various operaling gsegments.

Employees

As of January 28, 2010, we employed 2,469 employses, and we
beiieve thal our reiations with them are good.

Additional information

For additional information on cur segments, see ltem 7,
"Management's Discussion and Analysls of Financial Condition and
Results of Operations” under the caption “Results of Operationis”
and "Note 9, Segment Information.” set torth in Hem 8, “Financlal
Statements and Supplementary Data”

information on our emvironmental remediastion efiorts, s
contained in “Note 7, Commitments and Contingencies,” aet forth
in Hem 8, “Financial Staterments and Supplermentary Data.”

Available Information

Detailed information about us is contained in our annual reports on
Form 10-K, guarterly reports on Form 10-Q, current reparts on Form
8-K, proxy statements and other reports, and amendments to those
repaorts, that we file with, or furrish 1o, the SEC, These reports are
available free of charge at our website, www.agiresources.com, as
so0n as reasonably practicable after we electronically file such
reports with or furnish such reports 1o the SEC, Mowsver, our
website and any contents thereof should not be considerad to be
incorporated by reference into this document. We will furnish coples
of such reports free of charge upon written request to our investor
Refations department, You can contact our investor Relations
department at:

AGL Resources iInc.

Invester Relations - Dept. 1071

PO, Box 4569

Atlanta, GA 30300-4569

404-584-4000

In Part { of this Form T0-K, we incorporate certain information
by reference from our Proxy Statement for our 2010 annual mesting
of shareholders. We expect to file that Froxy Staternent with the
SEC on or about March 18, 2010, and we will make it avallable on
cur website as soon as reasonably practicable. Please refer to the
Proxy Statement when it is avallable.

Additionally. our corporaie governance guidelines, code of
ethics, code of business conduct and the charters of each of our
Board of Directors commiitees are availiable on our website, We will
furnish copies of such information free of charge upon written
reguest to our investor Relations department.



Hem 1A, Risk Factors

Cautionary Statement Regarding
Forward-looking Statements

Certain  expectations and projections regarding our future
performancs referenced in this report, in other reports or proxy
statements we file with the SEC or ctherwise relaase to the public,
and on our website are forward-looking statements. Senior officers
and cther employees may also make verbal slalements 0 analysts,
investors, requigtors, the media and others that are forward-looking.
Forward-looking statements involve matfers that are not historical
facts, such as statemerits in “fiem 7, Management's Discussion and
Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations” and
elsewhere regarding our future operations, prospecis, strategies,
financial condition, eccnomic performance (including growth and
earnings), Industry conditions and clemand for our products and
sarvices. We have fried, whenever possible, to identify these
staternents by using words stch as "anticipate,” "assume,” "believe,”
“can,” “could, " ‘expect,” “foracast,” “future,” “goal”
“indlicate,” tintend,” "may,” Youtlook,” “plan,” “potential ” “predict,”
‘project,” "seek,” "should,” "targel, " “would," or similar expressions.

You are cautioned not to place undue refiance on our forward-
focking statements. Cur expectations are not guaraniees and are
based on currently avaiable competitive, financial and economic data
along with our operaling plans. While we befleve that cur
expectations for the future are reasonable in view of the currently
available information, our expectations are subject to future everis,
risks and uncertainties, and there are numercus factors — many
bevond our control — that could cause results to differ significantly
from our sxpectations, Such events, risks and uncertainfies include,
but are not limited 1o those sef forth below and in the other
documents that we file with the SEC. We note these factors for
investors as permitted by the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act
of 1995. There also may be other factors that we cannot anticipate
or that are nat described in this report, generally because we do not
parcelve them to be material, which could cause resulfs to differ
sigrificantly from our expectations.

Forward-looking statements are only as of the date they
are made, and we do not undertake any obligation to update
these statements to reflect subsequent circumstances or
events. You are advised, however, to review any further
disciosures we make on related subjects in our Form 10-Q
and Form 8-K reports to the SEC.

» o
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Risks Related to Our Business

Risks related to the regulation of our businesses could affect
the rates we are able to charge, our costs and our profitability.
Our businesses are subject 1o regulation by federal, state and tocal
regulatory authorties. In pariicular, at the federal level cur businesses
are regulated by the FERC, Af the state level, our businesses arg
reguiated by the Georgia, Tennessee, New Jersey, Florida, Virginia
and Maryland regulatory authorities.

These authorities regulate many aspects of our operations,
incliding construction and maintenance of facilities, operations,
safety, rates that we charge customers, rates of return, the authorized
cost of capial, recovery of costs associated with our regulatory
infrastructure projects, noluding our Ppeling replacement programs,
and environmental remediation activities, relationships with our
affiiates, and carmying costs we charge Marketers seling relall naturad
gas in Georgia for gas held in storage for thelr custormer accounts,
Cur abliity to obtain rate increases and rate supplements (o maintain
our curreni rates of return and recover reguiatory assets and liabilties
recorded in accordance with authoritative guidance related to
regulated operations depends on reguiatory discretion, and there can
be ne asswrance that we will be able to obtain rate increases or rate
supplements or continue receiving our currently suthorized rates of
return including the recovery of our reguiatory assets and liabilities. In
addition, if we fail to comply with applicaile regulations, we could be
subject to fines, penalties or other enforcement action by the
authorities thet regulate our operations, or othernwse be subject to
material costs and liabiities.

Deraguistion in the natural gas industry is the separation of the
provision and pricing of local distribution gas services into discrete
cornponents. Deregulation typically focuses on the separation of the
gas distribution business from the gas sales business and is intended
to cause the opering of the formerly regulated sales business {o
alternative urreguiated suppliers of gas sales servces.

In 1947, Georgia enacted legislation allowing dereguiation of
gas distribution operations. To date, Georgia is the cnly state i the
nation that has fully deregulsted gas distribution operations, which
uitimately resulied in Atlanta Gas Light exiting he retall natural gas
sales business while retaining fts gas distribution operations.
Marketers, including our majority-owned subsidiary, SouthStar, then
assumed the retall gas salea responsibility at deregulated prices. The
deregulation process required Atlanta Gas Light 1o completsly
recrganize #s operations and personnel at significant expense. s
possible that the legislature could reverse or amend portions of the
dereguiation process.

s
o]
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Our business is subject to environmentai regulation in
all jurisdictions in which we operate, and our costs to
comply are significant. Any changes in existing environ-
mental regulation could affect our resulls of operations and
financial condition.

Cur operstions and oropsriies are subject to extensive
environmental regulation pursuant to a varisty of federal, state and
municipal faws and reguiations. Such environmental legisiation
imposes, among other things, restrictions, liabiiites and obligations
iry connection with storage, transportation, treatment and disposal
of hazardous substances and waste and in connection with spills,
releases and emissions of various substances into the environment.
Environmerdal legislation also requires that our faciiities, sites ang
other properties associated with our operations be operated,
maintained, abandoned and recizimed to the satisfaction of
applicable regulatory authorties. Gur current costs to comply with
these laws and regulations are significant to our resuits of
operations and financial condftion. Fallure to comply with these laws
and regulations and failure 1o obtain any required permits and
llcenses may expose us 1o fines, penalties or interruptions in our
operations that could be material to our results of operations.

In addition, claims against us under ervironmental laws and
regulations could result in material costs and Habilities. Fxisting
ervronmental reguiations could also be revised or reinterpretad, new
laws and regulations could be adopted or become applicable fo us
or our faclittes, and fiture changes in environmental laws and
regulations could oocur, With the trend toweard stricter standards,
greater regulation, maore extensive permit requirements and an
increase in the number and types of assets operated by us subject
1o environmental regulation, our environmental expenditures could
increase in the future, particularly if those costs are not fully
recoverable from our customers. Additionally, the discovery of
presently urknown environmental conditions could give rise to
expenditures and liabilities, including fines or penalties. which could
have g material adverse effect or our busingss, results of operations
or financial condition.

Our infrastructure improvement and customer growth may be
restricted by the capitai-intensive nature of our business.

We must construct additions tc our natural gas distribution system
o continue the expansion of our customer base and improve
system reliability, especialy during peak usage, We may also need
te construct expansions of our existing natural gas storage facilities
or develop and construct new natural gas storage facilities. The
cost of this construction may be affected by the cost of obtaining
government and other approvals, development project delays,
adequacy of supply of dversified vendors, or unexpected changes
in project costs. Weather, general economic conditions and the
cost of funds 1o finance our capital projects can materially alter the
cost, and protected construction schedule and completion timeline
of a project, Our cash flows may not be Tully adequate to finance

the cost of this construction. As a result, we may be reguired to
fund & portion of our cash needs through borrowings or the
issuancs of commaon stock, or both, For our disinbution operations
segment, this may fimit cur ability 1o expand our infrastructure {0
connect new customers due 1o limits on the amount we can
gconomically mvest, which shifts costs to potentiat customers and
may make it uneconomical for them to connect to our digtribution
systerns. For our natural gas storage business. this may significantly
reduce our earnings and return on investrment from what wouid be
expected for this business, or may impair cur ability to complete
the expansicns or development projects.

We may be exposed to certain regulatory and financial risks
refated to climate change.

Cimate change is receiving ever increasing attention from scientists
and tegisiators alike, The debate 18 ongoing as to the extent to
which our climate is changing, the potential causes of this change
and its potential impacts. Some atiribute global warming o
increased levels of greenthouse gases, including carbon dicxide,
which has led to significant legistative and regulaiory efforts o fimit
greenhouse gas emissions.

Presently there are no federally mandated greenhouse gas
reduction reguirements In the United States, However, in June 2008
the United States House of Representatives passed bill R, 2484,
American Clean Energy and Security Act of 2009, which proposes
reducing greenhouse gas emissions to 17% below 2005 levels by
2020 and 83% below 2005 levals by 2050, The bill has now passed
to the United States Serate for debate and vote. Consequently, the
preciss federal mandatory carbon dioxide emissions reduction
program that may be adopted anc the specffic reguiraments of any
such program are uncertain.

There are a number of legislative and regulatory proposals to
addrass greenhouse gas aemissions, which are in various phases of
discussion or implementation. The outcome of federal and state
actions to address giobal climate change coldd result in a variety of
reguiatory programs including potential new reguiations, additonal
charges 1o fund energy efficiency activities, or other regulatory
actions. These actions could:

« rusult in increased costs associated with our operations
v increase oiher costs 10 cur business

+ affect the demarnd for natural gas, and

« impact the prices we charge our customers.

Because natural gas is & fossit fuel with fow carbon content, #
s possible that future carbon constraints could create additional
demand for natwral gas, both for production of slectricity and direct
use in homes and busnesses.

Ary adoption by federal or state governments mandating a
substantial reduction in greennouse gas ermissions could have far-
reaching and significant impacts on the snergy industry. We cannot



precict the potential mpact of such laws or regulations on our future
consalidated financial condition, restilis of operations or cash flows.

Transporting and storing natural gas involves numerous
risks that may result in accidents and other operating risks
and costs.
Cur gas distribution and storage activities involve a variaty of inherent
hazards and operating risks, such as leaks, accidents, including third
parly damages, and mechanical problems, which could cause
substantial inancial losses, In addition, these nsks could result in
serious injury to employees and non-employess, loss of human life,
significant damage o property, environmental pollution and
ympairment of our operations, which in turn could lead to substartial
losses to us. In accordance with customary industry practice, we
maintain insurance against some, but not all, of these risks and
losses. The location of pipelnes and storage facilties near populated
reds, including residential areas, commerciad business centers and
industrial sites, could increase the level of demages resuting from
these risks. The occurrence of any of these events not {Ully covered
by insurance could adversely affect cur finrancial position and results
of operations.

We face increasing competition, and if we are unable to
compete effectively, our revenues, operating results and
financial condition will be adversely affected which may Emit
our ability to grow our business.

The natural gas business s highly compelitive, increasingly complex,
and ws are facing increasing competition from other companies that
supply energy, including electric companies, o and propane
providers and, in some cases, energy mearketing and trading
companies. in particutar, the success of our investment in SouthStar
ie affected by the competitior SoulthStar faces from other energy
marketers providing retall natural gas services in the Southeast,
Natural gas competes with other forms of energy. The primary
competitive facior is price. Changes in the price or availability of
riatural gas relgtive o other forms of energy and the ability of end-
users 10 corvert 1o alternative fugls affect the dernand for natural gas.
In the case of commercial, industrial and agricultural customers,
adverse economic conditions, including nigher gas costs, could also
causge these customers to bypass or disconnect from our systems in
favor of gpecial competitive contracts with ower per-unit costs,

Cur wholesale sarvices segment competes with national and
ragional full-service energy providers, energy merchants and
producers and pipelines for sales based on our ability to agyregale
competitively priced commodities with transportation and storage
capacity, Some of our competitors are larger and betier capitalized
than we are and have more national and global exposure than we
de. The consofidation of this industry and the pricing to gain market
share may affect our operating margin. We expect this trend to
contnue in the near term, and the increasing competition for asset
management deals could result in downward prassure on the volume
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of transactions and the relaled operating margin available in this
portion of Sequent’s business.

The continuation of recent economic conditions could
adversely affect our customers and negatively impact our
financial resuits.

The siowdown in the U.S. economy, along with increased mortgage
defaults, and significant decreases in new home construction, home
values and investment assets, has adversely impacted the financial
well-being of many U8, households. We cannot predict if the
administrative and legislative actions to adcress this situation will be
successful in reducing the severity or duration of this recession. As a
result, our customers may use less gas in fulire heating seasons and
it may become more dificult for them to pay their natural gas bills.
This may slow collections and lead to higher than normal levels of
aocounts receivabies, bad debt and financing requirements.

A significant portion of our accounts receivable is subject to
coliection risks, due in part to a concentration of credit risk in
Georgia and at Sequent.
We have accounts recelvable collection risk in Georgia due to a
concentration of credit rigk retated {0 the provision of natural gas
services to Marketers. At December 31, 20082, Atlanta Ges Light hac
nine certificated and active Markaters and one regulaled natural gas
provider in Georgia responsible for offering natural gas to low-income
customers and customers unable to get natural gas service from
other Marketers, four of which {pased on custormer count and
including SouthStar} accounted for approxdmately 31% of our
consofidated operating margin for 2008, As aresult. Atlarta Gas Light
depends on & concentrated number of customers for revenues. The
provisions of Atlanta Gas Light's tariff allow it to obtain security
support in an amount equal 1o no fess than two times a Marketer's
highest month's estimated bill In the form of cash deposits, letters of
credit, surety bonds or guaranties. The failure of these Marketers fo
pay Atdanta Gas Light could adversely affect Atlanta Gas Light's
business and results of operations and expose i to difficulties in
collecting Atlanta Gas Light's accounts receivable. AGL Resources
provides & guarantes to Allanta Gas Light as security support for
SouthStar, Additionally, SouthStar markets directly to end-use
cusiomers and has periodically expearianced credit losses as a result
of severe cold weather or high prices for natural gas that increase
cugtomers' bifls and, consequently, impair cusiomers’ ability 1o pay.
Seguent offen extends credit {o s counterparties. Despite
performing credit analyses prior to extending credlt and seeking o
effectuate netting agreements, Sequent i exposed to the risk that it
may not be able to collect amounts owed 1o it. If the counterparty to
such & transaction falls to perform and any coliateral Sequent has
secured is inadequate, Sequent could expenence matenal inancial
losses. Further, Sequent has a concentration of cradit risk, which
ceuld subject a significant portion of #s credit exposure to collection
risks. Approximately 58% of Seguents credit exposure s
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concentrated in #s top 20 counterparties. Most of this concentration
is with counterparties that are either ioad-serving utifties or end-use
custormers that have supplied some level of credit support. Default by
any of these counterparties in thelr obligations to pay amouris dus
Sequent could result in credit losses that would regatively impact
our wholesale services segment.

The asset management arrangements between Sequent and
our local distribution companies, and between Sequent and
its nonaffiliated customers, may not be renewed or may be
renewed at lower levels, which could have a significant impact
on Sequent's business.

Sequent currently manages the storage and transportation assets of
our affiliates Atlarta Gas Light, Chattanooga Gas, Elizabethtown Gas,
Elton Gas, Florida City Gas, and Virginia Natural Gas and shares
profits it esrns from the management of those assets with those
customers and their respective customers, except at tkion Gas
where Sequent is assessed annual fixed-fees payable in monthly
instaliments. Entry into and renewal of these agreements are subject
to regulatory approval and none are subject fo renawal until 2011, In
addition, Sequent has asset management agreements with certain
nonaffiiated customers. Sequent’s resulls could be significantly
impacted if these agreements are not renewed or are amended or
renewed with less favorable terms,

We are exposed to market risk and may incur losses in
wholesale services and retail energy operations.

The commuaodity, storage and transportation portfolios at Sequent and
the commodity and storage portfofios at SouthStar consist of
contracts to buy and sell natural gas commodities, including
contracts that are settled by the delivery of the cormmodity or cash.
If the values of these contracts change in a direction or manner that
we do not anticipate, we could experience financial josses from our
trading activities. Based on a 85% confidence interval and employing
a 1-day holding period for alf positions, Seauent's and SouthStars
portiolio of positions as of December 31, 2008 had a 1-day holding
period Vak of 2.4 miticn and less than $0.1 million, respectively,

Our accounting results may not be indicative of the risks
we are iaking or the economic results we expect for
wholesaie services,

Although Sequent enters into various contracts to hedge the value of
our enerqy assele and operations, the timing of the recognition of
prafitz or losses on the hedges does not always correspond 10 the
profits o losses on the Hem being hedged. The difference in
accounting can result in volatility in Sequent’s reported resulis, aven
though the expacted operating margin is essentially unchanged from
the date the transactions were initiated.

Changes in weather conditions may affect our earnings.
Weather conditions and other nafural phenomena can have a large
impact on our earnings. Severe weather conditions can impact our

e

suppliers and the pipelines that deliver gas to our distribution system.
Extended mild weather, during either the winter or summer period,
can have a significant impact on demand for and cost of natural gas.

We have a WNA mechanism for Blizabethtown Gas and
Chatlanooga Gas that partially offsets the impact of unusually cold or
warm weather on residential and commercial custorrer bifings and
our operating margin. At Elizabethtown Gas we could bs required to
return & portion of any WNA surcharge o its customers if
Elizabethiown Gas' return on equity excesds its authorized return on
equity of 10%.

Additicnally. Virginia Natural Gas has a WNA mechanism for its
residential cusiomers that partially offset the impacts of unusually
cold or warm weather. In September 2007, the Virginia Commission
approved Virginie Natural Gas™ application for an Sxpermental
Weather Normalization Adjustment Ricer (the Rider) for its
commercial custcmers. The Rider applied fo the 2007 and 2008
heating seasons. In September 2009 the Rider was extended to
September 2011,

These WNA regulatory mechanisms are most sffective in a
reagonable temperature range relative fo normal weather using
historical averages. The protection afforded by the WNA depends on
continued regulatory approval. The loss of this continued regulatory
approval could rmake us more susceptible to weather-related
ezrnings fluctuations.

Changes in westher conditions may also impact SouthSiar's
BANNGS. AS a result, SouthStar uses a variety of weather derivative
instruments to stabilize the impact on its operating margin in the
event of warmer or colder than normal weather in the winter months.
However, these instrurents dlo not fully protect SouthStar's samings
from the effects of unusually warm or cold weather.

A decrease in the availability of adequate pipeline transpor-
tation capacity could reduce our revenues and profits.

Cur gas supply depends on the availability of adequate pipeline trans-
portafion and storage capacity, We purchase a substantial portion
of cur gas supply from interstate sowrces. Interstate pipeline com-
panies ransport the gas 1o our system. A decrease in inferstate
pipeline capacity available to us or an increase in compstition for
intersiate piceline transportation and storage senvice could reduce
our normal interstate supply of gas.

Ouwr profitability may decline if the counterparties to Sequent's
asset management transactions fail to perform in accordance
with Sequent’s agreements.

Sequent focuses on capturing the value from idle or underutilized
enerdy assels, typically by executing transactions that balance the
needs of varicus markets and time horizons. Sequent is expesed
o the nisk that counterparties to our transactions will not perfarm
their ebligations, Should the counterparties 1o these arangements
fall 1o perform, we might be forced 1o enter iInto alternative hedging
arrangemenis. honor the underlying commifment ai then-



current market prices or return g significars portion of the
consideration received for gas. In such events, we might incur
additional iosses to the extent of amounts, if any, giready paid 1o or
received from counterpartios.

We could incur additional material costs for the environmental
condition of some of our assets, including forter manufac-
tured gas plants.

We are generally responsible for all on-site and certain off-site liabiities
associared with the environmental condition of the natural gas assets
that we have operated, acquired or developed, regardless of when
the liabilites srose and whether they are or were known Or Unknowr,
In addition, in connection with certain acquisitions and sales of
assets, we may obtain, or be required to provide, indemnification
against certain environmental liabifities. Before ratural gas was widely
avallable, we manufactured gas from coal and other fuels. Those
manufactuning operations were known as MGPs, which we ceased
operating in the 1950s.

We have confirmed ten sites in Georgia and three in Florida
where we own all or part of an MGP site. One additional former MGP
site has been recently identified adiacent to an existing MGP
remediation site. Precise enginearing soit and groundwater clean up
estimates are not availlable and considerable variability exists with this
potertial new site. We are required to investigate possible
environmenial contamination at those MGP sites and, if necessary,
clean up any cortamination. As of December 31, 2008, the soil and
sedimert remediation program was substantially complete Tor alf
Georgia sites, except for a few remaining areas of recently discovered
impact, although groundwater cleanup continues. As of Decemnber
31, 2008, projected costs associated with the MGP sites associated

with Atlanta Gas Light range fom $64 milion to $113 rmifion. For,

alements of the MGP program where we still cannot provide
engineering cost estimates, considerable variability remains in future
cost estimates.

I eddition, we are associated with former sites in New Jersey,
North Carglina and other states. Material cleanups of these sites have
not peen completed nor are precise estimates available Tor future
cleanup cosis and therefore considerable variability remains in future
cost estimates. For the New Jersey sites, cleanup cost estimates
range frorm $69 miion to $134 millon. Costs have been estimated for
only one of the non-New Jersey sites, for which current estimates
range from $11 million to $16 mition.

Inflation and increased gas cosis could adversely impact our
ability to control operating expenses, increase our level of
indebtedness and adversely impact our customer base.

Irfiation has caused increases in certain opérating expenses that
have required us to replace assets at higher costs. We attempt to
control costs in part through implementation of best practices and
business process improvements, many of which are facilitated
through investments in information systems and technology. We have
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a process in place o continually review the adaquacy of our utility
gas rates inrelation to the increasing cost of providing service and the
inherent regulatory lag n adiusting those gags rates, Historically, we
have been able to budget and control operating expenses and
vestments within the amounts authorized to be collected i rates,
and we intend 1o continue 10 do so. However, any inatility by us to
contro! our expenses In a reascnable manner would adversely
infiuence our future resuits,

Rapid increases in the price of purchased gas cause us to
experience a significant increase in short-term dabi because we must
pay suppliers for gas when it is purchased, which can be significantly
in acvance of when these costs may be recovered through the
collection of monthly customer bills for gas delivered. increases in
purchased gas costs also slow owr utility collection efforts as
customers are more likely to delay the payment of therr gas bills,
leading to higher-than-normal accounts receivable, This situation
results in higher shor-term debt levels and increased bad debt
expense, Should the price of purchased gas nerease sigrificantly
during the upcoming heating season, we would expect increases in
our short-term debt, accounts receivable and bad debt expense
during 2010,

Finglly, higher costs of natural gas in recent years have gready
caused many of our utility customners to congerve in the use of our
gas services and sould isad to even more customers utilizing such
conservation methods or switching o other competing products.
The higher cesis have aiso allowed competition from products
utiizing alternative energy sources for applications that have
traditicnally used natural gas, encouraging scme customers to move
away from natural gas fired equipment to equipment fueled by other
anargy SouUrces,

The cost of providing pension and postretirement health care
benefits to eligible employees and qualified retirees is subject
to changes in pension fund values and changing demo-~
graphics and may have a material adverse effect on our
financial results.

We have defined benefit pension and postretirement health care
plarg for the banefit of substantially all full-tima employess and
quaiified retiress. The cost of providing these benefits to eligible
current and former employees is subject to changes in the market
walue of our pension fund assets, changing dermographics. including
longer life expectancy of beneficiaries and changes in health care
cost frends.

Any sustained declines in equity markets and reductions in bond
vields may have a material adverse eftect on the value of our pension
funds. In these circumstances. we may be reguired 1o recognize an
ncreased pengion expense or a charge 1 our other compreheansive
income to the extent that the pension fund values are less than the
total anticipated tability under the plans. Market declines in the
second half of 2008 resulied in significant Josses in the value of our
pension fund assets. Although the market made a recovery in 2009

s
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our pension fund assels are not at the levels they were prior to the
market decline in 2008, As a result, based on the current funding
status of the plans, we would be required to make a minimum
contribution to the plans of approximately $21 miion in 2010, We
are planning to make additional confributions in Z010 up to
$17 mitlion, for & total of up 1o $38 milion, in order 1o preserve the
current tevel of benefits under the plans and in accordance with the
funding requirerments of The Pension Protection Act of 2008 (Pension
Frotection Act). As of December 31, 2008 our pengion plans assels
representec 65% of our total pension plan obligations.

For more information regarding some of these obligations, see
ftem 7. "Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financia
Condition and Results of Operations” under the caption *Contractugl
Obligations and Commitments” and the subheading "Pension and
Pastretrement Obligations” and Note 3 “Emploves Benefit Plans.”
set forth in ttem B, *Financial Statements and Supplemeniary Data.”

Natural disasters, terrorist activities and the potential for mili-
tary and other actions could adversely affect our businesses.
Natural disasters may damage our assets. The threat of terorism
and the impact of retaliatory military and other action by the United
States and s alfles may lead to Increased political, economic and
financial market instability anct volatiiity in the price of natural gas
that could affect our oparations. In agdition, future acts of terrorism
couid be directed against companies operating in the United States,
and companies in the energy industry may face a heightened risk of
exposure 10 acts of terrorism. These developmenis have subjectad
our operations o increased risks. The insurance industry has also
been disrupted by these events. As a result, the availability of Insur-
ance covering risks against which we and our competitors typically
insure may be fmited. in addition, the insurance we are able to
obtain may have higher deductbles, higher premiums and more
restrictive policy terms,

Risks Related to Our Corporate and Financial Structure

We depend on our ability to successfully access the capital
and financial markets. Any inability to access the capital or
financial markets may limit ocur ability to execute our
business plan or pursue improvements that we may rely on
for future growtih.

We rely on access to both short-term money markets {n the form
of commaerciat paper and nes of credil) and long-term capital mar-
kets as & source of kquidity for caphal and operating requirements
not satisfied by the cash flow from cur operations. i we are not able
o access financial markets at competitive rates, cur abiity to imple-
ment ow business plan and strategy will be negatively affected, and
we may oe forced o postpone, modity or cancel capital projects.
Certain market disruptions may ncrease our cost of barrowing or

affect our ability to access one or more financial markets. Such
market disruptions coutd result from:

« adverse economic conditiong

« adverse general capital market conditions

* pocr performance and health of the utility industry in ganeral

* bankrugtey or fingncial distress of unrelated energy companies
or Marketers

# significant decrease in the demand for natural gas

» zdverse regulatory actions that affect our local gas distribution
compartes and our natural gas storage business

= terrorist attacks on our faciites or owr suppliers, or

¢ exireme weather conditions.

The continued disruption in the credit markets could limit our
abifity to access capital and increase our cost of capital.
The global credit markets experienced significant disrugption and
volatility in recert years. In some cases, the abiity or willingness of
tracitional sources of capitat to provide financing has been reduced.

Historically, we have accessed the corrmerclal paper markets
to finance cur short-term working capital requirements, but the dis-
ruption in the oredit markets fimited our access o the commercial
paper markets at reasonable interest rates in 2008, Consequently,
we borrowed directly under cur Credit Facility in 2008 for our work-
ing capital needs. While the cormmercial paper market has stapitized
in 2009 and aliowed us 1o repay the amounts borrowed directly from
olr Credit Facility, it has not returned to #s pre-recaession state. As
of December 31, 2008, we had $601 million in commercial paper
outstanding and ro outstanding borrowirgs under our Cradit Facility,
During 2008, cur borrowings under this facility along with cur com-
mercial paper were used primarily to purchase natural gas invento-
ries for the current winter heating season. The amount of our
working capital requirements in the near-term will depend primarily
on the market price of natural gas and weather, Higher natural gas
prices may adversely impact cur accounts receivable collections
and may reguire us 1o increase borrowings under our credit faciiity
to fund our operations.

While we belfleve we can meet owr capital requirermnents from
our cperations and the sources of financing available to us, we can
provide no agsurance that we will continue to be able to do sointhe
future, especially if the market price of natural gas increases signif-
icantly in the near-term, The future effects on our business, liquidity
and financial resulis of a continuation of current market condtions
could be material and adverse 1o us, both in the ways described
above, or inways that we do not currently anticipate.

If we breach any of the financial covenants under our various
credit facilities, our debt service obligations could be
accelerated,

Cur existing Credit Facility and the SouthStar ine of credi contain
financial covenants. if we breach any of the financial covenants



under thess agreemeants, our debt repayment obligations under
them could be accelerated. In such event. we may net be able o
refinance or repay all our indebtedness, which would result in a
matarial adverse effect on our busingss, results of operations and

financial condition.

A downgrade in our credit rating could negatively affect our
ability to access capital,

Our senior unsecured debt is currently assigred a rating of BBE+ by
S&P, Baal by Moody's and A- by Fitch, Our commercial paper
currently is rated A-2 by S&F P-2 by Moody's and F2 by Fitch, if
the rating agencies downgrade our ratings, particularly below invest-
ment grade, t may significantly limit our access to the commercial
paper market and our borrowing costs would increase. In addition,
we would fikely be required 1o pay g higher interest rate in future
financings and owr potential pool of invesiors and funding sources
would kely decrease.,

Additionally, if our credit rating by either S&F or Moody's falls o
non-investment grade status, we will be required to provide addi-
tional support for cenain customers of our wholesale busness. As
of December 31, 2008, if our credi rating had faflen below invest-
ment grade, we would have been required to provide collaterad of
approximately $25 million to continue conducting our wholesale
services business with certain counterparties,

We are vuinerable 1o interest rate risk with respect to our
debt, which could lead to changes In interest expense and
adversely affect our earnings.

We are sublect to Interest rate risk in connection with the issuance
of fixed-rate and variable-rate debt. in order to maintain our desired
mix of fixed-rate and variable-rate debt, we may use interest rate
swap agreements and exchange fixed-rate and variable-rate inter-
est payment obligations over the life of the arrangements, without
exchange of the underdving principal amounts, For additional infor-
mation, see ltem 7A, “Quentitative and Qualitative Disclosures About
Market Risk.” We cannct ensure that we will be successid in struc-
turing such swap agreements 1o manage our risks effectively, i we
are unable to do so, our earnings may be reduced. in addition,
higher interest raies, all other things equal, reduce the earnings that
we derive from transactions where we captwe the difference
natween atlthorized retums ang short-term Dorrowings.,

We are a holding company and are dependent on cash flow
from our subsidiaries, which may not be available in the
amounts and at the times we need.

A portion of our cutstanding debt was tssued by our wholly-owned
subsidiary, AGL Capital, which we fully and unconditionally guaran-
fee. Since we are a holding company and have no operations
separate Fom our investment in cur subsidiaries, we are dependent
on cash in the form of dividends or other distributions from our
subsidiaries o meet our cash requirements. The ability of our
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subsidiaries to pay dividends and make other distributions is subject
to applicable state law. Refer to ftem &, *Market for the Registrant's
Cormmon bauity, Related Stockholder Matters and Issuer Purchases
of Equity Securities” for additional dividend restriction information.

The use of derivative contracts in the narmal course of our
business could resuft in financial losses that negatively
impact our results of operations.

We use derivatives, including futures, forwards and swaps, 1o man-
age our commadity and financial market risks. We could recogrize
financial losses on these contracts as a result of volatiity in the mar-
ket values of the underlying commodities or if a counterparty fails
to perform under a contract. In the ahsence of actively guoted
market prices and pricing information from external sources, the
valuation of these derivative financial instruments can involve man-
agement’s judgment or use of estimates. As a resull, changes in the
underlying assumptions or use of alternative valuation methods
could adversely affect the value of the reporied fair valug of
these contracts,

As a result of cross-default provisions in our borrowing
arrangements, we may be unable to satisfy all our
outstanding obligations in the event of a default on our part.
Our Credit Faclity under which owr debt is issued containg cross-
default provisions, Accordingly. should an event of default occur
under some of our debt agreements, we face the progpect of being
in default under other of our debt agreements, obligated in such
instance 1o satisty a large portion of our outstanding indebtedness
and unable to satisly all cur outstanding obligations simultanecusty.

......
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ftem 1B. Unresolved Staff Comments

We Zo not have any unresolved comments from the SEC staff
regarding owr pericdic or current reporis under the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934, as amended.

item 2. Properties

We conslder our properties 1o be well maintained, in good operating
condition and suitable for their intended purpose. The following
provides the location and general character of the materially
important properties that are usad by our segmenis,

Distribution and transmission assets This property primarily
includes assets used by our distribution cperations and energy
investment segmenis for the distribution of natural gas 1o owr
customers 1 our service areas, and includes approxmately
46,000 miles of underground distribution and transmission maing,
Trnese maing are located on easemenis or rights-of-way which
generally provide for perpetual use.

Storage assets We have approximetely 7.5 Bet of LNG storage
capacity in five LNG plants located in Georgia, New Jersey and
Tennessee. In addition, we own three propane storage faciities in
Virginia and Georgla that have a combined storage capacity of
approximately 1 Bet. These LNG planis and propane facilities are
used by distribution operations to supplement the natural gas supply
during peak usage penods.

YWe also own a high-defiverability natural gas storage and hub
facility in Loudsiana. This facility is operated by a subsidiary within cur

energy investments segment and includes twe salt dome gas storage -

caverns with approximately 10 Bef of total capacity and about & Bef
of working gas capacity. Our energy investrments segment also owns
a propane storage facility In Virginia with approximatety 0.3 Bcf of
storage capecity. This faciity supplements the natural gas supply to
our Virginia utility durlng peak usage perlods,

Ead
P

Telecommunications assets AGL Networks, a subsidiary within
our anergy investmeants segment, owns and operates telecommuni-
cations conduit and fiber property in public rights-of-way that are
leased to our customers primarily in Atlanta. Phoenix and Charlotte.
This inciudes over 184,000 fiber miles, & 55,000 mile incréase
compared 1o 2008. Approximately 44% of our dark fiber in Atlanta,
25% of our dark fiber in Phoenix and 4% of our dark fiber in
Charlotte has been leased.

Offices All of owr segments own or lease ofice, warehouse and
olner facilities throughoul our operating areas. We expect additional
or substitute space to be avalable as needed 1o accommodate
expansion of our operations.

item 3. Legal Proceedings

The nature of our business ordinarily resuits in periodic regulatory
proceedings before various state and fedleral authorities, in addition,
we are party, as both plaintiff and defendant, to anumber of lawsuits
related 10 our business on an ongoing basis. Management believes
that the outcorme of all regUlatory proceedings and litigation in which
we are currently invalved will not have & material adverse effact on our
consolidated financial condiion or results of operations. For more
information regarding some of these proceedings, see Note 7 to our
consclidated financial staterments under the cagtion “Litigation.”

lfem 4. Submission of Mattersto a
Vote of Security Holders

No matters were submitied 10 a vote of our security holders during
the fourth quarter ended Decermber 31, 2009,



Executive Officers of the Registrant
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Set forth below are the names, ages and positions of our exesutive officers along with their business experience during the past five vears, Al
officers serve at the discretion of our Board of Directors. Allinformation is as of the date of the filing of this repon.

amne, age and postion with he company

Periocdy sennd

John W, Somerhalder H, Age 547
Chairman, Presicent and Chigf Executive Officer
President and Chief Executive Officer

Ralph Cleveland, Age 47
Executive Vice President, Engineering and Operations
Senlor Vice President, Engineering and Operations

Atlanta Gas Light

Andrew W, Evans, Age 43
Executive Vice President, Chief Financial Officer and Treasurer
Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer
Senior Vice Presldent and Chief Financial Officer
Vice Prasident and Treaswrar

Henry P. Linginfelter, Age 46
Executive Vice President, Utility Cperations

Senior Vice President, Mid-Atlantic Operations

Melanie M. Platt, Age 55

Senior Vice President, Human Resources and Marketing Communications

Senior Vice President, Human Resotrces

Douglas N. Schantz, Age 54
President, Sequent

Paul R. Shianta, Age 62

October 2007 ~ Present
March 2006 - October 2007

December 2008 — Present
February 2008 - December 2008
January 2003 - Fepruary 2005

June 2009 - Present

May 2008 ~ June 2009
Septernber 20086 ~ May 2006
April 2002 - Septamber 20056

June 2007 - Present
November 2004 - Jdune 2007

November 2008 - Fresent
September 2004 ~ November 2008

May 2003 ~ Present

Executive Vice President, General Counsel and Chiel Ethics and Compliance Cfficer Sepilember 2005 - Present
Senior Vice President, General Counsel and Chisf Corporate Compllance Officer September 2002 — September 20058

Wk, Bormerhater was executive vice presdert of B Faso Dorporation (INYSE: £ fram PG00 uniti May 005, and ne continued servics Unoer 3 protessionnt Serces agraement from tMay S00E urtl] Margh 2006
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Part Hl

lHem 5. Market for the Registrant’s Common
Equity, Related Stockholder Matters and Issuer
Purchases of Equity Securities

Holders of Common Stock, Stock Price and
Dividend Information

Our common stock s Bsted on the New York Stock Exchange under
the aymbol AGL. At January 29, 2010, thare were 9,553 record
holders of our commaon stook. Guarterly information concerning ouwr
high and low stock prices and cash dividends paid in 20098 and
2008 is as follows:

5

Of CUTic
Qarter ended: High Low
2009
March 31, 2009 $34.93 $24.02 $0.43
June 30, 2009 32.38 26.00 0.43
Septernber 30, 2009 35.79 30.06 0.43
December 31, 2008 37.52 33.50 0.43
$1.72
2008
tarch 31, 2008 §39.13 333.45 $0.42
June 30, 2008 36.50 33.48 0.4z
September 30, 2008 3b.44 30.80 0.42
Decernber 31, 2008 32.07 24.02 0.42
%1.68

We have historically paid dividends to common sharehclders
four times a year: March 1, June 1, September 1 and December 1,
We have paid 248 conseculive gquarterly dividends beginning in

Issuer Purchases of Equity Securities

1948, Our commaon shareholders may receive dividends when
declared at the discretion of our Board of Directors. See lem 7,
“Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and
Results of Operations — Liguidily and Capital Rescurces — Cash Flow
from Financing Activities — Dividends on Commaon Stock.” Dividends
may be paid in cash, stock or ather form of payment, and payment
of future divicends will dapend on our fuiture earnings, cash flow,
finencial raguiraments and other factors, some of which are noted
befow. In certain cases, our ability To pay dividends to our common
shareholders is limided by the following:

e our ability o satisfy our obligations under certain financing agree-
ments, including debi-to-capitalization covenants

« our abfiity io satisly our cobligations to any future preferred
shereholders

Under Georgla law, the payrment of cash dividends to the held-
ers of our commaon stock is fimited to our legally available assets
and subject 1o the prior payment of dividends on any outstanding
shares of preferred stock. Qur assets are not tegally availeble for
paying cash dividends if, after payment of the dividend:

o we could not pay our debis as they become due in the usual
course of business, or

* our {otal assets would be less than our tota liabilities plus, sub-
Ject to some exceptions, any amounts necessary to satlsty (upon
dissolution) the preferential rights of shareholders whose prefer-
ential rights are superior to those of the shareholders receiving
the dividends

The following tabie sets forth information regarding purchases of our commen stock by us and any affileied purchasers during the three months
erded December 31, 2000, Stock repurchases may be made in the open market or in private fransactions at times and in amounts that we
deem appropriate. However, there is no guaraniee as to the exact numbper of additonal shares that may be repurchased, and we may termi-
nate or #imit the stock repurchase program at any ime. We currently anticipate holding the repurchased shares as treasury shares.

Total number of shares

Averane pice Mexdrmum number of shas that may

Total rurmber of paic pgr prrche 5 et of publicly vl g plrchased under the publicly
Perjoc shares purchgsed LOMIMON: share ANrCUNCEd PRANS oF Prograrms s BRNOUAICED PlaNs or programs
October 2008 - 8 - - 4.950,981
Novermnber 2009 - - — 4,860,851
December 2009 2,000 38.07 — 4,850,961
Total fourth quarter 3,000 $36.07

G0 Marck 20, 2

¢ Board of Sireciorg approved the purchase of o 10 B0C, 000 shares of our cormmon s10ck in de open marke? 10 De &
We ourchase res for such purooeses in e fourth guarer of 2009, As of December 3 09, we had purchased & 1ot
272140 shares availsble for purchase tnder thiz p .

500 Febriary &, 2006, wa annoLnc it Our Boars reclors hed authorized s plan to reparchase Up to 2 1otal of B mdion shares of oW common stuck. exclUcing 116 shemes remalning avalatbie for purchase
in connection with tre Officer Han as described ik note (1) above, cver 2 five-vear perind.

G0 of the 800,000 shares authorized for purchase, leaving




item 6. Selected Financial Data
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Salected financial data shout AGEL Resources for the lagt five vears is set forth in the table below. You should read the dats in the table in con-
junciion with the consolidated financial statements and related notes set forth in liem 8, "Financid Staterments and Suppiementary Data.”

Cotars and shares in nmllions, £XCent per share armoynis 2009 2008 2O0T 2008 2005
income statement data
Operating revenues $2,317 82,800 32,494 2,621 %2718
Cost of gas 1,142 1,654 1,368 1,482 1,626
Operating margin® 1,175 1,146 1,128 1,139 1,092
Operating expenses
Operation and mainterance 497 472 451 473 477
Depreciation end amortization 158 162 144 138 132
Taxes other than income taxes 44 44 41 A0 40
Total operating expenses 699 686 636 651 650
Cperating income 476 478 489 488 447
Other income {expense) 8 B 4 1 {1)
Zarnings belore interest and faxes (BT 485 434 483 487 441
Imerest expense 101 "5 125 123 108
Carnings before income taxes 384 389 368 364 332
Income taxes 135 132 127 129 17
Net income 249 237 241 2356 218
Less net income aftribuiabie o the noncontrolling interast 27 20 3C 23 22
Net income atiributable to AGL Rescurcas ine. $ 222 $ 217 F o211 $ 212 $ 163
Common stock data
Weighted average commoen shares outstanding tasic 76.8 8.3 77 778 T3
Weghted average commaon shares outstanding diluted 77.1 6.8 774 78.0 778
Total shares outstanding® 1.5 6.9 764 777 78
Basic earnings per common share attributable to
AGL Resources Inc. comman shareholders $ 2.89 § 285 $ 274 $ 273 § 2.80
Dluted earnings per commoen share attribudable to
AGL Resources Ine. common shareholdars $ 2.88 $ 2.84 & 272 $ 272 & 2.48
Dividends declared per commeon share $ 1.72 $ 188 5 1.64 $ 1.48 % 1.30
Dividend payout ratio 60% 58% 60% 54% 52%
Dividend yisld*® 4.7% 5.4% 4.4% 3.8% 3.7%
Frice range:
High $37.52 $38.13 $44.67 $40.09 $36.32
Low $24.02 $24.07 $35.24 $34.40 $32.00
Cloge® $36.47 $31.35 $37.64 $38.91 $34.81
Markat value™ $2,826 82,411 $2,876 $3,025 32,708
Statements of Financial Position data™
Total assets $7,074 6,710 56,258 $6,123 G.310
Properly, plant and equipment - net 4,146 3,818 3,666 3,436 3,833
Total debt 2,576 2,541 2,255 2,181 2487
Total equity 1,819 1,684 1,708 1,651 1,837
Cash flow data
Net cash flow provided by operating activities $ 592 & 227 § 377 $ 351 $ 80
Property, plant and equipment expenditures 476 ar2 258 253 267
Net {payments] and borrowings of short-term debt {264} 286 &2 £ 188
Financiai ratios~
Diebt 59% 0% 57% 57% 58%
Equity 41% 40% A3% 43% 42%
Toral 100% 100% 100% 100% 100%
Return on average eguity 12.7% 12.8% 12.6% 13.3% 13.0%

M hese are 0o ssurpments, A reconacision of aparating margir
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ltem7. Management's Discussion and Analysis
of Financizal Condition and Resulis of Operations

Qverview

The distibution operaticns segment s the largest component of our
business and is sublect to regulation and oversight by agences in
each of the six states we serve. These agencies approve natural gas
rates designed to provide us the opporiunity 1o generate revenues o
recover the cost of natural gas delivered to our customers and our
fixed and variable costs such as depreciation, inferest, maintenance
and overhead costs. and to earn a reasonable return for our
shareholders. With the excaption of Atlanta Gas Light, our largest
utifity, the earnings of owr regulsted utiities can be affected by
customer consurmption patterns that are a function of weather
conditions, price levels for nafural gas and general economic
conditions that may impact our customers’ abllity to pay for gas
consumed. Various mechanisms exigt that Bmit our exposure to
weather changes within typical ranges in all of ouwr jurisdictions.

Cur retall energy operations segment, which consists of
SouthStar, also is weather sensitive and Uses a variety of hedging
strategies, such as weather derivative instruments and other risk
management tools, to mitgate potential weather impacts. Our
Sequent subsidiary within our wholesale services segmert is tem-
perature insensitive, but generally has greater opporiunity to cap-
ture operating margin due to price volatiity as a result of extreme
weather. Cur energy nvestments segment’s primary activity is our
natural gas storage business, which develops, acquires and oper-
ates high-defiversbifity salt-dome storage assets in the Guif Coast
region of the United States. While this business also can generate
additionsl revenue during times of peak market demand for natural
gas storage services, the majority of our storage services are cov-
ered under medium to long-term contracts at a fixed market rafe,

Executive Summary

Regulatory strategy We continue 10 actively pursue a regulatory
strategly that reduces the lag between owr investments in
infrastructure and the recovery of those investments through various
rate mechanisms, Our regulatory planning includas rate design
proposais  thal shouid provide stabllized revenues  through
decoupling, or separating the recovery of fixed costs for providing
service from the volumes of custorner throughput, Our rate cases
also include proposals for energy-efficiency programs that should
help customers lower the amount of gas used and conserve engrgy.

Capital projects We continue o focus aggressively on capital
discipine and cost control, while moving ahead with projects and
initietives that we expect to have current and future benefits and
provide an appropriate return on invested capital. In 2009, our
infrastructure Improvement programs were approved in Georgia and
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New Jersey. Additionally, the Magnolia pipeline project, complated in
November 2009, allowing access o Flba lsland LNG, shouid enable
us 1o mast future demand for and diversify our supply of natural gas
for Atlanta Gas Light customers. Cur Hampton Roads Crossing
pipeline project, with partions placed in service in Decermber 2008
and the remainder in January 2010, provides additional infrastructure
to accommodate growth o the Virginia Natural Gas distribution
syster. In addition, our Geolden Triangle Storage preject in Beaumont,
Texas is on schedule and we expect the first cavern to be in operation
in the second half of 2010,

Customer growth We cortinue to see challenging eccnomic
conditions in all of the areas we serve and, as a result, have
experienced lower than expected custorner growth in our distribution
operaticns and retall energy operations segments throughout 2009,
a rend we expect 1o continue through 2010,

For the year ended December 31, 2003, our distribution
operations customer growth rate was (0.3)%, compeared 1o 0.1%
for 2008. The lower levels of customer growth are primartly a result
of much stower growih in the residential hotising markets throughout
our service ferritories, This frend has been cffset slightly by growih
in the commercial customer segment in certain areas, primardy as a
result of conversions to natural gas from other fual sources as well
as new progduct and service offerings.

We continue to use a variety of {argeted marketing programs
1o attract new customers and to retain existing ones. These
programs generally emphasize natural gas as the fuet of choice for
customers and seek to expand the use of natural gas through a
variely of promotional activities. We also use analytical predictive
models 1o Identify and target customers who might consider
switching from natural gas to other sources of ensergy in order 1o
retain them as a customer.

We have seen a 4% decline in average cusiomer count in
Georgia at ScuthStar for the year ended December 31, 2009, as
cormpared to Z008. This decline reflects some of the same economic
congttions that have affectad our Wity businesses, as well as a more
competitive retall market for natural gas in Georgia.

Natural gas price volatility Natural gas commodity prices have
a signfficant impact on our customer rates ang on our long-term
competiive position against other energy sources. Over the last two
vears, daily Henry Hub spot market prices for natural gas in the
United States has been extremely volatile and ranged betwesn a
high of $13.58 per Mcf in July 2008 to a low of $2.51 per Mcf in
September 2000, Ouwr natural gas acquisition strategy is designed
to securs sufficient supplies of natural gas 10 meet the needs of our
utiity customers and o nedge gas prices to effectively manzage
costs, reduce price volatifity and maintain & competitive acvantage.
Although spot niatural gas prices were as low as $2.51 per Mcf
during 2008, the current forward price of natural gas continues ¢
remain at much higher levels from $5.12 to $6.47 per Mof over the
next year. Our hedging strategies and physical natural gas supplies



in storage enable us 1o reduce earnings risk exposure due to highsr
gas costs.

Capital market plan Our capital market pian over the next 12 o
18 months includes maintaining our total debt to total capitalzation
fargets petwaen 50% and 60%, the renewal of our 31 hillion Credit
Factity, the renewal of the letter of credit agreemesnts which provide
credit support for our variable-rate gas facility revenue bonds and
refinancing of $300 million in 7.125% senicr notes set to mature in
January 2011,

We cannot predict whether renewing our Credit Facility or
refinancing the senior notes would result m favorable terms or
interest rates. Additionally, due to the sigrificant changes in the credit
markets, we expect that the costs of a renewed credit facility would
increase and the duration 10 be less than the b-year term under cur
existing Credit Facility. We have not yet determined whether we will
seek 1o increase or decrease the size of the Credit Facility from its
current $1 billion level.

Hedges

Changes in commodity prices subject a significant portion of our
operations 1o earnings variability, Our nonutifity businesses principally
use physical and financial arrangements 1o reduce the risxs associated
with both weather-related seascnal fluctuations in market condifions
and changing cormmaodity prices. These ecoromic hedges may not
qualify, or are not designated for, hedge accounting treatment. As a
result, our reported earnings for the wholesale services and retail
enargy operations segments reflect changes in the far values of
certain derivatives. These values may change significantly from period
to period and are reflectad as gains or losses within our operating
revenues or our OC for those derivative instruments that qualify and
are designated as accounting hedges. The net losses on weather
hedges during 2008 at retail energy operations were more than offset
by corresponding increases in operating margn due to colder weather
the hedges were designed to protect againet.

Elizabetrtown Gas utilizes certain financial derivatives in accor-
dance with a directive from the New Jersey BPU 1o create @ hedg-
ing program to hedge the impact of market fluctuations in natural
gas prices. These derlvative products are accounted for at fair value
each reporting period. In accordance with regulatory requirements,
realized gains and losses related o these financial derivatives are
reflacted In deferred natural gas costs and ultimately included in
billings to customers. Unvealized gains and losses are reflecied as
a reguiatory asset or kability, as approprigte, in our consolidated
statements of financial position,
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Seasonality

The operating revenues and EBIT of our distribution cperations. retal
enargy operations and wholesale services segments are seasonal.
Durng the heating season, natural gas usage and operating revenues
are generally nigher because more custorners are connected to our
digiribution systerns and natural gas usage is higher in gerfods of
colder weather than in pericds of warmer weather. Occasionally i the
sumimier, Sequent's operating revenues are impacted due to peak
usage by power generaiors in response t¢ summer ensrgy demands.
Seasonality slso affecis the comparison of centain statements of
financial position items such as receivables, unbifed revenue,
inventoties and short-term debt across quarters. However, these
items are comparable when raviewing our annual resulis,

Approximately 70% of these segments’ operating revenues and
79% of these segments’ EBIT for the year ended December 31, 2008
ware generated during the first and fourth quarters of 2009, and arg
reflecied in our consolidated statements of income for the quarters
ended March 31, 2009 and December 31, 2009. Cur base operat-
INg expenses, exciuding cost of gas, interest expense and certain
incentive compensation costs, are incurred relatively equally over
any given year, Thus, our operating results can vary significantly from
quarter to quarter as a result of seasonality.

Results of Operations

We generate nearly all our operating revenues through the sale,
distribution and storage of natural gas. We include in our
consolidated revenues an estimate of revenues from natural gas
distributed, but not yet billed, o residential and commercial
custormers from the latest meter reading date to the end of the
reporting period. No individual customer or industry accounts for a
significant portion of our reverives. The following table provides more
information regarding the components of our operating revenuss.

i millions 2000 2008 2007
Fesiderial $1.081  $1,184 §1,142
Commercial 467 543 500
Transportation 378 459 401
Industrial 185 3e2 250
Other 186 227 200

Total operating revenues $2,317  $2.800  $2.494

We evaluate segment performance using the measures of
operating margin and EBIT, which include the effects of corporate
expense afocations. Our operating margin and £BIT are not meas-
ures that are considered o be calculated in accordance with GAAP.
Operating margin e 2 non-GAAR measure that is calculated as oper-
ating revenues minus cost of gas, which exciudes operation and
maintenance expense, depreciation and amartization, iaxes other
than income taxes, and the gain or loss on the sale of our assets!
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these items are included in our calculation of operating income as
reflected in owr consclidated statements of income. EBIT is also a
non-GAAP measurs that includes operating income, other income
and expenses. ltems that we do not include in EBIT are financing
costs, including interest and debt expense and income taxes, each
of which we avaliate on 2 consclidaied level,

We believe operating margin is a befter indicator than operating
revenues for the contribution resuiting from customer growth in our
distribution cperations segment since the cost of gas can vary
significantly and is generally billed directly t0 our customars. We also
consider operating margin to be a better indicater in our retall energy
operations, wholesale services and energy nvestments segments
since it is & dirsct maasure of operating margin before averhead costs.

We believe EBIT is & useful measursmeant of our operating
segments’ performance because it provides information that can be
used (o evaiuale the effectiveness of our businesses from an
aperational perspeciive, exclusive of the costs to finance those
activities and exclusive of income taxes, neither of which is directly
relevant to the efficiency of those operations. You should not
consider operating margin or EBIT an alternative to, or a more
mearingiut indicator of, our operating performance than operating
ncome or net income atiributable to AGL Resources Inc. as
determined in accordance with GAAPR. In additior, our operating
margin and EBIT measures may nat be comparahle 1o similady titled
measures of other companies.

The tabie below sets forth a reconciligtion of operating margn
o operating income and EBIT to earnings before income taxes and
net income, together with other consolidated financial information
for the last three years.

I mriillions 2008 08 2007
Operating revenues $2,317 82,800  $2,494
Cost of gas 1,142 1,654 1.369
Operating margin 1,175 1,146 1188
Operaling expenses 699 668 656
Cperating income 476 478 489
Other income 8 o) 4
EBIT 485 484 4893
interest oxpense 101 115 125
Earnings before income taxes 384 368G 368
Incorme 1ax expense 135 132 127
Net income 249 287 241
Less net income attributable

ta the noncontrofling interest 27 20 30
Net income attributable o

AGL Hesources Ing, $ 222 & 217 & 211

Over the last three years, on average, we have derived 67% of
our operating segmenis’ EBIT from our reguiated natural gas
distribution business whose rates are approved by state regulatory
commissions. We derived our remaining operating segment's EBIT

for the last three years principally from businesses that ars
complementary to our natural gas distribution business. These
husinesses includke the sale of natural ges to retall customers, natural
gas asset management and the operation of high-cetiverahility
natural gas underground storage as ancillary actvities 10 our
regulated utdity franchises.

The fcllowing chart provides each operating segment’s
percentage contribution (o the total EBIT for our operating segmenis
for the last three years.

e
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E} Retail Energy Operations ﬁ Distribution Gperations

i 2008 our net income attributable to AGL Resources Inc.
increased by $5 milion from the prior year primarily due 1o
decreased interest expense and increased EBIT from retall energy
operations fargely due to higher operating margin. This was partly
offset by decreased EBIT at distribution operations, wholesale
services and energy invesiments., The decrease in EBIT at
distribution aperations was primarily due o increased operating
expenses offset by increased operating margn, The decrease in
EBlT at wholesale services and energy investments was the resull
of decreased operating marging and increased gperating Expenses.

In 2008 owr net income atiributable to AGL Resources inc.
increased by $6 milion from the prior year primarily due 1o
decreased inierest expenges and increased EBIT from wholesake
services and energy Investments largely due to higher operating
margin ofizset by higher operating expenses, This was offset by
decreased EBIT at distribution operations and retall energy
operations dug 1o lower operating marging at both operating
segmients and higher operating expenses at distribution operations,



Interest expense Ouwr decreased ntarest expense over the last
two years was primarily dug 1o lower shori-term interest rates
partially offset by higher average delt. The following table provides
additional detall on interest expense for the last three years and the
primary items that affect year-over-year change.

in erdfions 2008 HNg ivard
interast expense $ 109 $ 115 & 125
Average debt outstanding” §2,230  $0186  §$1,967
Average rate™ 4.5% £.3% £.4%

The difficult economic conditions of the curent recession have
resuited in low U.S. Treasury yields and corresponding indexes on
short-term borrowings. These factors have favorably impacted our
earnings in 2009 and 2008 through reduced shor-term rates that
we pald on ow commercial paper borrowings. For more informa-
tion on the impact that interest rate fluctuations have on our varl-
able-rate debt, see "Interest Rate Risk” in ftem 7A, “Cuantitative and
Quglitative Disclosures About Market Rigk.”

Income tax expense Our income tax expense in 2008 increased
by $3 million or 2% compared ¢ 2008, and increased by $8 million
or 4% in 2008 compared to 2007, These increases were primarily
due to higher consolidated sarnings. Our effective tax rate was
37.8% in 2008 and 2008 and was 37.6% in 2007,
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As aresult of our adoption of new authoritative guidance related
o consolidations, income tax expense and our effective tax rate are
determined from sarnings before income taxes less net income
attributable to the noncontrolling intersst, For more information on
our income texes, including a reconciliation between the siatitory
federal income tax rate and the effective rate. see Note 8.

Operating metrics Selected weather, customer and volume
metrics for 2008, 2008 and 2007, which we consider to be some of
the key performance indicators for cur operating segments, are
presented in the following tables, We measure the effects of weather
on ouwr business through heating degree days. Generally, increassd
heating degree days result in greater demand for gas on our
distribution: systems. However, extended and unusually mid weather
during the heating season can have a significant negative impact on
demand for natural gas. Our customer metrics highlight the average
rumber of customers to which we provide services. This number of
customers can be 'mpacted by naiural gas prices, sconomic
conditions and competition from alternative fuels. Volume metrics
for distribution operations and retall energy operations present the
effects of weather and cur customers’ demand for natural gas.
Wholesale services’ dedy physical sales represent the daily aversge
ratural gas volumes sold 1o its customers,

A=
[
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Weather
2008 v Z00G v B v
2007 normal normal
“aar ended December 31, cotter e ooitier
Hegting degres days ™ MNormai 2005 e 2007 ks faarmn
Georgia 2,648 2,802 2,746 2,368 6% 4%
New Jdersey 4,682 £75 4,646 4777 1% (Mm%
Virginia 3,183 2,312 3,031 3,077 A% E)%
Florica 513 54 416 326 7% (194%
Ternessee 3,636 3,154 3179 2,722 4% 5%
Maryland £.730 4,780 45189 4,621 1% (4%
2008 v, 5 2008 va. 2007 v,
2007 a0 AMITE aormal
{zrier encied Decermtisr 31, [metiely coler it eale g
Healing dagree days ™ Hormal 2008 008 2007 farmen WA swarmer| [warrnsr)
Georgia 1,048 1,181 1092 av7 26% 13% 4%, {181%
New Jersey 1,633 16814 1,728 1,605 8% {1)% 6% (2)%
Virginia 1.100 1,085 1,151 65 15% 3% 5% 121%
Florida 184 158 201 45 347% ()% 23% 73k
Termesses 1,212 1,283 1,281 969 33% 6% 7% 201%
Maryland 1,678 1,662 1,681 1.55 8% 1% 1% (1%

Httwned from the Nitiona Ocepmic snd Atmosphers Admnistranon, Matienal Climat

Urata Centern Noral represents the tea-vess averages from January 20001 December 2005,

Customers
Year ender Deceinber 35,
2004 2008 2007
Distribution Operations
Average end-use custormers (in thousands)
Aflania Gas Light 1,549 1,557 1,558 {0.51% 0.17%
Elizabethtown Gas 273 273 272 D.4
Virginia Natural Gas 273 271 269 0.7 o7
Florida Gity Gas 103 104 104 1.0 -
Chatianocga Gas &2 62 &1 — 1.6
Elkton Gas & &) 6 — —
Total 2,266 2273 2271 (0.3)% 0.1%
Operation and mainienance expenses per customer $188 $145 $145 7% -
EBIT per custorner 144 B145 $148 {1)% 3%
Refail Energy Operations
Average customers fin thousands)
Georgia 504 £26 54D (A% (31%
Onio and Flofida™ 103 122 41 {16)% 198%
Total 607 6848 581 (6% 12%
Market share in Georgia 33% 34% 35% (3% (31%
Volumes
Year ended Dacermber 31, 2008 ve, 7008
Irs tithiers cubie feet (Bof 2008 2008 2067 % change
Distribution Operations
Firm 218 213 211 — 4%
Irterruptible 48 104 108 {6)% 4
Total 216 323 319 (2% 1%
Retail Energy Operations
Georgia firm 40 41 38 {(£1% 5%
Chic and Florida 1t 7 5 57% 40%
Wholesale Services
Daily physical sales (Bof / day) 2.85 2.60 2,35 14% 11%

P morticr of the Ohic cUStOMETs Fepresents CUsIoMer SaLivEEms, WhICH a1 Computed by the sotual defvered volumes divides by the dxpected 2verane customer Usage.

in
T
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Segment information Operziing margin, operating expenses and
EBIT information for each of cur segments are contained in the

Distribution Operations

foflowing tables for the |ast three years. Ir redfiers 2005 s
EBIT - prior year $329 $338
Oinerating Operating margin
In s FHpENTAT Far Increased margins Fom gas storage
2009 _ . carrying amounts at Atlanta Gas Light 8 —
Distribution cperations $ 836 $519 5326 Higher pipeling replacement program
Ratail energy operations 181 76 105 revenues al Atlama Gas Light 6 &
Wi‘\olesgfe senees 113 64 47 Decreased customer growth and usage - (4)
Energy nvestments 46 33 12 Increased revenues from the Hamgton Roads
Corporate” 1 7 ) and Magnolia pipeline projects 2 —
Consofidated $1,175 $699 5485 Other 2 (d)
2008 increase (decrease) in operating margin 18 (2
Districution operations & 818 5463 8329 Operating expenses
Retall energy cperations 148 3 7 Increased (decreased) pension expenses 12 (5)
Wholesale services 122 62 80 Increasad payroll and incentive expenses 12 11
Energy mv?s‘{ments 50 31 9 Increased depreciation expenses 6 &
CO"QD{&*G‘" ‘ 9 () {Decreased) increassd bad debt expenses 1 5
Gonsolidatad 1,148 $668 $484 {Decreased) increased fieet fuel costs {3) ?
2007 Decreased marketing costs {2) {5)
Distribution operations $ 820 B485 $338 Other, overall net due 1o outside senvices,
Retail energy operations 188 e 13 travel and entertainment and customer
Wholesale services 77 43 34 SENVICE BXDENSes 2 )
Energy Envgstmeﬂts 40 25 15 Increase in operating expenses 26 8
Corporate” - 8 7 Increase in other income, primarily from
[ v QO ,
Consclidated 1125 8636 £483 requiatory allowance for funds used during
“IThese are nen-GAAR measwemanis, A reconciliztion of opeEUNG Mg 10 OPEratng NCams N ‘o . .
and EBT Lo earnings before income taxes and netincome is contained in - Results of Operations” construction of Ham pron Roads
nerein, pipeline prolect 5 1
Ancludss intercempany giminations. EBIT - current year $326 %329
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Retail Energy Operations

in mifions 2008 008
EBIT - prior year s 77 3113
Cperating margin
Change in LOCOM adjustment 18 {24
increased (decreased) contribLdions

from the management and optimization

of storage and transporiation assets,

and from retall price spreads 15 )
Change in retall pricing plan mix and

decrease in average number of customers {13} 8
Increased operating margins for Ohip,

Florida and interruptible customers 5 2
Increased average customer usage

and weather 4 t
Other 3 i1
increase {decrease} in operating margin 32 {39)
Operating expenses and other income
{Decreased) increased bad deb? expenses (1} 3
Decreased depreciation expenses - i
increased (decreased) marketing,

compensation, customer care and

other costs 4 {4}
Increase (decrease) in operating expenses 3 )
Other {expense) income {1) t
EBIT - current year $105 $ 77
Wholesale Services
in miiors 2008 2008
EBIT ~ prior year $60 %34
Operating margin
Change In storage hedge gains as a

result of significant forward NYMEX

natural gas price declines in 2008 {35) 24
Change in commercial activity (19 25
increased gains on transportation hedges

from the narrowing of transportation

basis spreadls and changes in park and

toan hedges 27 11
Change In LOCOM adiustment, net of

hedging recoveries 16 {15}
(Decrease) increase in operating margin {11} 45
Operating expenses and other income
increased payroll and other operating costs

due to continued expansion - 13
Decreased) ncreased depreciation expenses {(2) 1
Increased incentive compensation costs 4 5]
Other - 1)
Increase in operating expenses 2 14
EBIT - current year 47 %80

B

the following table indicates the compaonents of wholesale
services' operating margin for 2008, 2008 and 2007,

i erifiors 2008 2008 206U
Commercial activity $ 67 $ 86 §61
Gain on fransportation hedges 43 7 5
Gain on storage hedges 1 38 12
Gain on park and loan hedges — g -
inventory LOCOM, net of

hedging recoveries — (16 {1}
Operating margin 111 S122 &77

For more Information on Sequent’s expected operaiing
revenues rom its storage inventory in 2010 and discussion of
commercial activity, sse description of the ventory roll-out sched-

die in kem 1 “Business.”

Energy investments

in millons 2008 2008
EBIT - prior year $19 3158
Operating margin
{Decreased) increased revenues &

AGL Networks largely due to changes

in network expansion projects and

increased customers in 2008 {1} 7
{Decreased) increased revenues at

Jefferson island (2) 3
Other {1} —
{Decrease) increase in operating margin {4} 10
Operating expenses and other loss
increased payrol and benetits, franchise

fee and outside service costs due to

expansion at AGL Networks 1 2
increased legal and other expenses

at Jefferson tstand 1 3
Increased depreciation expenses e 1
increase in operating expenses 2 5
Increased other expenses 1 —
EBIT - current year $12 %16




Liquidity and Capital Resources

Overview Our primary sowrces of liquidity are cash provided by
operating actividies, short-term Horrowings under our commercial
paper program {which is supported by our Credit Faciliny! and
borrowings under subsidiary fines of credit, Cur capital market
strategy has continued o focus on maintaining a strong
consclidated statement of financial position; ensuring ample cash
resources and daily iquidity;, accessing capital markets at favorable
times as needed; managing critical business risks,; and maintaining
& balanced capial structure through the approprizie issuance of
equity of long-term debt securities.

Our lssuance of various securitfes, including long-term and short-
tarm debt, is subject 1o custormnary approval, or raview by stafe and
federat regulatory bodies including state pubiic service cormmissions,
the SEC and the FERC, Furthermore, a substantial portion of our
consolidated agsets, samings and cash flow g derived from the
operaticn of our regulated utity subsidiaries, whose legal authority 1o
pay dividends or make other distrbutions to us is subject fo reguiation,

We believe the amounts avalable to us under cur Credit Faciiity
and the issuance of debt and equity securities together with cash
provided by operating activities will continue to aliow us 1o mest our
needs for working capital, pension contributions, construction
expendiures, anticipated debt redemptions, interest payments on
delzt obligations, dividend payrments, common share repurchases and
ather cash needs through the next several years, Neverthelass, our
ability to satisfy our working capital recuirements and debt service
obiigations, or fund planned capital expenditures, will substantially
depend upan our future operating performance fwhich will be affected
by prevaling economic conditions), and financlal, business and other
factors, some of which are beyvond our condrol.

We will continue to evaluate our need to increase avalable
liquidity based on our view of working capital requirements, including
the impact of changes in natwal gas prices, quidity requirerents
established by rating agsncies and oiher factors. See ftem 1A, "Risk
Factors,” for additional information on items that could impact our
liquidity and capital resolrce requirements.

The following iable provides a summary of our operaling,
nvesting and financing activities for the iast three years,

n miliors 2009 2008 207
Net cash provided by {used inj:
Operating activities $592 3 2PV 0§ B3VY
Investing activities (476) (372 {253)
Financing activities {106) 142 (122]

Net increase (decreass) in cash
and cash equivalenis

$10 & 3} § 2

Cash Flow from Operating Activities We prepare our statement
of cash flows using the indirect method. Under this method, we
reconcile net income to cash flows from operating activities by
adiusting net income for those fems that impact net income bt
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may not resuit in actual cash receipts or paymenis during the period.
These reconciling items include depreciation and amortization,
changes in derivative financial instrument azsets and liabilities,
deferred income taxes and changes inthe consolidated statements
of finanaial position for working capital fromy the beginning 1o the end
of the period.

Our operations gre seasonal in nature, with the Dusiness
depending to a great extent on the first and fourth guarters of each
year, AS 2 result of this seasonality, our natural gas inventories are
usually at their highest levels in Noverriber each year. and largely are
dranwn down in the healing season, providing a source of cash as
this asset ¢ used to satisfy winter sales demand. The injections in
and price fuctustions of our patural gas inventories, which mest
customer demand during the winter heating season, can cause
significant variations in our cash fow from operations from period
o period and are reflected in changes 1o our working capital,

Year-gver-year changes in our operating cash flows are
attributable  primarily 1o working capital changes within our
distribution operations, retall energy operations and wholesale
services segments resutting from the impact of weather, the price of
naiurat gas, the timing of customer collections, payments for natural
gas purchases and deferred gas cost recoveries as our business
has grown and prices for natural gas have increased, The increase
or decrease in the price of natural gas directly impacis the cost of
gas stored irvinventory.

2009 compared to 2008 In 2008, our net cash flow provided
from operating activities was $592 million, an increase of $365 miion
or 161% from 2008, The primary contributor to the recovery of
working capial during 2009 was significantly lower natural gas
commodity prices as compared to 2008. During 2008, the cost of
natural gas increased significantly during the natural gas storage
injection season, This resulted in a higher cost of inventories in 2008
as compared to 2008, and conseguently Mgher customer bills and
accounts regeivable at the end of 2008, The higher receivable
balances and inventory costs were bilied 1o and/or collected from
custamers during 2008, which resulied in a $173 miion increase in
cash from the collection of our natural gas receivables and a
$103 miflion increase in cash from our inventory withdrawals.

As g resull of the lower natural gas prices during 2009, we used
fess cash as we refiled our natural gas inventories, The lower naturad
ges prices and associated inventory costs reduced customer bills at
the end of 2009, allowing us to reduce our working capital nesds.
Alzo contributing to the higher operating cash flows was the retur
of cash cofiateral requirements posted during 2008 due to unrealized
hedge losses resulting from the dramatic decline in natural gas
prices during the second half of 2008 and into 2008. Cash collateral
requirements decreased $200 million for our derivative fnancial
instrument activities &1 Sequent and SouthStar due to the change in
hedge values as forward NYMEX curve prices shifted downward in
2008 and as positions seflied.

2008 compared to 2007 In 2008, our net cash flow provided
from operating actvities was $227 million, & decrease of $150 milion

eif
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or 40% from 2007, This decrease was primarly a result of increased
working capital requirements of $104 milion, principally driven by
increased cash used for inventory purchases which were impacted
by riging natural gas prices during the first half of 2008,

Cash Flow from Investing Activities Cur net cash used in
investing activities consisted prmarily of PPAE expenditures, The
majority of our PPEE expendiiures are within our distribution
operations segment, which mcludes our invesiments in new
construction and infrastructure improvements.

Cur sgtimated PPEE expendiiures in 2010 and actual PR&E
expenditures in 2008, 2008 and 2007 are shown within the following
categories and are presented in the table below,

» Base business -~ new construction and infrastructure improve-
merts at our distribution operations segment

» Natural gas storage -~ salt-dome cavern expansions at Golden
Triangle Storage and Jefierson Island

¢ Hampton Roads — Virginia Natural Gas’ pipeline prolect, which
connects its northern and southern systems

= Regulatory infrastructure programs — Programs that update or
expand cur distribution systems and liquefied naturad gas faclities
toimprove system relizbility and meet operatonal flexibility and
arowth, These programs include the pipeline replacement program
and STRIGE at Atlanta Gas Light and Clizabethtown Gas™ utifity
infrasiruciure erhancements program.

* Magnolia project - pipelines which diversify our sources of natural
gas by connecting our Georgia servioe terrtory to the Elba lstand
LNG terminal

© Other — primarily includes information technology, building and
leasehold Improvements and AGL Networks' telecommunication
expenditures

In miliers 2007 2002 2008 20ionm
Base business F1358  $131 $132  $185
Natural gas storage 16 64 as 5]
Harnpton Roads 5 48 a3 -
Reguiatory infrastruciure programs 41 70 76 1hb
Meagnolia project 43 -
Other 82 58 37 &1
Total $258 8372 %476 3460

i)

in 2009, our PP&E expenditures were $104 million or 28%
higher than in 2008. This was primarily dus to $43 million expended
for the completed Magnolia projesi, $45 million in ncreased
spending for the completed Hampton Roads pipeline project and
an increase in our natural gas storage project expenditures of
&31 miliion as we continued construction of cur Golden Triangie
Storage faciity. This was largely offset by decreased expenditures of
522 milion for the other cafegory, primarily on information
technology and building and leasehold improvements,

In 2008, our PPAE expenditures were $113 million or 44%
higher than in 2007, This was primariy due to an increase in our
natural gas storage project expenditures of 348 mikon as we began
constructicn of our Golden Triangle Storage facility, $43 miffion in
increased expenditures for the Hampton Roads project and
increased expenditures of $29 million for the pipeline replacernent
program at Atlanta Gas Light as we replaced larger-diameter pipe in
more densely populated areas. This was offset by decreased
expendituras of §7 milion on our base business and other projects.

Our estimated expendiiures for 2070 include discretionary
spending for capital projects principally within the base business,
natural gas storage and other categories, We continually evaluate
whether to proceed with these projecis, reviewing them in relation
to factors including our authorized returng on rate base, other
retirns on invested capital for proiecis of a similar nature, capiia
struCture and credil ratings, among others. We will make
adiustments to these discretionary expenditures as necessary based
upan these factors.

Cash Flow from Financing Activities Our capitalization and
financing strategy is infended fo ensure that we are properly
capitalized with the appropriate mix of equity and debt securities.
This strategy includes active managament of the percentage of total
debt relative to tolal capitadization, appropriate mix of debt with
fixed to floating interest raies (our variable debt target is 20% to
45% of total debt), as well as the term and interest rate profile of our
debt securities.

As of December 31, 2008, our varisble-rate debt was
$762 milion or 30% of our totad debt, compared to $1,026 milion
or 40% as of December 31, 2008, This decrease was principally
due 1o lower natural gas prices during the 2009 inventory injection
seasan and thus requiring lower working capital needs, as well as
our issuance of 3800 million 0 senior notes in 2000, As of
December 31, 2008, our Credit Facility and commercial paper
borrowings were $801 million or 22% lower than the sarme time last
year, primarily a result of higher working capital requirements in
2008, driven by higher natural gas prices during the 2008 inventory
injection season, For more information on our debt, see Note 6.

Our cash fiows from financing activities reflect a net use of cash
of $106 millien in 2008 as compared to & nat source of cash of
$142 million in 2008, This change primarily reflects the repayment in
2009 of short-term debt outstanding at the end of 2008 coupled
with our net borrowing last vear to meet working capital needs due
e higher natural gas prices.

Credit Ratings We strive to maintsin or improve our credit
ratings on our debt to manage our existing financing cost and
enhance our abllity to raise additional capital on favorable terms.
Factors we consider imbortanT in assessing our crecht ratings include
our statements of financial positon leverage, capital spending,
earnings, cash flow generation, avallable fquidity and overall
business risks. We do not have any irigger evenis in our debt
instruments that are ted to changes in owr speciied credit ratings or



ouwr stock price and have not enfered into any agreerments that
wolid require Us 10 issue squity bassed on credi ratings or other
rigger events. The following table surnmarizes our credit ratings as
of December 31, 2008,

DEF eela 1)
Corparate rating A-
Commercial paper A2 Peg F2
Senior unsecured BEB+ Bag? A=
Ratings outlook Stable Stable Stabile

A credit rating is not a recemmendation 10 buy, sell or holg
securities. The higheast investment grade credit rating for S&F is AAA,
to revision or withdrawal at any time by the assigning rating
organization, and each rating should be evaluated independently of
any other rating. We cannot ensure that a rating will remain in effect
for any given period of dme or that a rating will not be lowered or
withdrawn entirely Dy a raling agency if, in its judgment, circum-
stances so0 warrant. If the raling agencles downgrade our ratings,
particularly below investment grade, it may significantly irmit our
access o the commercial paper market and our borrowing costs
would increase. In addition, we would bkely be required 1o pay &
higher inferest rale in future financings, and our potential pact of
investors and funding sources would decrease.

Default Events Our debt instruments and other financial
obligations include provisions that, if not complied with, could require
early payment, additional collateral support or simitar actions. Our
most important default events include maintalining covenants with
respect 10 a maximum leverage ratio, insolvency events, nonpayment
of scheduled principal or interest cayments, and acceleration of other
financiat ohiigations and change of control provisions.

Our Credit Facility has financial covenants that require us o
miaintain a ratio of total debt to {otal capitalization of ne greater than
70%; however, our goal is to maintain this ratio at levels between
50% and 60%. Our ratio of total debt to total capitalization
calcuiation contained in our debt covenant includes standby letters
of credit, surety bonds and the exclusion of other comprehensive
ncome pension adiustments. Cur debt-to-eguity calculation, as
defined by our Credit Faciiity, was 57% &t December 31, 2008 and
59% at December 31, 2008. These amounts are within our required
and targeted ranges. The components of our capital structure, as
caleutated from our consolicated statements of financial position,
as cf the dates indicated, are provided In the following tabie,

i mifong Dec. 31, 2009 Dee. 31, 2008
Short-term debt $ 602 14% $ 866 20%
Long-term debt 1,874 45 1.675 40
Total debt 2,576 59 2,541 a0
Equity 1,819 a1 1684 40

Total capitalization $4.385 100% $4.225 100%
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We currently comply with alf existing debt provisions and
covenanis. We believe that goccomplishing our capitalization
objectives and maintaining sufficient cash flow are necessary to
maintain our investmeant-grade credit ratings and (¢ allow us access
o capital at reasonable costs,

Short-term Debt Cur short-term debt is compossd of
borrowings and payments under our Credit Faclity and commercial
paper program, lnes of oredit and payments of the current portion of
aur capital leases. Our short-term debt financing generally increases
between June and December because our payments for natural gas
and pipeline capacity are generally made to suppliers prior to the
collection of accounts receivable from our customers, We typically
reduce short-terrm debt balances in the spring because a significant
portion of cur current assets are converted into cash &t the end of the
winter heating season,

Qur commercial paper borrowings are supperted Ly our
%1 pilion Credit Faclity, which expires in August 2011, Our
supplemental $140 milion Credit Facility expired in September
2009. We have the oplion to request an increase in the aggregate
principal amount availakle for borrowing under the $1 billiors Credit
Facility to $1.25 billion on not more than three occasions during
each calendar year.

We expect to begin the process of renewing our Credit Faciity
during 2010, Because of the current conditions in the credit markets,
we are anficipating that the cests of a renewed Credit Facility will be
significantly higher and that the term could be significantly shorter
than the S-year term of the current facility. These market conditions
could alsc result in the need for us to increase the number of
financial institution participants 1o provide a similar amount of
financial commitments as cur existing Credit Facility. As part of our
renewsdl process we will considear whether the facility should increase
or decrease from its clrrent capacity of $1 biffion.

SouthStar has a $75 milion ne of credit which is used for it
working capital and general corporate needs, Additionally, Sequent
has & $5 million line of credit that bears interest at the London
interbank offered rate {LIBOR) rate plus 3.0%. Sequents ine of credit
is used solely for the posting of margin deposits for NYMEX
transactions and is unconditionally guarantead by us.

The lenders under our Credit Facility and lines of credit are
major inancial ingtitutions with committed balances and investment
grade credit ratings as of December 31, 2008 as indicated in the
following tatle. Investment grade, in the context of bond rafings, is
the rating level above which institutional investors are authorized to
invest (a bond judged fikely enough 10 meet payment obligations
that banks and persions are allowed to invest init).

o
e
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Lercisr «atng
ISEF £ Mooyt

AAL/ Aaa

AA S Aa 328 3%
AL A £82 54%
BB/ Baa 165 15%

Total 51,075 100%

Based on current credit market conditions, it is possible that
one of maore lending commitments could be unavalizble to us if the
lencer defautied due (o lack of funds or insolvency. Howsver, based
on our current assessment of cur lenders’ creditworthiness, we
believe the risk of lender default is minimal.

Ag of December 31, 2008 we had no outstanding borowings
under our Credit Facility. As of Dacember 31, 2008, we had
$500 million of outstanding borrowings under the Credit Fackity. We
normmnally access the commercial paper markets to finance our
working capital needs, However, during the third and fourth quarters
of 2008, adverse developments in the gicbal financial and credit
markels made & more difficult for us to access the commerclal paper
market at reasonable rates. As aresult, at times we relied instead
uponr our Credit Facility for our licuidity and capital resource needs.
The credit markets improved in 2009, allowing us to resume cur
commercial paper borrowings.

Increasing natural gas cormmaodity prices can have a significant
impact on our liquidity and working capital requirements, Based on
current natural gas prices and our expected purchases during the
upcoming injection season. a $1 increase per Mcf in natural gas
prices could result in an additional $50 1o $70 miflion of working
capital requirernents during the peak ¢f the heating season based
upen our current injection plan. This range is sensitive o the timing
of storage injections and withdrawals, collateral requirements ang
ow portfolio pesition.

Long-term Debt Our long-term debt matures more than one
year from the staternentg of financial position date and consisis of
medium-term notes, senior notes, gas faclity revenue bonds, and
capital ieases. The following represents our long-term debt activity
over the last three years,

(Gas Facility Revenue Bonds
« In Jine 2008, we refinanced $122 million of our gas facility
revenue bonds, $47 milion due October 2022, $20 million due
October 2024 and $55 million due June 2032, There was no
change 1o the maturity dates of these bonds. The 355 million
ond had an interest rate that resets daily and the 547 million
and $20 million bords had a 35-day auction period where the
iMerest rate adjusted every 35 days. Both the bonds with
principal amounts of $47 million and $55 million now have

interest rates that reset daeily and the bond with a principal

amount of §20 milion has an interest rate that resets waekly,

The interest rates at Dacember 31, 2008, ranged from 0.2%

to 0.4%.

= In Septermber 2008, we refinanced 338 miflion of our gas facilty
reverdie bonds due June 2026, The bonds had a 3B-day
auction period where the interest rate adjusted every 35 days
now they have interest rates that reset dafy, The maturiy date
of theze bonds remains June 2026, The interest rate at
December 31, 2008, was 0.2%.
Senior notes
+ In December 2007, AGL Capital issued $125 miltion of 6.375%
senior notes. The proceeds of the note issuances, equal to
approximately $123 million, were used o pay down short-term
indebtedness incurred under our cornmercial paper program.
« In August 2009, AGL Capital Issued $300 miflion of 10-year
sentor nates at an interest rate of 5.25%. The net proceeds
from the offering wers approxdmatety 32487 million. We used the
net proceseds from the sale of the senior notes to repay a
portion of our short-term debt,
Notes pavable to Trusts
& In July 2007, we used the proceads from the sale of commercial
paper to pay AGL Capital Trust | the $75 miflion principal amount
of 8.17% junior subordinated debentures plus a $3 million
premium for early redemption of the junior subordinated
debentures, and o pay a $2 milion note representing our
commion securities interest in AGL Capital Trust [,
Mediurn-term nofes
s InJanuary 2007, we used proceeds from the sale of commer-
cial paper to redeem $11 million of 7% medium-term rotes

previously scheduled to mature In January 2015,

Nonconirolling Interest A cash distribution for SouthStar's
dividend distribudions to Piedmont of $20 milkon in 2009, $30 mifion
in 2008 and $23 million in 2007 was recorded in our consclidated
statement of cash flows as a financing activity,

Dividends on Common Stock Cur commoen stock dividend
payments were 3127 milion in 2009, $124 million in 2008, and
%123 milion in 2007. The increases were generafly the result of annus
dvidend increases of $0.04 per share for each of the last two years.
Cur average dividend yield over the last three vears was 4.8%, which
is slightly higher than the average 4.0% dividend yisid of our paer
companies, Our dividend payout ratlo was 80% in 2009, 59% In
2008 and 60% in 2007. We expect that our dividend payout ratio wil
remain consistent with the dividend payout ratios of cur peer
companies, which is currently an average of 63%. For information
about restrictions on our abllity t¢ pay dividends on our common
stack, see Note 1 "Accounting Policles and Methods of Application.”



Treasury Shares In February 2008, our Board of Directors
adthorized a plan 10 purchase up to 8 million shares of our
outstanding common stock over a five-year pericd. These
purchases are intended principally to offset share issuances under
our smployes and non-employae director incentive compensation
plans and our dividend reinvesiment and stock purchase plans,
Stock purchases undsr this program may be made in the open
markat or in private ransactions al times and n amounts that we
deem appropriate. There is no guaranies as (o the exact number of
common shares that we will purchase, and we can terminate or imit
the program at any time,

=or the years ended December 31, 2008 and 2008, we did not
purchase shares of our commaon stock. During the same perfod In
2007, we purchased approxmately 2 million shares of our commaon
stock at a weighted average cost of $39.66 per comwnon share and
artagaregate cost of $80 million. We currently anticinate holding the
purchased shares as treasury shares, For more information on our
commorn share repurchases see ltem 5 *Market for the Registrant's
Common Equity, Related Stockholder Matiers and lssuer Purchases
of Eguity Securities.”

Shelf Registration In August 2007, we fled shelf
registration with the SEC, which expires in August 2010. The debt
secwities and related guarantees will be issued by AGL Capital
under aryindenture dated as of February 20, 2001, as supplemented
and miodified, as necessary, among AGL Capital, AGL Resources

=3
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indenture prowvides for the issuance from time (o tme of debt
securities in an urlimited doliar amount and an untmited number of
series, subject to owr Credit Facility fnancial covenants related to
total debt 1o total caphtalfzation. The debt secuwrities will be
guaranteed by AGL Resowrces. In 2010, we expect 10 fle a new
shelf registration statement with the SEC that would expire in 2013.

Contractual Obligations and Commitments We have incurred
varicus contractual obligations and financial commitmants in the
normal course of our operating and financing activities that are
reasonably likely to have a material effect on kquidity or the availabifity
of requirerments for capital resources. Contractual obligations include
future cash payments requlired under existing contractusl arrange-
ments, such as debt and lease agreements.

These cbligations may result from both general firancing
aciivities and from commercial arrangements that are directly
supported by related revenue-producing activities, Contingent
financial commitments represent obligations that become payable
only If centain predefined events oceur, such as financig! guarartees,
and include the nature of the guarantee and the maximum potential
amount of fture payments that could be reqguired of us as the
guarantor. As we do for other subsiciares, AGL Resourses provides
guarariees to certain gas suppliers for SouthStar in support of
payment obligations. The following table illustrates our expected
future contractual chiigation payments such as dabt and leass

and The Bank of New York Trust Company, N.A., as tustes. The agreements, and commitments and contingencies as of
December 31, 2009,
2014 2047 2018
& &
In reiffions Textad 200 e 2014 thereafier
Recorded contractual obligations:
Long-term debt $1,974 3 - $318 225 $1,431
Short-term debt 602 602 - e -
Pipeline replacement program costs™ 210 55 1179 44 —
Environmental remediation liabiliies™ 144 25 54 38 27
Totl $2.830 3682 $483 $307 $1.458
Unrecorded contractual obligations and commitments:”
Pipeiine charges, storage capacity and gas supply® $2.049 3510 717 %354 $ 473
Interest charges™ 1,014 109 176 156 573
Operating leases 115 28 40 14 33
Asset management agresmentg™ 37 23 14 - —
Fansion contributions 21 21 — - -
Standby letters of credit, performance/surety bonds 19 18 1 - —_
Total $3,255 $709 3843 $524 $1,079

*Hncludes charges recoveraple through rate nder mechanisms.
Fin accordEnct with GAAR these fems

#{harges recoveratie through s natural gas cost recovery mechas

sets of 16 Bof at foating gus pr

Gas Comrnadily purchase oo aleulated s

A0 O FREENT Faie &

A Ecaing rate debris b Dwocembe: 31, 2004,
4

stetements of fnan

al position hat will Be paid it 20714

#Represent frec-fee Minmum paymsnts or Serpent's caset Mansgement agreemants

ot reflectad i our consoldated swtements of tnancial posion.,
1 or afternalively tifled o Mareters, and ncitcdes oe
s orward natural gas
w! this miaterity of the underhang oedt |

e Charges associatsd with Seqguerd. The gas supply amount nchides Scuthtar
e wE O semiber 31, O vatued at S57 mlion,
rigner], As of Decetnber 31, 2

G, we Mave B41 miion of acorued interest on oy conscliciated
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Operating leases. Ws have certain operating leases with
provisions for step rent or escalation payments and certain isase
conceassions. We account for these leases by recognizing the future
rminimum lease payments on a straight-line basis over the regpective
minimum lease terms, in accordance with authoritative guidance
related to leases. However, this accounting treatment does not affect
the future annual operating lease cash obiigations as shown herem,
We expect to fund these obligations with cash fiow from operating
and financing activities,

Standby letters of credit and performance/surety bonds.
We alsc have incurred various financial commitments in the normat
corse of business, Contingent financial commitments represent
chiigations that become payable only if certain predefined events
cecur, such as financial guarantess, and include the nature of the
guarantee and the maximurm potential amount of future payments
thal could be reguired of us as the guarantor. We woid expect 10
fund these contingent financial cormmitments with operating and
financing cash flows,

Pension and postretirement obligations, Ganerally, our
funding policy is to contribute annually an amount that will at least
equal the minimum amount required to comply with the Fension
Protection Act. Additionally, we calculate any required pension
cantributions using the projected unit credit cost method, However,
additional voluntary contributions are made from time {6 time as
considered necessary. Contributions are intended to provide not
only for benefits aftributed to service to date but alse for those
expected to be earned in the future, The contributions represent
the portion of the postretirement costs we are responsible for under
the terms of our plan and minimum funding reguired by state
requlatory comimissions.

The state regulatory commissions have phase-ins that defer a
portion of the postretirament benefit expense for future recovery, We
recorded a regulatory asset for these future recoveries of $10 million
as of December 31, 2000 and $11 miicn as of December 31, 2008,
in addition, we recorded a regulatory liability of $5 milion as of
December 31, 2008 and 35 milion as of December 31, 2008 for
our expecied expenses under the AGL Pestretirement Plan, See
Note 3 "Emploves Benefit Plans,” for additional information about
our pension and postretrerment plans.

in 2008, we contributed $24 mifion to our qualified pension
plans, In 2008, we did not make & contribution, 28 one was not
required. Based on the cuarent funding status of the plans, we would
be required to make & minimum coniribution o the plans of
approximately $27 millien In 2010, We are planning fo make
additional contributions in 2010 up to $17 million, for atotal of up to
$38 million, in order to preserve the current level of benefits under
the plans and in accordance with the funding reguirements of the
Pension Protection Act.

[ 2
“

Critical Accounting Estimates

The preparation of our financial statements requires us {0 make
estimates and judgmerts that affect the reported amounts of asssts,
iabifties, ravenues and expaenses and the related discinsures of
contingent assets and liabilittes, We base our estimates on historicat
experience and various other assumptions that we believe (o be
reasonable undar the circumstances. and we evaluate our estimates
on an ongoing basis. Our actual resulls may differ from our
estimates. Each of the following critical accounting estimates
involves complex situatons requiring a high degree of judgment
sither in the application and interpretation of existing terature or in
the development of estimatas that impact ouwr financial statements.

Pipeline Replacement Program Liabilities Atlanta Gas Light
was ordered by the Georgia Commission {through a joint stiputation
and a stbsecpient setfierment agreerment Detween Atlanta Gas Light
and the Georgia Commission staff} o undertake a pipefine
replacement program that would replace all bare steel and cast ron
pipe in s systern. Approximately 31 miles of castiron and 303 miles
of bare steel pipe still reguire replacement. If Atlanta Gas Light does
not perfarm in accordance with the initial and amended pipeline
replacement program stipulation, B can be assessed certain
nonperformance penalties, ~owever to date, Atanta Gas Light is in
full compliance.

The stipulation also provides for recovery of all prudent costs
incurred under the program, which Atlarta Gas Light has recorded
as a regulatory asset. The regulatory asset has two components:

= the costs incurred to daie that have not yet been recovered
through rate riders
« the future expected costs to be recovered through rate riders

The determination of future expected costs associated with our
pipeline replacement program involves iudgment. Factors that must
be considered in estimating the future expected costs are projected
capital expenditure spending, including labor and material costs,
and the remalning infrastructure fogtage to be replaced for the
remaining years of the program. We recorded a long-term liability of
3155 miflion as of December 31, 2009 and $140 millicn as.of
Decermber 31, 2008, which represented engineering estimates for
remaining capital expenditure costs in the pipeline replacement
program. As of December 31, 2008, we had recorded a current
liability of $68 million, representing expected pipeline replacement
prograrn expenditures for the next 12 months. We report these
estimates on an urdiscounted basis. If Atlarta Gas Light's pipeline
replacement program expenditures, subject to future recovery, were
$10 million higher or lower ts incremental expected annugl revenues
would have changed by approximately $1 miflion.



Environmental Remediation Liabilities We historically reported
estimates of future remediation costs based on probabilistic models
of potential costs, We report these estimates on an undiscounted
basts. As wa cortinue 1o conduct the actual rermediation and enter
into cleanup contracts, we are increasingly able to provide
convertional engineering estimates of the likely costs of many
glements of the remediation program, These estimates contain
various engnearing uncerainties, and we continuousty atternpt 1o
refine and update these engineering estimates. The following table
provides more information on our former cperating sites:

Sost

agtimate Ampun next Itwv:e\\';
I miflions FENGR BODa morihs
Georgia and Florida $ 84 -5%113 g 84 $13
New Jersey 69~ 134 i} i
North Carolina 19~ 16 11 1
Total $144 - 3263 3144 $25

We have confirmed 13 former operating sites in Georgia and
Fiorida where Atlanta Gas Light owned or operated &l or part of
these sites. One additional former MGP site has been recently
identified adiacent to an existing MGP remediation site. Precise
engineering solf and groundwater clean up estimates are not
available and considerable vartability exists with this potential new
site, As of Decernber 31, 2008, the sofl and sediment remadiation
program was substantially complete for all Georgia sites, except for
a few remamning areas of recently discovered impact, athough
groundwater cleanup continues. Investigation is concluded for one
ohase of the Ortando, Florida site; however, the Environmental
Frotection Agency has not approved the clean up plans. For
elements of the Gecorgia and Florida sites where we still cannot
provide engineering cost estimates, considerable variability remains
in future cost estimates.

Additionally, we have identified six former operating sites in New
Jersey where Elizabeihtown Gas owned or operated all or part of
these sites. Material cleanups of these sites have not been
complated nor are precise estimates available for future deanup
costs and thersfore considerable variability remains in future cost
estimates. We have also identified a site in North Carolina, which is
subject 10 a rernediation order by the North Carolina Department of
Erergy and Natural Resources. There are no cost recovery
mechanisms for the environmental remediation of this site.

Atlarta Gas Light's environmental remediation fabiity is ncluded
in its corresponding reguiatory asset. Alanta Gas Light's estimate
does not include other potential expenses, such as unasserted
property damage, personal injury or natural resource damage claims,
unbudgsted legal expensas, or other costs for which it may be held
flable but with respect to which the amount cannot be reasonably
forecast, Atlanta Gas Light's recovery of environmental remediation
costs is subject to review by the Georgla Commission, which may
seek to dissllow the recovery of some expenses.
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In New Jersey, Elizabethtown Gas is currently conducting
remediation  activities with oversight from the New Jersey
Department of brwironmental Protection. The New Jersey BPU has
authorized Elizabethtown Gas to recover prudently incurred
remedigtion costs for the New Jersey properties through its
remediation adjustmant clause. Elizgbethiown Gas has been
sucoessful in recovaring a portion of remeadiztion costs incurrad in
New Jersey from ils insurance carriers and continues to pursue
adiditional recovery, As of December 31, 2008, the variation between
the amounts of the environmental remediation cost lability recorded
in the consolidated statements of financial position and the
asscoiated regulatory asset is due 1o expenditures for environmental
investigation and remediation excesding recoveries from ratepayers
and insurance carriers.

We also own remediation sites lncated outside of New Jersey.
One site, in Elizabeth City, North Caroling, is subject to an order by
the North Carcling Department of Ervironment and Natural
Resources. There is one other site in North Carclina where
investigation and remediation is pessible, although no regulatory
order exists and we do not believe costs associated with this sfte
can be reasonably estimated,

With respect te these costs, we currently pursue or intend o
pursue recovery from ratepayers (except for the Elizapeth City, North
Carolina site, former owners and operators and insurance carriers.
While we have been successful in recovering a portion of these
rermediation costs from our insurance carrers, we are not able fo
express a belief as to the success of addiional recovery efforts. We
are working with the reguiatory agencies fo manage our remediation
costs s a8 to mitigate the impact of such coste on beth ratepayers
and sharehciders.

Derivatives and Hedging Activities The authoritative guidance
related to derivatives and hedging established accounting and
reporting standards which reguire that every derivative financial
nstrurment (including certain derivative instruments embedded in
other contracts) pe recorded In the staterments of financial position
ag aither an asset or kabllity measured al its falr value, However, ffthe
derivative transaction gualifies for and is designated as a normal
purchase and sale, it is exempled fom the falr value accounting
freatment of this guidance, and is accourted for using traditional
accrual accounting.

The guidance requires that changes in the derivative's fair value
be recognized currently in earnings unless specific hedge
accounting criteria are met, If the derivatives meet those criteria, the
guidance allows a derivative’'s gains and losses 1o offsst related
resufis on the hedged Hem in the income staterment in the case of
a fair value hedge. or to record the gains and losses in OCl until the
hedged transaction occurs in the case of a cash flow hedge.
Additionally, the guidance requires that a company formally
designaie a derivative as a hedge as well as document and agsess
the effectiveness of derivatives associated with transactions that
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receive hedge accounting treatrent. The guidance applies 1o gas
commaodity confracts executed by Sequent and SouthSiar The
quidance also applies o gas commadity contracis executed by
Clizabethtown Gas under a New Jersey BPU authorized hedging
program that requires gaing and [osses on these dervatives are
reflected in purchased gas costs and ulimately billed to customers,
Our derivalive and hedging activities are described in further detad
in Note 2 and ltem 1 "Business.”

Commaodity-related Derivative Instruments Ws are
exposed {0 risks associated with changes in the market price of
natural gas. Through Seguent and SouthStar, we usge derivative
financial instruments 1o reduce ow exposure impact 1o ouwr resulis
of operations due 1o the risk of changes in the price of natural gas.

Sequent recognizes the change in value of a derivative financial
instrument as an unrealized gain or loss in revenues n the period
when the market value of the Instrument changss, Seguent
recogrizes cash inflows and outows associated with the settlernsnt
of ks risk management activities in operating cash flows, and reports
these settlements as recelvables and pevables in the statements of
financial position separately from the risk management activities
reported as enargy marketing receivables and trade payables.

We atternpt to mitigate substantially alf of cur commaodity price
risk associated with Sequent's naturat gas storage portiolio and lock
i the economic margin at the tme we enter imto purchase
transactions for our stored natural gas. We purchase natural gas for
siorage when the current market price we pay plus storage costs is
tess than the market price we could receive in the future. We lock in
the economic margin by seling NYMEX futures contracts or other
OTC dervatives in the forward months corresponding with our
withdrawal perlods. We use contracts to sell natural gas at that
future price toiock in the operating revenuas we will ultimately realize
when the stored natural gas is actually sold. These contracts mest
the dafinition of a derivative under the authoritative guicance relatad
to derivatives and hedging.

The purchase, storage and sale of natural gas are accounted
far differently from the derivatives we use 1o mitigate the commaodity
price risk associated with our storage portfolio. That difference in
accounting can resulf In volatility in our reported operating margin,
even though the economic margn is essentially unchanged from
the date we entered into the transactions. We do not currently use
hedge accounting under the authoriiative guidance to account for
this activity,

Naturgl gas that we purchase and inject inte storage is
accounted for at the lower of weighted average cost or market valus.
Under current accounting ouidance, we recognize a loss in any
perod when the market orice for natural gas is tower than the
carrying amount of our purchased natural gas inventory. Costs 1o
store the natural gas are recognized in the period the costs are
incurred. YWe recegnize revenues and cost of natural gas sold in our
staternent of consolidated income in the period we seli gas and it is
dedivered out of the storage facility,

The derivatives we use 1o mitigate commodity price risk and
subgtantially fock in the operating margin upon the sale of stored
natural gas are accounted for at fair value and marked to market
each pericd, with changes n fafr value recognized as unrealized
gains or lcsses in the period of change. This difference in
accounting — the lower of weighted average cost or market basis
for our storage nventory versus the fair value accounting for the
dervatives used to mitigate commaodity price risk — can and does
result in volatility in our reported earnings.

Over time, gaing or losses on the sale of storage inventory wil
be substantially offset by losses or gains on the dervatives, resufting
in realization of the economic profit margin we expected when we
entared into the transactions. This accounting difference causes
Seguent’s earnings on its storage posttions o be affected by naturgl
gas price changes, even though the economic profits remain
essertally unchanged.

SouthSiar also uses derivative Instruments {0 Manags expo-
sures arising from changing commaodity prices. SouthStars objective
for holding these derivatives is to minimize volatifity in wholesale
commodity natural gas prices. A portion of ScuthStar's dervative
transactions are designated as cash flow hedges under authoriiative
guicance related to derivatives and hedging. Derivative gains or
iosses arsing from cash flow hedges are recorded in OCH and &
reclassified into garnings In the same period the underlying hedged
temis refiected in the income statermnent, As of December 31, 2009,
the ending balance in OC! for derivative tfransactions designated as
cash flow hedges under the guidance was a loss of $4 million, net of
noncontroling interest and taxes. Any hedge inefiectiveness, defined
&8 when the gains or losses on the hedging instrument do not offset
the losses or gaing on the hedged item, is recorded into earnings in
the peried In which it ocours, SouthStar currently has minimal hedge
ineffectiveness. SouthStar's remaining derivative instruments are not
designated as hadges under the guidance. Therefore, changes in
their fair value are recorded in earnings in the period of change.

SouthStar also enters into weather derivative instruments in
order to stabilize operating margins in the event of warmer-than-
normal and colder-than-normal weather in the winter months, These
contracts are accounted for using the intringic value method under
the authoriative quidance related to finandial instruments. Changes
in the intrinsic value of these derivatives are recordsd in samings in
the pericd of change. The weatrer derivative contracts cortain strike
amount provisions based on cumulative heating degree days for the
covered periods. In 2009, 2008 and 2007, SouthStar entered into
weather derivatives {swaps and options; for the respective winter
heating seasons, primarily from November through March. Ag of
December 31, 2009, SouthStar recorded a current asset of
%2 miflion for this hedging activity.



Contingencies Our accounting policies for contingencies cover a
variety of business activities, including contingencies for potentisly
uncoliectibie receivables, rate matiers, and legal and envircnmeanial
exposures. We accrue for these contingencies whan our
assessments indicate that it ¢ probable that a liabllity has been
incurred or an asset will not be racovered, and an amount can be
reasonably estimated in accordance with authortative guidance
refated 10 contingencies, We base our estirmates for these fiabilities on
currently available facts and our estimates of the ullimate clAcome or
resoiution of the liability in the future. Actual results may differ from
estimates, and estimates can be, and often are, revised either
negatively or positively, depending on actual cutcomes or changes in
the facts or expectations surrounding sach potential exposure,

Pension and Other Postretirement Plans Cur pension and
other postretirement plan costs and labilities are determined on an
sctuarial basis and are affected by numerous assumptions and
estimates including the market value of plan assets, astimates of
the expecied return on plan assets, assumed discount rates and
current demographic and actuarial mortality data. We annually
review the estimates and assumptions underlying our pension and
other postretirement plan costs and lizbiities. The assumed discount
rate and the expected return on plan assets are the assumplions
that generally have the most significant impact on our pension costs
and liabilities. The assumed discourt rate, the expected raturn on
asseis, the assumed health care cost wend rate and the assurmed
rates of retirement generally have the most significant impact on our
postretirement plan costs and liabilities.

The discount rate is utilized in calculating the actuariat present
value of our pension and postretrement abligations and net pension
and postretirement costs, When establishing our discount rate, we
consider & variety of factors in determining and selecting cur
assumptions for the discournt rate, With the assistance of our
actuaries, we consider certain markst indices, including Moody's
Corperate AA long-term bond rate, the Citigroup Pansion Liability
rate, other high-grade bond indices and a single equivalent discount
rate derived utiizing the forecasted future cash flows in each year to
the appropriate spot rates based on high guality {AA or betten
corporate bonds,

The expecled long-term rate of return on assets is used to
calculate the expected return on plan assets component of our
annual pension and postretirament plan cost. We estimate the
expected return on plan assels by evaluatng expected bond
returng, equity risk premiums, asset allocations, the effects of aclive
plan maragement, the impact of pericdic plan asset rebalancing
and historicat performance. We alse consider guidance from our
investment advisors in making a final determination of our expected
rate of return on assets, To the extent the actus! rate of return on
assets realized over the course of a vear is greater than or less than
the assumed rate, that year's annual pension or postretirernent plan
cost s not affected. Rather, this gain or loss reduces or increases
future pension or postretirement plan costs,
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During 2008, we recorded net periodic beneft costs of
12 mifiion related to our defined pension and postratirement bensfit
costs, We estimate that in 2010, we will record net periodic pension
and other postretirement benefit costs in the range of $18 million to
17 miion. & $3 milion to 35 milion incresse compared 1o 2009, in
detarmining our estimated expenges for 2010, our actuanial consuitant
assumed an 8.75% expected returm on plan assets and a discount
rate of 8% for the AGL Retirement Plan and 5.75% for the NUI
Retirament Plan and for our postretirerert pian. The actuarial
assumptions used may differ materially from actual results dus (o
changing market and economic conditions, higher or lower withdrawal
and retirement rates, and longer or shorter lite spans of padicipants.
These differences may result in & significant impact on the amount of
nension and postretirernient expense recorded in future periods. The
following table ilustrates the sffect of changing the critical actuarial
assumptions for our pension and postretirement plans, as discussed
oreviously, whie holding &t other assumplions constant.

i millions
ncraase InCrense
Percerzagé-naint {decrease} idecreasel
Actuanal assumptons CRENGE I assumptinn in AE0 in cost
Expected long-term
returs on plan assets +/- 1% 3 —f— B8/ 4

Liscount rate +/- 1% {58/ 84 B/5

Effective on July 1, 2009, aff post-65 health coverage except for
the retiree health care reimbursement account and opt-out benetits
was eliminated. There were no changes to the fife nsurance plan.
Effective January 1, 2010, enhancements were made to the pre-65
medical coverage by removing the current cap on the expected
costs and implermentation of a new cap determined by the new
retiree premium schadule baged on salary level and years of service.
Conseqguently, 2 one-percentage-point increase or decrease in the
assumed health care trend rate does not materially affect the
pericdic beneiit cost or our accumulated projectad benefit obligation
for our positretirement plans. Owr assumed rate of retirement is
estimated based upon an annual review of participant census
information as of the measurement date.

At December 31, 2008, our pension and postretirement liabifity
decreased by approximately $48 mifiion, primarily resulting from an
aftertax gain to OCH of $17 million (B28 million before tax), 2009
contributions of $24 million and $& millior in benefit payments that
we funded offset by $12 million in net pension and postretirament
enefit costs we recorded in 2008, These changes reflect our
funding contributions to the plan, benefit payments out of the plans,
and updated valuations for the projected benefit obligation PBO)
and plan assets.

Equity market performance and corporate bond rates have a
sigrificant effect on our reported unfunded PBO ard accumutated
postretirermnent benefit obligation, as the primary faciors that drive
the value of our urfunded accumulated benefit obligation are the
assumed discourt rate and the actual return on plan assets.

&
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Additionally, for our largest pension plan equity market performance
has a significant affect on our market-related value of plan assets
MERVEAY, which is a caloulsted value and differs from the actual
market value of plan assels, The MRVPA recognizes differences
between the actual market value and expectad market value of our
plan assets and is determined by our actuaries using a five-year
maoving weighted average methodology. Gains and losses on plan
assets are spread through the MRVPA based on the five-year
moving weighted average methadology, which aflects the expected
return on plan assets component of pension expense.

Diferences between actuarlal assumptions and actual plan
results are deferred and amortized into cost when the accumulated
differences exceed 10% of the greater of the PBO or the MRVPA
necessary, the excess is amortized over the average remaining
service period of active emplovees,

See “Note 3, bmployee Benefit Plans,” for addiional nforma-
tion on our pension and postretirement plans, which includes our
investment poficies and swategies, target allocation ranges and
weighted average asset allocations for 2009 and 2008.

Income Taxes We account for income taxes in zccordance with
authoritative guidance related 1o incomes taxes which require that
deferred tax asseis and labilties be recognized using enacted tax
rates for the effect of temporary differences between the book and
tax pasis of recorded assels and liabilities. The guidance aigo
requires that daierred tax assets ke reduced by a valuation 1 it is
more fkely than not that some portion or all of the deferred tax asset
will not be realized. As of Decamber 31, 2008 and December 31,
2009, we did not have a liability for unrecognized tax benefits. As a
result of cur adoption of new authoritative guidance related to
consolidations, income 1ax expense and our effective tax rate are
determined from sarnings before income tax less net income
gtiributable 16 the nonconircling interest. For more information on
our adoption of this guidance, see Note 5.

Our net long-term deterred tax flability totaled $695 milion at
December 31, 2009 (see Note 8 “Income Taxes"). This labillty s
estimated based on the expected fulure tax conseguences of tems
recognized in the financlal staternents. After application of the federsal
statutory 1ax rate 10 bhook income, jJdgment is required with respect
to the timing and deductibility of expense in our income tax returns,
For state income tax and other taxes, judgment is also required with
respect 10 the apportionment among the varicus jurisdictions. A
valustion allowance is recorded i we expect that it is more likely than
not that our deferred tax asssts will not be realized. We had a
$3 miillion valuation allowance on $79 million of deferred tax asssis
as of December 31, 2008, reflecting the expsactation that most of
these assets will be realized. In addition, we operate within rutiple

taxing jurisdictions and we are subiect 10 audit in these wrisdictions.
Trese audits can involve complex issues, which may require an
extended period of fime to resolve. We maintain a liability for the
estimate of potential income tax exposure and i our opinicn
adequate provisions or income taxes have been mads for alf years.

Accounting Developments
Variable Interest Entity

I June 2009, the FASE lssusd auihoritative guidance, which
amended the guidance related 1o fransfers and servicing. This
guidance reaulres improved disclosures about transters of financial
assets and removes the exception from applying the guidance
related to consclidations specifically for variable interest entities VIE)
to qualifying special purpose entities, This amendment will be
effective for us on January 1, 2010 and #t will have no effect on our
consclidated results of operations, cash flows or financiat position,

In June 2008, the FASE issued additional consolidation guid-
ance for Vi This authoritative guidance requires us to assess the
determination of the primary beneficiary of & VIE besed on whaether
we have the power to direct matters that most significantly impact
the activities of the VIE, and hag the obligation 10 absor losses or
the right 1o receive penefits of the VIE. In addition, the guidance
requires cngoing reassessments of whether we are the primary ben-
eficiary of a VIE. The guidance will be effective for us begnning
January 1, 2010 and it wilt have no effect on our consolidatad resuits
of operations, cash flows or financial position. Our VIE is described
in further detail in Note 8.



Hem 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative
Disclosures About Market Risk

We are exposead 1o risks associated with natural gas prices, interest
rates and credit. Natural gas price risk is defined as the potential
nsg that we may incur as a result of changes in the {alr value of
natural gas, Nterest rate risk results rom our ponticlio of debt and
equity instruments that we issue 1o provide financing and liquidity
for our busingss. Credit risk resulls from the extension of credit
throughnout alf aspects of our business but s particularly
concentrated at Atlanta (aas Light In distribution operations and in
wholesaie services,

Our Risk Management Committee (BMC) s responsibie for
establishing the overall risk management policies and monitoring
complhance with, and adherence 1o, the terms within these policies,
inciuding approval and authorization levels and delegation of these
ievels. Our BMC consists of members of senior management who
monitor open natural gas price risk positions and other types of risk,
corporate exposures, oredit exposures and overa results of our nisk
managemert activities. It is chaired by our chief risk officer, who is
responsible for ensuring that apperopriate reporting mechanisms exist
for the RMC 1o perform s monitoring functions. Our risik
management zactivilies and refated accounting freatments are
described in further detail in Note 2,

Natural Gas Price Risk

Retaif Energy Operations SouthStar's use of derivative
instruments is governed Dy arisk managerment palicy. approved and
monitored by its Finance and Risk Managsment Committee, which
prohibits the use of derivatives for speculative purposes,

Energy Marketing and Risk Management Activities
SouthStar routinely utilizes various types of derivative financial
instrumer:ts 1o mitigate certain natural gas price ard weather risk
inherent in the natural gas industry. This includes the active
management of storage positions through a variety of hedging
transactions for the purpose of managing exposures arising from
changing natural gas prices. SouthStar uses these hedging
nstruments o lock in economic marging {as spreads hetween
wholesale and retail natural gas prices widen between periods) and
therety mimmize 118 exposure to declining operating marging.
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We have designated a poriion of SouthStar's derivative
transactions as cash flow hedaes 0 accordance with authoritative
guidance related o dervatives and hedging. We record derivative
gains or josses arising from cash flow hedges In OC and reclassify
them inte esrings &s cost of gas in our consolidated statement of
income in the same period as the underlying hedged transaction
cocurs and i recorded in earnings. We record any hedge
ineffectiveness, defined as when the gains or losses on the hedging
instrument do not offset and are greater than the losses or gaing on
the hedged item, In cost of gas in our consolidated statement of
income in the period N which the neffectivenass ocours. SouthStar
currenily has minimal hedge ineflectiveness. We have not designated
the remainder of ScuthStar's derivative instruments as hedges under
the guldance and, accordingly, we record changes in their fair value in
earnings as cost of gas in our consolidated statements of income in
the period of change.

SouthStar recorded a net unrealized gain related to changes in
the falr value of derivative instruments utiized In its energy marketing
and risk management activities of $20 million during 2008, urrealized
losses of $27 million during 2008 and $7 millon during 2007, The
following tables ilustrate the change in the net fair value of the
dervative financial instrurments during 2008, 2008 and 2007 and
provide detalls of the net fair value of derivative financial instriments
cutstanding as of December 31, 2008, 2008 and 2007,

fr rfiors 2009 2008 2007

Net fair value of derivative
financial instruments outstanding
at begirning of pericd

Derivative financial instruments
realized or otherwise settied

$(17) 10 $17

during period 19 {10) {7
Change in net fair value of derivative
financial instruments 1 (17} 10

Net fair value of derivative financial

instruments cutstanding at

end of pericd™ 3 (i7) 10
Netting of cash collateral 18 31 3
Cash collateral and net fal value

of derivative fnancial instrurments

outstanding at end of period” $21 $ 14 $13
et fair value of dedvatve finaccial instr

axsociated Ntrinslo value i Decarnbs
&l Decermber 31

uments autstacding ncludes $2 milior premium and
1. 200%. 84 miflfor &t December 31, 2008 and 35 miflion
HERUT:

* (erivitives.
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The sowrces of SouthStar's net fair value of its natural gas-
related derivative financial instruments at December 31, 2009, are
ag follows.

In miions
Mature through 2010

aiuen uaing NYMEX futires prices.

cugres Gays. Asafionally, inciudes valle 3
CEINTE m WYMEX delneery Hoint 1ot
bramed on gLotes obtaned edhar through slectroric |
¥ Ewgludes cash ookzteral amounts,

BCHONS are

cthy hom brokers.,

SouthSiar routinely utitizes varicus types of financial and other
instruments to mitigate certaln commaodity price and weather risks
inherent in the natwal gas industry. These instruments includs & vari-
ety of exchange-traded and OTC energy contracts, such as forward
contracts, fulures contracts, options contracts and swap agree-
rents. The following tables nclude the fair values and average vai-
ues of SouthStar’s derivative instruments as of the dates indicated.
SouthStar tases the average values on monthly averages for the
12 months ended Decernber 31, 2000 and 2008,

Derteathee firarcial
kgtrurnenis gverage fair
values af Decermnber 2
b rigioris 2009M ZOCE
Asset $13 17
£ labifity 19 12

™ fxciudes cash collacers) amourts,

financis nstruments fair

values neten with casn cobarera

&l Devarnber 31,

I mrdlicrs 20609 CG08 2007
Asset N $18 $13

Liability - 2 —

58

Value-at-risk A 85% confidence interval is used to svaluate
VaR exposure, A 5% confidence interval means that over the
holging period, an actual logs in portfolio value is not expectsd to
excead the caloulated VaR more than 5% of the time. We caloulate
VaR based on the varance-covariance technique. This technique
requires several assumplions for the basis of the calculation, such
as price distripuiion, price volatility, confidence interval and holding
period. Our ValR may not be comparable to a similardy titled
measure of anciner company because, although Val is a common
metric in the energy Industry, there IS no estabfished industry
standard for cateulating VaR or for the assumptions underlying such
calculations. SouthSiar's portiolio of positions for 2008, 2008 and
2007, nad annual average 1-day holding period VaRs of less than
$100.000, and its high, low and period end 1-day holding pericd
Vak were immaterial.

Wholesale Services Sequent routingly uses various types of
derivative financial instruments to mitigate certain natural gas price
risks inherent in the natural gas industry. These instruments inciude
a variety of exchange-raded and OTC energy contracts, such as
torward contracts, futures contracts, options contracts and financial
swap agreements.

Energy Marketing and Risk Management Activities We
account for derivative transactions in connection with Segquent's
energy marketing activities on a fair value basis in accordance with
authoriiative guidance refaled to dervatives and hedging. We record
derivative energy commodity contracts (including both physical
fransactions and financial instruments) at fair value, with unrealized
gains of losses from changes in fair value reflected in our earmings
in the period of change.

Sequent's energy-trading contracts are recorded o an accrual
hasis and its derivatives are recorded at fair value under authoritative
guidance related to derivatives and hedging.



Sequent experienced a $36 milllon increase in the net fair value
of its outstanding contracts during 2008 and $25 million diring 2008
and a $62 milion decrease in the net fair value of its outsianding
contracts during 2007, due to changes in the fair value of derivative
financial insfruments utilized in Bs energy marketing and risk
management activities and condract settlemeants and new business
confracts acquired in 2009, The following tables fusirate the change
in the net fair value of Sequent's derivative financial instrumenis
during 2009, 2008 and 2067 and provide details of the net {alr value
of contracts outstandirg as of Decermber 31, 2008, 2008 and 2007.

Ir gliEans 2009 2008
Net fair value of derivative financial

instruments owistanding at

beginning of period $82 %57 $ 119
Derivative financial instruments

realized or otherwise settled

during period {73} {49 {102)
Net fair value of derivative financial

instrurnents acouired during period 50 - —
Change in net far value of derivative

financial instruments 59 74 40

Net {air value of derivative financial
nstruments outstanding at

end of period 118 82 57
Netting of cash collateral 39 97 Q)
Cash collateral and net fair value

of derivative financial instruments

outstanding at end of period $157 %178 S 48

The sources of Sequent’s net fair value at Decemier 31, 2009,
are as follows,

agtively
Guioted
irs miflions st 13 {Lovat 23
Mature through 2010 S(4) g a2
Mature 2071 - 2012 2 25
Mature 2013 - 2015 ! 12
Total derivative financial instruments ™ &i1) %110

" Valupd using NYMEDX futures prices.

* Excludes cas
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The following tables include the cash collateral fair values and
average values of Sequent's energy marketing and risk manage-
ment assets and labilittes as of December 31, 2009 and 2008,
Sequent bases the average values on monthly averages for the
12 manths ended December 31, 2008 and 2008,

ir milons
Agset
Liabifity

U Excludes cash collaleral amounts.

Dervptive tnancial nstruments fair
values natted with cash colizteral

at Degentbher 31,
Ir miicns 2009 2008 2007
Agset $208 $208 $61
Liabiity 51 27 13

Value-at-risk Sequents open exposure 8 managed in
accordance with estabiished policies that mit market risk and
require daily reporting of potential financial exposure 1o senior
managernent, including the chief risk officer. Because Seguent
generally manages physical gas asseis and economicdly protects
its positions by hedging in the futures markets, #s open expostie is
generally immaterial, permitting Sequent to operate within relatively
low VaR iimits. Sequent emplovs daily risk testing, using both VaR
and stress testing, to evaluate the risks of its open positons.

Seguent's management actively monitors open commodity
positions and the resuliing VaR. Sequent continues 1o mainiain a
refatively matched book, where its toial buy volume is close to s sell
volume, with minimal open natural gas price risk. Based on a 95%
canfidence interval and employing a 1-day holding period for all
positions, Seguent’s portfolic of positions for the 12 months ended
December 31, 2008, 2008 and 2007 kad the following VaRs,

by milfons 2009 200 2007
Period end 524 $285 $1.2
12-month average 1.8 1.8 1.3
High 3.3 3.1 2.3
Low 0.7 0.8 0.7
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Energy Investments In 2008, GColden Triangle Sicrage began
using derivative financial instruments 1o reduce its exposure during
the construchon of the storage caverns fo the risk of changes with
the price of natural gas that will be purchased in future periods for
pad gas, which includes volumes of non-working natural gas used
e mamtain the operational integrity of the caverns, As of
December 31, 2009, Golden Triangle Storage had locked-in the
price of approximately 68% of the required pad gag for the firgt
storage cavern of 2 Bef and the associated fair value of the derfvative
financial instrurments was ymmaterial.

interest Rate Risk

interest rate fluctuations expose our variable-rate dett to changes
in interast expense and cash flows. Our policy is to manage interest
expanse using a combination of fixed-rate and varable-rate debt,
Based on 3762 milion of varable-rate debt, which includes
$601 milion of our variable-rate short-term debt and $181 million
of variable-rate gas faclity revenue bonds outstanding at
Decernber 31, 2009, a 100 basis point change in market interest
rates from 0.4% to 1.4% would have resulted in an increase in pretax
interest expense of $8 million on an annualized basis.

Credit Risk

Distributian Operations Atleria Gas Light has a concentration of
credit risk ag it bills nine cenificated and active Marketers and one
requlated natural gas provider responsible for offering natwral ges
1o low-income customers and customers unabls 1o gef natural gas
service from other Marketers in Georgia for its services. The credit
risk exposure o Marketers varies with the time of the year, with
axposure at its lowest in the nonpeak summer months and highest
in the peak winter morths. Marketers are responsiole for the retail
sale of natural gas to end-use customers in Georgla. Theze relal
functions include customer service, billing, collections, and the
purchase and sale of the natural gas commodity, The provisions of
Atfanta Gas Light's farif alow Atlanta Gas Light to obtain security
support in an amount squa 1o a minkmum of two times a Markeier's
nighest monih’s estimated bill from Atlanta Gas Light. For 2008,
the four largest Markelers based on customer count, which
ncludes SouthStar, accounted for approximately 31% of our
consolidated operaling margin and 44% of distribution operations’
operating margin,

Several faciors are designed to mitigate cur risks from the
increased concentration of credit that has resulied from deregu-
lation. In addition 1o the securkty suppor descrbed above, Atlanta
Gas Light bills intrastate defvery service to Marketers in advancs
rather than in arrears. We accept credit support in the form of cash
deposits, letters of credit/surety bonds from acceptable issuers and
corporaie guarantaes from investment-grade entities. The RMC
reviews on @ monthly basis the adequacy of credit support
coverage, credit rating profiles of oredit support providers and
caymert status of each Marketer. We believe that adequate policies
and procedures have been put in place {0 properly quantfy, manage
ard report on Atlanta Gas Light's oredit risk exposure fo Marketers,

Atlanta Gas Light alse faces potential credt risk in connection
with assignments of interstate pxpei‘mé transportation and storage
capacity to Marketers. Although Atlanta Gags Light assigns this
capacity 1o Marketers, in-the event that a Marketer fails to pay the
interstate pipetines for the capacity, the interstate pipelines would in
alt likelihood seak repayment from Atlanta Gas Light,

Retail Energy Operations SouthStar obtains credit scores for its
firm residential and small commercial customers using a national
credit reporting agency, enrcling ondy those customers that meet or
exceed SouthSlars credit threshold,

SouthStar considers potential interruptible and large commercial
customers based on a review of publicly available financial staternents
and review of commercially available credit reports. Prior fo entering
into a physical transactior, SouthStar alse assigns physical wheolesale
counterparties an internal credit rating and credit imit based on the
counterparties’ Moody's, S&P and Fitch ratings, commercially avail-
able credit reports and audited financial statements.

Whoalesaie Services Sequent has established credd policies to
cetermine and monitor the creditworthiness of counterparties, as
well as the quality of pledged collateral, Sequent also utifizes master
netting agreements whenever possible to mitigate exposure to
counterparty credit risk. When Sequent is engagad in more than
ore outstanding derivative transaction with the same-counterparty
and it also has a legally enforceable netting agreement with that
counterparty, the "net” mark-to-market exposure represents the
netting of the positive and negative exposures wath that counterparty
and a reasonabie measure of Sequent's credit risk, Sequent also
uses other netting agreements with certain counterparties with
whom it conducts significant transactions. Master netting agree-
ments enable Seguent to net certain assets and liabilities by
counterparty. Sequent also nets gcross product lines and against
cash collateral provided the master nefting and cash collateral
agreemeants includs such provisions.



Additionally, Sequent may requrg counterparties t¢ pledge
additional collateral when deemed necessary. Seguent conducts
credit evaluations and obtains appropriate internal approvels for Ks
counterparty’s ine of credit before any fransaction with the
countarparty s exeguted. In most cases, the counterparty must have
an investmert grads rating, which includes a minimum leng-term
debt rating of Baal from Moody's and BEB- from S&F Generally,
Sequent requires cradit enhancemenis by way of guaranty, cash
deposit or letter of credit for fransaction counterparties thar do not
have investment grade ratings.

Seqrient, which provides services to retall marketers and utifity
and Industrial customers, aso has a concentration of credit risk as
meeasurad by its 30-day receivable exposure plus forward exposure,
As of December 31, 2009, Sequent’s top 20 counterparties
represented approximately 58% of the total counterparty exposure
of $534 milion. derived by adding together the top 20 counter-
periies’ exposures and dhiding by the 1oial of Sequents
cournterparties’ exposures,

Ag of December 31, 2009, Sequent’s counterparties, or the
counterparties’ guarantors, had a weighted average S&F equivalent
credit rating of A-, which is consistent with the pricr year. The S&F
equivalent credit rating is determined by a process of converting the
lower of the S&P or Moody's ratings to an internal rating ranging
from 9 to 1, with 9 being equivalent to AMA/Aas by S&P and
Moody's and 1 being D or Defaull by S&F and Moody's, A
counterparty that does not have an external rating s assigned an
internal rating based on the strengin of the financial ratios of thal
counterparty. To arrive at the weighted average credit rating, sach
counterparty Is assigned an internal ratlo. which is multinlied by their
credit exposure and summed for all counterparties, The sum ig
divided by the aggregate toial counterparties’ exposures, and this
numeric value is then converted to an S&P equivaient. There were
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n¢ credit defaults with Sequent's counterparties. Tre following tabie
shows Sequent's third-party natural gas contracts receivabie and
nayable positions.

I rifions
Netting agreements in place:
cunterparty is investment grade $483 £3098
Counterparly is non-investment grade 12 15
Courterparty has no external rating 106 129
No netting agreements in place:
Counterparty is investiment grads 14 7
Counterparty s non-nvestment grade - -
Amount recorded on statements
of financlal position $615 3548
I rrilliorss
Netting agreements in place:
Counterparty is investment grade $277 $266
Counterpanty iz non-invastment grade 34 41
Counterparty has no external rating 207 228
No netting agreements in place:
Courterparty is investment grade 6 4

Counterparty s nor-investment grade - —
Amount recorded on statements
of financial position $524 8530

Sequent has certain trade and oradit contracts that have
explicit minimum credit rating requirements. These credit rating
requirements typically give counterparties the right to suspend or
terminate credit if our credd ratings are downgraded 1o non-
investment grade status. Under such circumstances, Seguent
would need to post collateral to continue transacting business with
some of its counterparties. If such collateral were not posted,
Sequent’s ability to condimie transacting busiress with these
counterparties would be impaired. If our credit ratings had been
downgraded io non-investment grade status, the required amotnts
to satisfy potential collateral demands under such agreements
petween Sequant and s counterparties would have totaled
%25 million &t December 31, 2008, which would not have a material
impact 1o ouwr consclidated results of operations, cash flows or
financial condition.

[o)]
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em 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Data
Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

To the Board of Directors and Shareholders of AGL Resources Inc.:

i our opinion, the consolidated financial statements listed N the index appearing undar tem 15211 present faidy, in all material respects, the
financial position of AGL. Resources inc. and its subsidiaries at December 31, 200S and 2008, and the resulis of their operations and their cash
flows for each of the three years in the perod ended December 31, 2009 1n conformity with accounting mrinciples generally accepted in the United
States of America, In addition, in our opinicn, the financial staternent schedule listed in the accompanying index appearing under tem 15(a)(2;
presents fairly, in alt material respects, the information set forth therein when read in conjunction with the related consclidated financial state-
merts. Also in our opirian, the Company maintained, in sl material respects, effective internal control over financial reporting as of December 31,
2009, based on crieria establishad in Infernal Controf — Integrated Frarmework issued by the Commitiee of Sponsoring Organizations of the
Treadway Commission ({COSC). The Company's management is responsible for these financial statements and financial statement schedule,
for maintaining effective internat control over financial reporting and for fis assessment of the effectiveness of internal controb over fnancial
reporting, inchuded in Management's Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting appearing under Hem @A, Our responsibility is to
express opintong on these financial staternents, on the financlal statement schedule, and on the Company's internal control over financial report-
ing based on cur integrated audits, We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight
Board (United States). Those standards recuire that we plan and perform the audits to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the finan-
ciagl statements are free of material misstatament and whether effective internal control over financial reporting was maintained in all material
respects. Our audits of the financial staterments included examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the
financial staterments, assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, and evaluating the overall
financial statement presentation. Our audit of interral control over financiat reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal control over
financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the dasign and operating effectiveness of
internal control based on the assassed risk. Gur audits also included performing such ather procedures as we considerad necessary in the cir-
cumstances. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for cur opinions.

A company's Internal control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of
financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting princi-
ples. A company's internal control over financial reporting includes these policies and procedures that {) pertain 1o the maintenance of records
that, in reasonable detall, accurately and fairly reflect the fransactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; i} provide reasonable assur-
ance that transactions ars recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepied account-
ing principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of management and
directors of the company; anad i} provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthortzed acquisition, use, of
disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect misstaterments. Also, projections of
ary evaluation of effectiveness 1o fulure periods are subject to the risk that controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions,
or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate,

{ . 1 i
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FricewaterhousaCoopers LLF
Allanta, Geotgia
February 4, 2070
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Management's Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

Dur management is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal control over financial reporting, as such tenm is defined in
Exchange Act Rule 13a-15(f. Under the supenvision and with the participation of our management, including owr principal executive officer and
principat financial officer, we conducied an evaluation of the effectiveness of ouwr internal control over financial reporting based on the framework
in Internal Control — Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Crganizations of the Treadway Commission (COS0).

Becauge of its inherent limitations, inlernal contral over financial reporting may not prevent or detect misstatements. Also, projections of
any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that controls may become inadequate because of changes In conditions,
or that the degree of compliance with the paolicies or procedures may detericrate.

Based on oW evaluation under the framework in Internal Control — Infegrated Framework issued by COSO, cur managemert conchided
that our internal control over financial reporting was effective as of December 31, 2008, in providing reasonabie assurance regarding the
relizbifity of finandial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepied account-
ing principles.

The effectiveness of our intarnal control over financial reporting has been audited by PricewaterhouseCoopers LLE, an independent
registered public accounting firm, as stated in their report appearing herein.

February 4, 2010

John W, é}omerhalder It
Chafrrman: President ard Chief Executive Officer

Ancirew W, Evans
Executive Vice President, Chief Financial Officer and Treasurer
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Consolidated Statements of Financial Position— Assets

soamer 31
I rifliors 2009 s
Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents {Note 7} $ 26 & 18
Receivables (Nole 7}
Energy marketing receivables 615 549
Gas 178 264
Unbilled revenues 155 181
Other 29 27
Less allowance for uncoliectible accounts 14 1€
Total receivebles 963 1.008
inventores (Note 1)
Natural gas stored underground 649 828
Cther 23 34
Total inventories 672 663
Derivative financigl iInstruments — current portion {Note 1 and Note 2} 188 207
Urrecovered regulatory infrastructure program costs - current portion (Note 1} 43 41
Unrecovered environmental rermediation costs — currend portion {Note 1 and Note 7) 11 18
Other current assets a7 92
Total current assets 2,000 2042
Long-term assets and other deferred debits
Froperty, plant and eguipment 5,939 5,500
L.ess accumulated depreciation 1,793 1,684
Property, plant and equipment — net Note 1} 4,146 3,816
Goodwill {(Note 1) 418 418
Unrecovered reguiatory infrastructure program costs (Note 1) 223 196
Unrecovered environmental rernediation costs (Note 1 and Note 7) 161 125
Cervalive financial instruments (Note 1 and Note 2) 52 3e
Other 74 7L
Total long-term assels and other deferred debits 5,074 4,668
Total assets $7,074 26,710

See Motes to Consolidated Financiat Staterners.



Consolidated Statements of Financial Position— Liabilities and Equity
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I prilhons, except share smouwig 2009 2008
Current liabilities
Short-term debt (Note 8) $ 802 $ 866
Energy marketing trade payable 524 539
Accounts payable - trade 237 202
Accrued wages and salaries 55 42
Accrued regulatory infrastructure program costs — surrent portion (Note 1) 55 49
Cerivative financial instruments — current portion {Note 1 and Note 2) 52 50
Customer deposits 41 50
Accrued interest Note 7) 41 35
Accrued taxes 35 36
Ceferred natural gas costs (Note 1) 30 25
Accrued environmental remediation Hablities — current portion (Note 1 and Note 7) 25 17
Other current kabilities 74 72
Total current liabiities 1,772 1,883
Long-term liabilities and other deferred credits
Long-term debt (Note 6) 1,974 1.675
Accrued deferred incorme taxes (Note 1 and Note 8) 695 571
Accumulated removal costs (Note 1) 183 178
Accrued pension obligations (Note 3) 158 169G
Accrued regulatory infrastructure program costs (Note 1) 155 140
Accrued environmenial remediation liabifities (Note 1 and Note 7) 118 89
Accrued postretirement baneft costs {(Note 3) 33 46
Dernvative financial instruments (Note 1 and Note 2) 10 6
Other long-term lizbilities and other deferred credits 150 130
Total long-term liabilites and other deferred credits 3,483 3,043
Total labilities and other deferred credits 5,255 5,026
Commitments and contingencies {see Note 7)
Equity
AGL Resources Inc. commaon shareholders’ equity, $5 par value,; 750 million shares authorized 1,780 1,652
Noncordrofiing interest (Note B} 39 32
Total equity 1,819 1,684
Total liabilities and equity $7,074 $6.710

See Notes 10 Consofidater Financis Statements,
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Consolidated Statements of income

Years ended Decermb

irs raillinns, EXeent e Share amounts 2008 2008 2007
Operating revenues (INote 1) $2,317 $2.800 $2,494
Opsarating expenses
Cost of gas (Note 1} 1,142 1,654 1,369
Operation and mainienancs 497 472 451
Depreciation and amortization (Note 1) 158 157 144
Taxes other than income {axes 44 44 41
Total operating expenses 1,841 2322 2,005
Cperating income 476 478 489
Other income 9 G 4
friterest expense, net (101} {118} (125}
Earnings before income faxes 384 368 368
Income tax expenssa (Note 8) 135 137 127
MNet incoms 249 237 241
Less net income attributable to the noncontrolling interest (Nots 5) 27 20 30
Net income attributable 10 AGL Resourcas Inc, $ 222 $ 217 3 211
Per common share data (Nole 1)
Basic earnings per common share atiriputable 1o
AGL Resowrces Inc. common shareholders $ 2.89 g 285 $ 274
Diluted earnings per common share atiribuiable o
AGL Resources inc, common shareholders $ 2.88 g 284 $ 272
Cash dividends declared per common share $1.72 3 1.68 $ 1.64
Weighted average number of common shares outstanding (Note 1)
Basic 76.8 76.3 771
Diluted 771 766 77.4

Bee Notes o Consofidated Financial Steteme s,

el
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Consolidated Statements of Equity
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AL Besources Inc., Shareholders

PrEMILET Accurmidszed
on other
Common sk COMMmon: CompEhangs BASUY Nonconioling

I midlions, except por shae armounts Bhares e sioek s shargs interast Feptaal

Halance as of December 31, 2006 777 3380 $664 $ 32 &(14) §42  $1.651

Net income o — - — - 20 241

Other comprehensive income foss) — s - — 16 — {2} 17

Dividends on common stock (81,64 per share) — — — (127 e 4 e {123}
Distributions 10 noncontrofiing intersst — — — — — — (23 (23
lssuance of treasury shares 0.7 — (€} {53 o 27 e 16

Furchase of treasury shares Z2.0 — - e — (80} - {80}
Stock-based compeansation expense het of faxj . - 9 — — — - 9

Balance as of Decemper 31, 2007 76.4 380 BEY 680 {13 B3) 47 1,708

Net income e e - 217 — - 20 237

Other comprehensive loss — - - — (1213 - (5) {126}
Dividends on common stock {81.68 per share) - - - {128 — 4 - {124}
Distributions 1o noncontrolling interests — — — — —_ — 1303 (30)
Issuance of treasury shares 0.5 - e &) o 16 - g
Slock-based compensation expense het of tax) — — 10 - - - - 10
Balance as of December 31, 2008 /6.9 290 676 763 {134) {43) 32 1,684
Net income - - - 222 - - 27 249
Other comprehensive income — — - —_ 18 e o 18
Dividends on common stock {$1.72 per share} — - — (132} - 5 —_ {127}
Distributions to noncontroliing interests e e — e - —_ (20} (20}
Issuance of treasury shares 0.6 — {4) 5} — 17 — 8
Stock-based compensation expense (net of taxj - - 7 — — - — 7
Balance as of December 31, 2009 77.5 $390 $679 $ 848 $(118)  $(29) $38  $1,818
See Notes o Consulideten Firansial Staerments.
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Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income (Loss)

Years ended Decends

In rrafhens 2009 ZEE 2007
Comprehensive income attributable to AGL Resources Inc. {net of tax}
Net income attributable to AGL Resources Inc. $222 & 217 211
Galn foss} resulting from unfunded pension and postretirement
chligation during the period (Mote 3} i7 {171} 24
Cash flow hedges (Note 2k
Derivative financial instrurments unrealized (losses) gaing arlsing during the period {12} (4} 3
Reclazsification of derivetive financial instruments realived Insses (galns)
included in net income 13 (6} &)
Other comorehensive ncome {loss) 18 (121} 19
Comprehensive income [Note 1) $240 & 96 $220
Comprehensive income {loss) attributable to noncontrolling interest {net of tax)
Net income attributable 1o noncontrofing interest $ 27 3 20 & 30
Cash flow hedges (Note 2);
Dervative financial instruments unrealized {(osses) galns arlsing during the pericd {7) (" 1
Reclassification of derivative financial instruments realized losses {gains)
included in net ncome 7 {4 (33
Other comprehensive loss - £ 2
Comprehensive incomne (Note 1) $ 27 $ 15 $ 28
Total comprehensive income {net of tax)
Net income $249 $ 237 $241
Gain {loss) resulting from unfunded pension and postretirerment obligation during the pericd 17 {111} 24
Cash flow hedges (Note 2):
Derivative financial instruments unrealized fosses) gains arising during the period {19) (5 4
Reclassification of derivative financial instrurments reafized losses (gains)
included in net ncome 20 {10 an
Other comprehensive income {foss) 18 {126} 17
Cormprehensive mcome (Note 1) $267 %111 358

Set Notes to Gongolidriad Fnancial Statemants,



Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows
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Years ended December 31

BN 2008 2008 2607
Cash flows from operating aclivities
Net income $ 249 § 237 § 241
Adiustmants to reconcile net income to net cash fow provided by eperating activities
[epreciation and amortization iNote 1) 158 152 144
Deterred income taxes (Note 8) 105 && 30
Change in derivative financial instrument assets and labilities (Note 2) 11 (129} 74
Changes in cerfain assets and liabifties
Gas, unbifled and other receivables INcte 1) 108 €n) {15}
Gas and trade payableg 35 30 35}
Accrued expenses 19 28 {34}
Inventories (Note 1} {89) {112 46
Energy marketing receivables and energy marketing trade payables, net {81} He; {26}
Other - net 3 (1) {48)
Net cash flow provided by operating activities 592 227 377
Cash flows from investing activities
Expanditures for property, plant and equipment {476) (372) (259
Other —_ — g
Net cash flow used in investing activities {476) (372} {(253)
Cash flows from financing activities
lssuances of senior notes (Note 8) 297 — 125
lssuance of treasury shares (Note 1) 8 ] 16
Oistribution to noncontroliing interest (Note &) {20) (30 23
Dividends paid on common shares (Note 1) {127 (124) {123
Net payments and borrowings of short-term debt {264) 288 5
lssuances of variable rate gas faclity revenue bonds (Note 6} — 161 -
Paymerts of gas facility reveriue bonds (Note 6} — {161} —
Faymenis of medium-term notes — m (11)
Payments of trust preferred securities - e {75)
Purchase of treasury shares (Note 1) — - 80y
Other - 1 3)
Met cash flow fused iny provided by financing activities {106) 142 {122}
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivaients 10 (3 2
Cash and cash eguivalents at beginning of period 16 19 17
Cash and cash equivalents &t end of pericd $ 26 % 16 § 19
Cash paid during the period for
Interest $ 93 $ 115 §127
income laxes 50 27 118

See Notes 1o Gonsclidnied Francial Stalements.,
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Note 1 Accounting Policies and
Methods of Application
General

AGE Resowces inc. i$ an energy services holding company that
conducts substantally all its operations through #s subsidiaries,
" rus,
“our," the "company”, or "AGL Resources” mean consciidated AGL.
Resources Inc. and its subsidiaries, We have prepared the
accompanying consclidated financial statements under the rules of
the SEC.

Unless the context requires otherwise, references to “we,

Basis of Presentation

Our consoidated financial statements as of and for the pericd ended
December 31, 2008, include our accounts, the accounts of our
mejority-owned and controlled subsidiades and the acoounts of
variable interest entities for which we are the primary beneficiany
This means that our accounts are combined with the subsidiaries’
accounts, We have eliminated any Intercompany profits and
transactions in consolidation; however, we have not eliminated
intercompany profits when such amounts are probable of recovery
under the affiliates’ rate reguiation process. Certain amounts from
prior periods have been reclassiied and revised to conform to the
current perjod presentation,

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Our cash and cash equivalents consist primarily of cash on daposit,
money market accounts and certificates of deposit with original
maturities of three months or less.

Receivables and Allowance for
Uncoliectible Accounts

Cwir receivables consist of natural gas sales and transportation
services billed to residential, commercial, industrial and cther
customers. We bill custorners monthly, and accounts receivable are
due within 30 days. For the majority of our receivables, we establish
an allowance for doubtiul accounts based on our collection
experience and other factors, On cerlain other receivables where
we gre aware of a specific customer's inability or reluictance to pay,
we record an allowance for doubiful accounts against amounts due
to reduce the net receivable balance to the amount we reasonably
expect 10 collect. However, if circumstances change, our estimate
of the recoverability of accounts receivable could be different.
Circumstances that could affect our estimates include, but are not
limited io, customer credit issues, the level of natural gas prices,
customer deposits and general economic conditions. We write-off
our customers’ accounts once we deem tham 16 be uncollectible.

T
Fi

inventories

For our distibution cperations subsidiaries, we racord natural gas
storad underground at WACOG. For Sequent and SouthStar, we
account for natural gas inveniory at the lower of WACOG or
market price.

Sequent and SouthStar evaluate the average cost of their
naturat gas inventories aganst market prices to detenmine whether
any declines in market prices below the WACOG are other than
temporary. For any declines considered to be other than temporary,
adiustments are recorded 1o reduce the weighted average cost of
the natural gas inventory 10 market price. Consequently, as a result
of declining nefural gas prices, Sequent recorded LOCOM
adjustments against cost of gas 1o reduce the value of its inventories
to market value of $8 milion in 2008, $40 milion in 2008 and
$4 miliors in 2007, SouthStar recorded LOCOM adjustmenis of
%6 million in 2009 and $24 miflon in 2008, but was not requirsd to
make LOCOM adiustments in 2007,

In Georgia's competitive environment, Marketers including
SouthStar, our marketing subsidiary, began selling natural gas in
1868 to firm end-use customers st market-based prices. Fart of the
Lnbundiing process, which resulted from deregulation that provides
for this competitive environment, is the assignment to Marketers of
certain pipeline services that Atlanta Gas Light has under contract.
Atlarta Gas Light assigns, on & monthly basis, the majerity of the
pipeline storage services that it has under contract to Marketers,
along with a corresponding amount of inventory.

Energy Marketing Receivables and Payables

OQur wholesale services segment provides services to retall and
wholesale marketers and ulility and industrial custormers, These
custorners, also known as courterparties, utiize netling agreements,
which enable wholesale services te net receivables and payables
by counterparty. Wholesale services also nets across product lines
and against cash gollateral, provided the master netting and cash
coliateral agreements include such provisions. The amounts due
from or owed o wholesale services’ counterparties are naetted and
recorded on our consolidated statements of financial position as
energy marketing receivables and energy marketing payables,

Our wholesale services segment has some trade and credit
contracts that have explicit minimum credit rating reguirements.
These cradit rating requirements typically give counterparties the
right to suspend or terminate credit i our credit ratings are
downgraded to non-investment grade status. Under such
chroumstances, wholesale services would need to post colfateral to
continue transacting business with some of its counterparties. No
collateral has been pested under such provisions since our credit
ratings have always exceeded the minimum requirements. As of
December 31, 2008 and Decaermber 31, 2008, the collateral that
wholesale services would have teen reguired to post would not
have had a material impact to our consolidated resulte of operations,



cash flows or financial condition. However, if such coliateral were
nof posted, wholesale services’ ability to continue transacting
business with these counterparties woulkd be impaired.

Property, Plant and Equipment

Asurnrmary of our PRAE by classification as of December 31, 2009
and 2008 iz provided in the foliowing table.

irevilions 2000 N
Trangraission and distribution $4,579 § 4,344
Storage 230 290
Other 725 543
Construction work in progress 345 323

Total gross PP&E 5,839 5.600
Acclmulated depreciation {1,793) {1,684)

Total net PP&E $ 4,146 § 3,816

Distribution Operations FP&E expenditures consist of property
and equipment that i3 i use. being held for future use and under
construction. We report PP&E &t its original cost, which includes:

« material and labor

® conractor costs

« construction overnead costs

« zn allowance for funds used during construction (AFUDC) which
represerits the estimaled cost of funids, from both debt and eoulty
sources, used o finance the construction of major projects anc
is capitalized in rate base for ratemaking purposes when the
completed projects are placed in senvice

We charge property retired or otherwise disposed of to
accumulated depreciation since such cosis are recovered in rates.

Retail Energy Operations, Wholesale Services, Energy
Investments and Corporate PF&E expenditures include property
that is in use and under construction, and we report i at cost. We
recorct a gain or loss for retired or otherwise disposed-of property.
Natural gas in storage at Jefferson island that is retained as pad gas
tvolumes of non-working natural gas used io maintain the
operational integrity of the cavern facility! is classified as non-
depreciable property, plant and equipment and is valued at cost.

Depreciation Expense

We compule depreciation expense for distribution operations by
applying composite, straight-line rates {approved by the state
regulatory agencies) to the investment in depreciable property.
The composite straight-line depreciation rates for depreciable
property — excluding transportation equipment for Atlanta Gas
Light, Virginia Natwal Gas and Chattanooga Gas and the

AL Resowces inc. 2008 Annual Report

composite, straight-ing rates for Bizabethtown Gas, Florida City
Gas and Eikion Gas are listed in the following table. We depreciate
transportation equipment on a straight-tine basis over a period of
5 to 10 years, We compute deprecistion expense for other
segments on a straight-ling basis up fo 35 years based on the
useful life of the asset.

2009 2008 2007
Atlaria Gas Light 2.5% 2.5% 2.5%
Chattancoga Gas 3.4% 3.3% 3.3%
Elizabeihtown Gas 3.1% 31% 3.0%
Elkton Gas 2.1% 2.8% 4.0%
Florida City Gas 3.9% 3.9% 3.7%
Virginia Natural Gas 2.6% 27% 2.5%

AFUDC and Capitalized Interest

Four of our utilities are authorized by applicable state regulatory
agencies or legislatures to record the cogt of debt end ecuity funds
as part of the cost of construction projects in our consolidated
statements of financtal position and as AFUDC of $13 milion in
200¢, $8 million in 2008 and $4 emifion in 2007 within the
consclidaled statements of mcome, The capital expenditures of our
two other utilittes do not qualify for AFUDC treatment. More
information on our authorized AFUDC rates is provided in the
following table.

Authorized AFUDG rate

Atlanta Gas Light B.53%
Chattanocoga Gas 7.8%%
Elizabethtown Gas™ 0.41%
Virginie Natural Gas® 9.24%

dariable rate as of Cecemoer 31, 2009, and is determingd by FERGC methea of AFUDC
ACtOUNting.
# Approvied oty for Sampion Roads constraction project,

Within our energy investiments operaling segment, we have
recorded capitalized interest as part of the cost of the Gelden
Triangle Storage facilities construction project in our consolidated
statements of financial position in the amount of $3 milion as of
December 31, 2008 and 52 million as of December 31, 2008. The
caphalized interest Is also reported within inferest expense in our
consolidated staterments of income.

Goodwill

Goodwill is the excess of the purchase price over the falr velue of
identifiable net assets acguired Iin business combinations in
accordance with the authoritative guidance. We do not amortize
goodwill but annuailly test # for impairment or when indication of
potential impairment exists, These indicators would include a
significant change in operating performance, the business chimate,

oy
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Notes to Consoclidated Financial Statementis

legal or regulatory factors, ar 2 planned sale or disposition of a
significant portion of the business among other factors. We test
goodwill irmparment utiizing a fair value approach at a reporting unit
level which generally equates 1o our operaling segments as
discussed in Note 8 “Segment Information.” We have included
3418 million of goodwill in our consolidated staternent of financial
position as of December 51, 2008 and 2008,

Cur impairment analysls for the years ended December 371,
2008 and 2008 of oW identifiable net assets geguired in business
combinations indicated that the fair value substantially exceeded
the carrying value. As & result, we did not recognize ary impair-
ment charges,

5

Fair value measurements

The carrying values of cash and cash squivalents, recelvables,
derivative financial assets and liabilities, accounts payable, pension
and postretirement plan assets and llabilities, other current fiabilities
and accrued interest approximate fair value, See Notes 2, 3 and £
for additionat fair value disclosures.

As defined In authoritative guidance related o falr value
measurements and disclosures, fair value is the price that would be
received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a fability in an orderly
transaction between markel participants at the measwement date
{exit price). We utiize market data or assumptions that market
participants would use in pricing the asset or fiability, including
assumptions about risk and the risks inherent in the inputs to the
valuation technique. These inputs can be readily cbhservable, market
corroborated, or generally unobservable, We primartly apply the
market approach for recurring falr vaiue measurements and
endeavor 1o utilize the best avallable information. Accordingly, we
use valuation techniques that maximize the use of observable inputs
and minimize the use of unohservable inputs. We are able to classifty
fair value balances based on the observance of those inputs. The
guitlance establishes a falr value hierarchy that prioritizes the inpuls
used to measure falr value. The hierarchy gives the highest priority
to unadjusted guoted prices in active markets for identical assets
or liabilties fevel 1) and the lowest priority to uncbeervable inpute
fiavel 3). The tree levels of the fair value hierarchy defined by the
gudance are as follows:

Level 1

Quoted prices are available in active markets for identical assets or
liabilities as of the reporting date. Active markeis are those in which
ransactions for the asset or liability occur in sutficient frequency and
volume o provide pricing information on an ongeoing basis. Our
Level 1 items consist of financial instrurments with exchange-
traded derivatives.

i

Level 2

Pricing inputs are other thar quoted prices in active markets
ircluded inlevel 1, which are either directly or indirectly observable
as of the reporting date. Level 2 includes those financial and
commoadity  instruments  that are valued using  valuation
methodologies, These methodologies are primarily industry-
standard methodologies that consider various assumptions,
including guoted forward prices for commaodities, time value, volatility
factors, and current market and contraciual prices for the undarlving
instruments, as well as other relevant eccnomic measures,
Substantially all of these assumptions are observable in the
marketplace throughout the full term of the instrument, can be
derived from observable daia or are supporied by observable levels
at which fransactions are executed in the marketplace. We obtain
market price data frormn multiple sources in order to value some of
our Level 2 transactions and this data is represeniatve of
transactions that cccured In the market place. As we aggregate
aur disclosures by counterparty, the underlving transactions for a
given counterparty may be a combination of exchange-traded
derivatives and values based on other sources. Instruments in this
category include shorter tenor exchange-traded and non-exchange-
tradled derivatives such as CFC forwards and options,

l.evel 3

Pricing inputs include significant inputs that are generally less
observable from obiective sources, These inputs may be used with
inmternally developed methodologies that resulf in maragement’s bast
estimate of fair value. Level 3 instruments include those that may
b more structured or otherwise tallored to custorners’ needs. We
to not have any material assets or liabilities classified as level 3,
except for retrerment plan asssts as described in Note 3,

v Aprit 2008, addtional authoritative guidance related to fair
vaiue measurements and disclosures established a two-step
process 1o determine if the market for a financial esset is inactive
and a transaction 5 not distressed, Currently, this authoritative
guidance does not affect us, a8 our derivative financial instruments
are traded in active markets.

Taxes

The reporting of our assets and liabllites for fnancial accounting
purposes differs from the reporting for income tax purposes, The
principal differences between net income and taxable income relate
o the fiming of deductions, primarily due to the benefits of tax
depreciation since we generally dapreciate assets for tax purposes
over & shorter period of time than for book purposes. The
determingtion of our provision for income taxes requires significant
judgment, the use of estimates. ang the inferpretation and
application of compiex tax laws. Sigrificant judgmaeant is required n



assessing the timing and amounts of deductible and texatle ftems.
We report the tax effects of depreciztion and other differences in
those ftems as deferred income tax assets or liabilities in owr
conaolidated statements of financial position in accordance with
authoritative guidance related to income taxes, investment tax
credits of approximately $13 million previcusly deductsd for income
tax purposes for Atlanta Gas Light, Elizabethiown Gas, Florida City
Gas and Elkten Gas have been deferred for financial accounting
curposes and are Deing amortized as credits (o income over the
estimated fives of the related properties in accordance with
regulatony reguirerments.

We do not collect income faxes from our customers on behalf
of governmental authorities. We collect and remit various taxes on
behalt of various governmental suthorities, We record these
amounts in our consclidated staremeants of financial posttion except
taxes in the siale of Florida which we are required 1o include in
revenues and operaling expenses. These Florida related taxes are
not materlal for any periods presented.

Revenues

Distribution operations We record revenues when senvices are
provided to customers. Those revenues are hased on rates
approved by the state reguiatory commissions of cur utiities.

As reguired by the Georgla Commission, in July 1898, Atlanta
Gas Light began biling Marketers in equal monthly installments for
gach residential, commercial and industrial customer’s distribution
costs. As raquired by the Georglia Cammission, effective February 1,
2001, Atlenta Gas Light implemenied a seasonal rate design for the
calculation of sach residential customer’s annual straight-fixed-
variable (SFVY) capacity charge, which is billed to Marketers and
reflects the historic volumetric usage pattern for the entire residential
class, Generally, this change resuits in residential customers being
bilied by Marketers for a higher capacity charge in the winter months
and & lower charge in the summer months. This requirement has
an operating cash flow impact but does not change revenue
recognition. As a result, Atlanta Gas Light continues to recognize its
residential SFV capachly revenues for financial reporting purposes in
gqual monthly instaliments.

The Elizabethtown Gas, Virginia Natural Gas, Florida City Gas,
Chaitanooge Gas and Ellkion Gas rale structures include volumetric
rate designs that allow recovery of costs through gas usage.
Revenues from sales and transportation services are recognized in
the same period In which the related volumes are delivered to
custormers. Revenues from residential and certain commercial and
indusirial customers are recognizad on the basis of scheduled metar
readings. In addition, revenues are recorded for estimeated deliveries
of gas not yet billed to these customers, from the last meter reading
date 10 the end of the accounting perod. These are included in the
consolidated statements of financial position as unbilled revenue,
For other commercial and industrial custemers and afl wholesals
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cuslomers, revenles are based on actual defveries 1o the end of
the pericd.

The tariffs for Elizabethrown Gas, Virginie Natural Gas and
Chattanooga Gas contain WNAE that partially mitigate the impact of
unusually cald or warm weather on customer billings and operating
margin. The WNAs purpose is 1o reduce the effect of weather on
customer bills by reducing bills when wintar weather is colder than
normal and increasing bills when weather s warmer than normal.
Additiorally, the tariff for Virginia Natural Gas contains a revenue
notmadization mechanism that mitigates the impact of conservation
and declining customer usage.

Retail energy operations We record retail energy operations’
revenues when services are provided 1o customers. Revenues from
sales and transportation services are recognized in the same period
in which the related volumes are delivered to customers. Saleg
revenues from residential and certain commercial and industrial
customers are recognized on the basis of scheduled meter readings.
in addition, revenues are recorded for sstimated deliveries of gas
not yet biled to these customers, from the most recent meter
reading date to the end of the accounting period. These are included
in the consolicdated statements of financial position as unbilled
revenue. For other cormmercial and indusirial customers and all
wholesale customers, revenues are based on aciual deliveries to
the end of the period.

Whalesale services We record wholesale services' revenues
when services are provided io customers. Profits from sales
betwesn segments are eliminated in the corporate segment and are
recognized as goods or services sold to end-use custormers,
Transactions that qualify as derivatives under authoritative guidance
related to derivatives and hedging are recorded at fair value with
changes in fair value recognized in earnings in the periog of change
and characterized as urvealized gains or losses,

Energy investiments We record operating ravenuas at Jefferson
fsland i the period in which actual volumes are transported and
siorage services are provided. The migjority of our siorage services
are covered under medium 1o long-term contracts at fixed market-
based rates.

We record operating revenues at AGL Networks from leases
of dark fiber pursuant to indefeasible rights-of-use (1RU) agreements
as services are provided. Dark fiber IRU agreements generally
require the customer 1o make a down payment upon execution of
the agreement; however in some cases AGL Netwarks receives up
{o the entire lease payment at the inception of the lease and
recognizes ratably over the lease term. AGL Networks had deferred
revenue in our consolidated statements of financial position of
$33 million at December 31, 2008 and December 31, 2008, In
additon, AGL Networks recognizes sales revenues upon the
exgoution of certain sales-type agreements for dark fher when the
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agreements provide for the transfer of legal tifle o the dark fiber to
the customer at the end of the agresrment’s term. This sales-type
accounting freaiment 15 in accordance with authortative guidance
refated 1o leases and revenue recognition, which provides that such
transactions meet the criteria for sales-lype lsase accounting ¥ the
agreemant obligates the lessor 1o convey ownership of the
undertying asset 1o the lessees by the end of the lease term,

Cost of Gas

Excluding Atlania Gas Lightl, we charge our utility customers for
rasturat gas consumed using natural gas cost recovery mechanisms
sef by the state requiatory agencles. Under the these mechanisms,
we defer finat is, include as a current asset or lablity In the
consofidated staterments of financial posttion and exclude from the
staterments of consciidated income) the difference between the
actual cost of gas and what is coliected from or billed to customers
i & given pariod. The deferred amount is either biled or refurded
to our customers progpectively through adjustments to the
commodity rate.

Our retail energy operations customers are charged for natural
gas consumed. We also include within our cost of gas amounts for
fuel and lost and unaccounted for gas, adjustments o reduce the
value of our inventories to markel value and for gains and losses
associated with derivatives,

Comprehensive income

Our comprehensive income includes net income and net income
attributable 1o AGL Resources Inc, plus OCI, which includes other
gains and losses affecting sharehciders’ equity that GAAR excludes
from net Income and net income attributable to AGL Resources inc.
Such items consist primarily of unrealized gains and lcsses on
certain derivatives designaled as cash flow hedges and overiunded
or unfunded pension obligation adiustments.

Earnings Per Common Share

We compute basic earnings per commorn share attributable to AGL
Resources Inc. common sharehciders by dividing our income
attributaible to AGL Resources Inc. by the daily weighted average
numbier of common shares outstanding. Diluted eamings per
commoen share attribuiable 1o AGL Resources inc. commaon
shareholders reflect the potential reduction in earnings per commorn
share attributable to AGL Resowrces Inc. commion sharehoiders that
could occur when potentiaily difutive common shares are added {0
carmmon shares oulsianding.

We derive cur potentially dilutive commor: shares by calculating
tne number of shares lssuable under restricted stock, reatricted stock
units and stock options, The fulure issuance of shares underlying the
ragiricted stock and restricted share units depends on the satisfaction
of certgin performarnce coriteria, The future issuance of shares
underlying the outstanding stock options depends on whether the
exercise prices of the stock options are less than the average market
price of the commaon shares for the respective periods. The following
tabie shows the caloutation of our diuted shares atiributable to AGL
Resources inc. common sharsholders for the periods presented if
performance units currently sarned under the plan ultimately vest and
it stock options currently exercisable af prices below the gverage
market prices are exercised,

I nnilions 2009 2008 20GT
Denominator for basic earnings

per common share atirfoutable fo

AGL. Resources inc. common

shareholders™ 76.8 6.3 77 A
Assumed exercise of potential
common shares 0.3 0.2 0.3

Genominater for diluted earnings
per common share stiributable
1o AGL. Resources Inc. common
shareholders 77.3 6.6 7.4

B Dafly weighted aversge shates outslanding,

The following table contains the weighted average shares
attributable to cutstanding stock options that were excluded from
the compuiation of diluted sarnings per commen share atripuiabie
to AGL Resources nc. because their effect would have been
anti-dilutive, as the exercise prices were grealer than the average
market price:

Drzcember 31
n mifiors 2009 reaiats 260y
Twelve months ended 2.0 1.8 0.0

(L0 values (epresen emeunis less nan 801 million.

The increase in the number of shares that were exciuded from
the computation is the resull of a decling in the average markel value
of our common shares for the years ended December 31, 2008 and
2008 as compared to December 31, 2007, While the market value
of our common shares rose during 2009, the average share price for
2009 was lower than 2008 and 2007,

Regulatory Assets and Liabiiities

We have rocorded regulatory assets and liabilfties in our
consolidated statements of financial pogition In accordance with
authoritative  guidance related 1o regulated operstions. Cur



reguiatory assets and lisbilitles, and associated labllities for our
unrecovered regulatory infrastructure orogram costs, unrecovered
ERC and the derivative financial instrument assets and llabiities for
Elizabethtown Gaes’ hedging program, are summarized in the
folowing table,

Cestarate 31,
I miions 2008 2008

Regulatory assets
Unrecovered requlatory infrastructure

DrOgraim costs $266 $237
Unrecovered ERC™ 172 143
Unrecovered seasonag rales 11 1
Unrecovered postretirement benefit costs 10 i1
Unrecovered natural gas costs o 19
Other 27 30

Total regulatory assets 486 451
Associated assets
Derivative financial instruments 11 23
Total regulatory and associated assets 6497 3474
Regulatory habilities
Accumudated removal costs $183 3178
Deferred natural gas costs 30 25
Regulatory tax liabiiity 17 19
Unamortized investment tax credit 13 14
Derivative financial instruments 11 23
Other 17 22

Total reguiatory liabilities 274 281
Associated liabilities
Regulatory infrastructure program costs 210 188
ERC™ 133 Of

Total associated liabilities 343 285

Tatal regutatory and
associated liabilities $614 $564

#Eor g dintussion of BERC. see Noe 7,

Our regulatory assets are recoverable through efther rate riders
or base rales specifically authorized by a state regulatory
commission. Base rates are designed 1o provide both a recovery of
cost and a return on vestmeant during the period rates are in effect.
As such, all our regulatory assets are subject to review by the
respective slate regulatory commission during any future rate
procesdings. In the event that the provisions of authoritgtive
guidance related to regulated operations were no longer applicable,
we would recognize a write-off of regulaiory assets that would result
in a charge 1o net income, and be clagsified as an extraordinary item.

Additionally, the regulatory llabllities would not be written-off but
would continue to be recorded as fiabllities but not as regulatory
fiabitties. Although the natural gas distribution industry is becoming
increasingly competitive, our Uity operations continue fo recover
their costs through cost-pased rates established by the state
reguiatory commissions. As a result, we believe that the accounting
prescribed under the guidance rermaing appropriate. B is also our
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opinion that alf regulatory assets are recoverable in future rate
proceedings, and therefore we have not recorded any regulatory
assels thal are recoveratie but are not vel included in base ralss or
conternplated in a rate rider. The regulatory liabiities are refunded 1o
ratepayers through a rate rider or base rates. If the requlatory lability
18 included in base rates, the amount is reflected as a reduction o
the rate base in setting rates,

Ail the regulatory assets included in the preceding table are
ncluded in hase rates except for the unrecovered regulaiory
infrastruciure program costs, unrecovered ERC and deferred natural
gas costs, which are recovered through specific rate riders on a
dollar for dollar basis. The rate riders thal authorize recovery of
unrecovered regulatory infrastructure program costs and the
deferred natural gas costs include both a recovery of costs and a
return on investment during the recovery period.

We have two rate riders that authorize the recovery of
anrecovered ERC. The ERC rate rider for Atlanta Gas Light only
aliows for recovery of the costs incurred and the recovery period
occurs over the five years after the expense is incurred. ERC
associated with the investigation and remediation of Elizabethtown
Gas remediation sites located in the state of New Jersey are
recovered under a remediation adjustment clause and include the
carrving cost on unrecovered amounis not currently in rates.

Elizabathtown Gag' derivative financial instrument asset and
fability reflect unreafized losses or gains that will be recovered from
or passed io rate payers through the recovery of iis natural gas costs
on a dollar for dollar basig, once the losses or gaing are realized. For
more informatien on Elizabethtown Gas' derivative financiai
instruments, see Nole 2.

Unrecovered postretirement benefit costs are recoverable
through base rates over the next 4 1o 23 years based on the
remaining recovery period as desigrated by the applicable state
regulatory commissions. Unrecovered seasonal rates reflect the
difference betwesn the recagnition of a portion of Aflanta Gas Light's
residential base rates revenues on a straight-line basle as compared
to the collection of the revenues over a seasonal pattern. The
unrscovered amounts are fully recoverable through case rates within
One year,

Regulatory Infrastructure Programs

Ailanta Gas Light was ordered by the Georgia Commission {through
a joint stipulation and a subsequent setflement agreement between
Atlanta Gas Light and the Georgia Commission) to underiake a
pipeline replacement program hat would replace all bare stsel
and cast iron pipe in its system by December 2013, f Atlanta Gas
Light does not perform in accordance with this order, it will be
assessed certain nonperformance penalties. These replacernents
are on schedule.

The order provides for recovery of all prudent costs Incurred in
the performance of the program, which Attanta Gag Light has
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recorded as a reguiatory assel. Atlanta Gas Ught will recover from
end-use custorners, through lings 1o Marketers, the costs related
o the program net of any cost savings Form the program, All such
amounts will be recovered through a combination of straight-fixed-
variable rates and a pipaline replacement revenue rider, The
regulatory asset has two componenis:

= the costs incurred to date that have notl yet been recovered
through the rate rider
 the future expected costs to be recovered through the rate nder

Atlanta Gas Light has recorded along-term regulatory asset of
$223 millicn, which represents the expected future collection of
both expendiures already incurred and expecied future capitsl
expenditures 1o be incurred threugh the remainder of the program.
Atlanta Gas Light has also recorded 2 current asset of $43 million,
which represents the expected amount {0 be collected from
custorners over the nexi 12 months, The amounts recovered
frem the pipeline replacement revenue rider during the last three
vears were;

© 341 million in 2009
» £30 million in 2008
* $27 million in 2007

As of Dacernber 371, 2008, Atlanta Gas Light had recorded a
current labflity of $55 million representing expected program
expenditures for the next 12 months and a long-term liability of
3155 millien, representing expacted program expendiures starting
in 2011 through the end of the program in 2013.

Atlanta Gas Light capitalizes and depreciates the capital
expenditure costs incurred from the pipeline replacement program
over the e of the assets. Operation and maintenance costs are
expansed as incurred, Recoveries, which are recorded as revenue,
arg based on a formula that allows Atlanta Gas Light to recover
operation and maintenance costs in excess of those included in fis
current base rates, depreciation expense and an allowed rate of
return on capiial expenditures. In the near term, the primary financial
impact to Atlanta Gas Light from the pipeline replacement program
is reduced cash flow from operating and investing activities, as the
timing related to cost recovery does not maich the timing of when
costs are Iincurred. However, Atlanta Gas Light is allowed the
recavery of carying ¢osts on the under-recovered balance resulting
from the timing difference.

In June 2009, Atlanta Gas Light fled & request for a Strategic
Infrastructure Development and Enhancernent (STRIDE) program
with the Georgia Commission 1o upgrade s distribution system and
tquefied natural gas facilities to improve system reliabiiity and create
a platform to meet operational flexibilty needs and forecasted
growth. Linder the program, Atlanta Gas Light would be required to
file a ten-year infrastructure plan every three years for review and

approvel by the Georgia Commission, The program merges with
Atlanta Gas Light's exsting pipeling replacement program. in
October 2000, the Georgia Commission approved the inltial three
years of the STRIDE orogram, estimated at approximately
$176 milion. The program is subject 1o review and modification by
the Georgia Commission every three vears.

In April 2008, the New Jersey BPU approved an accelerated
$60 million ennenced infrastructure program for Efizabethtown Gas,
which began in 2008 and is scheduled to be completed in 2011,
This program was created in response 16 the New Jersey Governor's
request for utifties to assistin the economic recovery by increasing
infrastructure investments. A regulatory cost recovery mechanism
will be established with estmated rates put into effect at the
beginning of each year. Af the end of the program the regulatory
cest recovery mechanism will be frued-up and any remaining costs
not previously collected will be included in base rates.

Treasury Shares

Gur Board of Directors has authorized us to purchase up to B milion
treasury shares thrcugh our repurchase plans, These plans are used
1o offset shares issued under our employee and non-employes
director incentive compensation plans and  our  dividend
reinvestment and stock purchase plang, Stock purchases under
these plans may be made in the open market or in private
transactons at times and in amounts that we deem appropriate.
There is no guarantee as o the exact number of shares that we wil
purchase, and we can terminate or limit the program at any time. We
will hold the purchased shares as treasury shares and account for
them using the cost mathod. As of December 31, 2009, we had
5 milfion remaining authorized shares available for purchase. In 2007,
we spant $80 million to purchase approximately 2 milion treasury
shares at a weighted average price per share of $38.58. We did not
make any treasury share purchases in 2008 or 2009,

Dividends

Cur cormemen sharehoiders may receive dividends when declared at
the discretion of cur Board of Directors. Dividends may be paid in
cash, stock or other form of payment. and payment of future
dividends will depend on our future sarnings, cash flow, financial
requirements and other faciors. Additionally, we derive 2 substantial
portion of our consclidated assets, earnings and cash flow from the
operation of regulated utility subsidiaries, whose legal authority to
pay dividends or make other distributions to ug is subject to
reguiation. As with most other companies, the payment of dividends
are restricted by laws n the states where we do business. In certain



cases, our ability to pay dividends to our comimon shareholders is
limited Ly the following:

& our ability o pay our debls as they become due in the usugl
course of busingss, satisty our obligations under certain financing
agreements, including debi-to-capitalization covenants

e our tolal assets are less than our total Babilities, and

= our ability fo satisfy our obligations to any preferred shargholders

Use of Accounting Estimates

The preparation of our financial statements in canformity with GAAP
reqguires Us 1o make estimates and judgments that affect the
reported amounts of assets, liabiities, revenues and expenses and
the related disclosures of contingent assets and kabilites. We based
our estimates on historical experience and various other
assumptions that wa believe to be reasonable under the
circumstances, and we evaluate our estimates on an ongoing bhasis.
Fach of owr eslimales mvolve complex situations requiring a high
degree of judgment elther in the application and interpretation of
existing literature or in the development of estimates that impact our
financial statements. The most significant estimates include our
pipeline replacement program accruals, environmental liability
accruals, uncoliectibie accounts and other dllowance for
contingencies, pensioh and postretirement obligations, derivative
and hedging activities and provision for income taxes. Our actual
resutts could differ from our estimates.

Subsequent Events

In May 2008, the FABB estabiished guidance for and disclosure of
events that occur after the stalements of inancial position date, but
before financial statements are issued. or are available to be issued.
Trnis guidance should now be applied by mansgement to the
accounting for and disclesure of subseguent events, but does not
apply 1o subseauent events or ransactions that are within the scope
of other applicable GAAF that provide different guidance. in
accordance with the guidance, we evaluated subseguent events
untit the time that our financial staternents were issued.

Note 2 Derivative Financial Instruments

Netting of Cash Collateral and Derivative Assets and
Liabilities under Master Netting Arrangements

We maintain accounts with brokers to facifitate fhancial denvative
transactions in support of our energy marketing and risk
managermeant activities, Based on the value of our positions in these
accounts and the asscciated margin recuiremants, we may ba
required to deposit cash into these broker accounis,
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The authoritative guidance related 1o derivatives and hedging
requires that we offset cash coliaterg! held in our Droker accourts on
our consolidated staterments of financial position with the assoclated
fair value of the instruments in the accounts. Qur cash collateral
amelirts ware 357 million as of Decernber 31, 2009 and wers
124 million as of Decermber 31, 2008.

Derivative Financial Instruments

Our risk management activities are monifored by our Risk
Maragerment Committee, which consists of members of senior
management and is charged with reviewing and enforcing our risk
rmanagement activities and polictes. Qur use of dervative financial
instruments and physical ransactions is mited 10 predefinad risk
tolerances associated with pre-existing or anticipated physical
natural gas sales and purchases and system use and storage. We
use the following types of derivative financial instruments ana
physical tfransactions to manage natural gas price, interest rate,
wegthier, automobile fuel price and foreign currency risks:

* fonward contracts

s fulures contracts

s options cordracts

¢ financial swaps

* teasury locks

= weather derivative contfracts

= siorage and transportation capacity fransactions
e foreign currency forweard contracts

Our derivative financial instruments do not contain any material
cradit-risk-related or other contlngent features that could increase
the payments for collateral we post in the normal course of business
when our financial instruments are In net liability positions. For
infarmation on our energy marketing receivables and payables,
which do have credit-risk-related or other contingent features, refer
to Note 1. Qur denvative financial instrument activities are includead
within operating cash flows ag an adiustment to net income of
$11 million in 2008, $129) milion In 2008 and $74 milion in 2007.

Natural Gas Derivative Financial Instruments

The fair value of natural gas derivative financial instruments we use
to manage exposures arsing from changing natural gas prices
reflects the estimated amounts that we would receive or pay to
terminate or close the confracts at the reporting date, taking into
account the current unreglized gains or 10sses on open coniracts,
We use external market quotes and indices to value substantially af
the dertvative financial instruments we use.
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Distribution Operations In accordance with & directive from the
New Jerssy BPU, Elizabethtown Gas enters into dervative financial
instruments to hedge the impact of market fuctuations in natural
gas prices, Pursuant {o the authoritative guidance relaled to
derivatives and hedging, such derivative transactions ars accountesd
for at fair value sach reporting period in our consclidated stataments
of financial positior. In accordance with regulatory requirements
reafized gaing and losses related 10 these dervatives are reflected in
natural gas costs and ultimately included in bilings to customers.
However, these derivative financial instruments are not designated
as hedges in accordance with the guidance, As of December 31,
2009, Elizabethtown Gas had enfered into OTC swap contracts to
purchase approxmately 18 Bef of natural gas. Approximately 83%
of these contracts have durations of one year or less, and none of
these contracts extends beyond December 2011, The fair values cf
these derivative instruments were reflected as a current and long-
terrm asset and lHatlity of $11 milion at Decembear 31, 2009 and
323 million at December 31, 2008. For more information on our
regulatory assets and lisbilites see Note 1.

Retail Energy Operations We have designated a portion of
SouthStar's derivative financial instruments, consisting of financial
awaps to manage the risk associaled with forecasted natural gas
purchases and sales, as cash flow hedges under the authoritative
guidance related to derivatives and hedging., We record derivative
gains or losses arsing from cash flow hedges in GOl and reclassify
them into earnings in the same period as the settlerment of the
underlying hedged item,

SouthStar currently has minimal hedge ineffectiveness defined
&s when the gains or losses on the hedging instrument do not offset
the {osses or gains on the hedged ilem, This cash flow hedge
inefectivenass is recorded in cost of gas in ocur consclidated
staterments of income in the perlod in which it occurs, We have not
designated the remainder of ScuthStar's dervative financial
instruments as hedges under the authoritative guidance refated 1o
derivatives and hedging and. accordingly, we record changes in their
fair value within cost of gas in our consolidated staternents of income
in the period of change. For more information on ScouthStar's gains
and iosses reported within comprehensive income that affect equity.
see our consclidated statements of comprehensive income {loss),
SouthStar has hedged #s axposures 1o natural gas price risk to
varying degraes in the markets in which it serves retad, commersial
and industrial customers. Approximately 97% of ScuthStar's
purchase instruments and 98% of ils sales instruments are
scheduled to malure in 2010 and the remaining 3% and 2%,
respectively, from January 2011 through March 2012.

At December 31, 2008, the fair values of these derivatives were
reflactad in our consolidated financial statements as a current asset
of $21 million with no current liabllity representing a net position of
15 Bef. This includes a $2 million current asset associated with a
prermium and related intrinsic value for weather derivatives. At
December 31, 2008, the fair values of these derlvatives were

reflecied in cur consolidated financial statements as a current asset

of $2 millicn representing a net position of 28 Bef, This includes a
$4 million current assst associated with & premium and related
irtrinsic value for weather derivatives and associated intrinsic value,

SouthStar also enters into both exchange and OTC derivative
financial instruments 1o hedge natural gas price risk. Credit risk is
mitigated for exchange transactions through ihe backing of the
NYMEX member firms, For OTC fransactions, ScuthStar Jtilizes
master netting arrangements to reducs overall credit risk, As of
December 31, 2008, ScuthStar's maximum exposure to any single
OTC counterparty was $7 million,

Wholesale Services We purchase natural gas for storage when
the difference in the current market price we pay to buy and
transport natural gas plus the cost to store the netural gas Is less
than the market price we can receive in the future, resdlting in a
posiive net operating margin. We use NYMEX fidures contracts and
other OTC derivatives to sell natural gas at that future price to
substantially lock in the operating margin we wilt ulimarely realize
when the stored naturad gas is actually sold, These futures contracts
meet the definlion of derivatives under the authoritative guidance
retated o denvatives and hedging and are accounted for at falr value
in our consolidated staternents of inancial position, with changes in
fair value recorded in our consolidated statements of income in the
perod of change. However, these futures conriracts are not
designated as hedges in accordance with the guidance,

The impact of changes in far value of Sequent's derivative
instrurments utifized n its energy marketing and risk management
activities, contract setflements and new business contracts acoulred
in 2009 Increased the net falr value of s contracts outstanding by
$36 mililon during 2008, 825 milion during 2008 and reduced net
tair value by $62 milion during 2067.

At December 31, 2009, Sequent's commodity-related derivative
financial instruments represented purchases fong) of 1,571 Bef and
salas {(short) of 1,404 Bef with approximately 95% of purchase
instruments sales instruments are scheduled to maturs in less than
2 years and the ramaining 5% i 3 1o 6 vears. At December 31, 2008,
the fair values of these derivatives were reflectad in our consolidated
firancial statements as an asset of $208 milion and a liabilty of
$51 mifion. Af Decernber 31, 2008, the faf values of these dervatives
were reflected in our consolidated financid statements as an asset of
$206 milion and a liabiity of $27 milion,

The purchase, fransportation, storage and sale of natural gas
are gooounted for on a weighted average cost or acerual basis, as
appropriate, rather than on the fair value basis we utifize for the
darvatives used to mitigate the natural gas price rigk associated
with: our storage portfolio. This difference in accounting can result
in volalility In our reporied earnings, even though the economic
margins is essentially unchanged from the date the transactions
were consummated.



Energy Investments Golden Triangle Storage uses derivative
financial instruments to reduce its exposure during the construciion
of the storage caverns 1o the risk of changes in the price of natural
gas that will be purchased in future pericds for pad gas. Pad gas
inchides volumes of non-working natural gas used to mainiain the
operational integrity of the caverns.,

We have designated all of Golden Trangle Storage's darivative
financigl instruments, consisting of financial swaps as cash flow
hedges under the authoritative guidance related 1o derivaiives and
hedging. The pad gas i3 considered tc be a component of the
storage cavern's construction costs; as a result, any derivative gains
or fosses arising from the cash flow hedges will remain i OCH untd
the pad gas s sold, which will not ocour until the storage caverns are
decommissionad. The far value of these denvative financial
instruments currently have minimal nedge ineffectiveness which is
recorded in cost of gas in our consclidated statements of income in
the period in which i occurs. Golden Triangle Storage began
envienng o these derivalive financial ransactions during 2008.

Weather Derivative Financial Instruments

in 2009 and 2008, SouthStar entered Into weather derivative
contracts as economic hedges of operating marging in the event of
warmer-than-nomal and colder-than-normal weather in the heating
season, primarlly from November through March. SouthStar
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aceounts for these contracts using the intrinsic value method under
the autheritative guidance related 1o financial instrumants. These
weather derivative financial instrumaenis are not designated as
dervatives or hedges and ScuthStar has recorded a curent asset
of 32 mitlion at Decernber 31, 2009 and $4 milton &t December 31,
2008, SoulthStar recognized losses on its weather derfvative financial
instrurnents of $6 miltion for the vear ended Decemper 31, 2009,
38 million for the year ended December 31, 2008 and gains of
%4 million for the yvear ended December 31, 20067 which was
reflected in cost of gas on our consclidated statements of income.

Derivative Financial Instruments -
Fair Value Hierarchy

The following table sets forth, by level within the fair value hlerarchy,
our derlvative financial assets and liabilities that were accounted for
at fair value on a recuring basis as of Decermbper 3%, 2008, As
required by the authoritative guidance, derivative financial assets
and labilities are classified in their entirety based on the lowest level
of nput that is sigrnificant 1o the fair value measurement, Gur
assessment of the significance of a particuiar input to the fair value
messurement requires judgment, and may affect the valuation of fair
vatue assets and lighilities and their placement within the fair value
higrarchy levels. For more infarmation on 2 descrigtion of the falr
vaiue hierarchy, see Note 1.

3 far values

financial insiruments

December 31, 2009 Decerrder 31, 2008
I mifions Assets (i Liabilities Apgers ™ Ligbslizes
Quoted prices in active markets {Level 1) $ 36 ${37) § 02 3(117)
Significant other cbservable inputs {Levet 2} 172 52 164 {28}
Netting of cash collateral 30 27 35 88
Total carrying value® $238 $(62) 2241 3 (56)

i SE milion premium at Decernber 31, 2008 anc $4 milior: al Deowrier 21, 2008
e There were no significent unabservabe inpus flevel 5 fur

ary of 1 peiocs Dresented.

ansoCiaed with weather garvalives have heen excluden as Ty are based on intinslc value, not iair value,

The determination of the fair values above incorporates various factors reguired under the guidance, These factors include not only the crecl
standling of the counterparties invelved and the impact of credit enhancements (such as cash deposits, letters of cradit and priority inferests),

but also the impact of our nonperformancs risk on our abilties,

Quantitative Disclosures Related o Derivative Financial Instruments

As of December 31, 2008, ouwr derivative financial instruments were comprised of both fong and short natural gas positions. A long position is
a contract to purchase natural gas, and a short position is a contract to sell natural gas. As of December 31, 2008, we had net long natural gas

contracts oufstanding m the following quantities:

Natural gas contracts

Hedge dasignation {in Bcf)
Cash flow 5
Nct designated 108
Total 13
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Derivative Financial Instruments on the Consolidated Statements of Income

The following fable presents the galn or floss) on denvative financial instruments in cur consclidated statements of ncome.

I s
Designated as cash flow hedges under authoritative guidance related o derivatives and hedging
Natural gas contracts —loss reclassified from QClinto cost of gas for setllement of hedged item H31)
Not designated as hedges under authoritative guidance related to derivatives and hedging
Naturat gas contracts ~ fair value adjustments recorded in operating revenues™ 21
Netural gas contracts — net gain falr value adjustrments recorded in cost of gas® i
Total losses on derivative instruments & (9

& Agsoristed with the fair vatie of existing dervative imsuments of Decernber 31, 200¢
tives for the vear entied Decerrber 31, 2006

@ Excludes 86 mdlion of fosses recorded in cost of gas associzied with weziher der

The foliowing amounts (pre-tax) represent the expecied recognition in our consclidated statements of income of the deferred losses
racorded in OCI associated with retail energy aperations’ derivative instruments, based upon the fair values of these financlal instrumants:

As of
fn mifions December 31, 2000
Designated as hedges under authoritative guidance related to derivatives and hedging
Netural gas contracts - expected ret loss reclassified rom OClinto cost of gas for settlement of
hedged item over next tweive months (8

Derivative Financial instruments on the Consolidated Statements of Financial Position

In accordance with regulatory requirements, 838 million of realized losses on derivative financial instruments used at Elizabethtown Gas in
olr distribution operations segment are reflected in deferred natural gas costs within our consolidated statements of inancial position for the
vear ended December 31, 2008, The following table presents the fair value and statements of financial position classification of our derivative
financiat instruments.

I mifions Sraterneny of fnancial position lncation ™ Epcember 31, ?L‘Ogl‘“
Designated as cash flow hedges under authoritative guidance related to derivatives and hedging
Asset Financial Instruments
Current natural gas contracts Dervative financial instruments assets and liabilities - current portion $ 8§
Liability Financial instruments
Current natural gas contracts Derivative firancial instrurments assets and liabilities -~ current portion (53
Total 1
Not designated as cash flow hedges under authoritative guidance related to derivatives and hedging
Asset Financial instruments _
Current natural gas contracts Diervative financial instruments assets and liabilities — current portion 80
Noncurrent natural gas contracis Derivative financial instruments assets and liabilities 118
Liability Financial Instruments
Current natural gas contracts Dertvative financial ingtruments assets and habilities — current portion (810}
Noncurrerd natural gas contracts Derivative financial instruments assets and liabiities (78)
Total 120
Total detivative financial instruments $121

“ These amounis are netted witiin our consolidatec staternents of Tnancial position. Some of our denvative fimancial nstruments have asset positions which are presented as 2 fakdity in ow consolidated

atemients of financisl position, and we have derivative Instruments 1zt nave liazility positions which are presented as an asset in our consotdated statements of financial posttion.

T g ecuitedt Dy the authoriiative guidance relatad to denvalives and hedging, the fai As a resull, the amounts above do not include 887 mifion of cash
enfizters hald on dep December 31, 2000, sccordingty, the amounis above will differ from the amourts presanted on our consolidated statemenis of financial positorn,
and e ey vale micrmation presented for our derfvate financial nstramenis n

value armounis abiove are preseried oh 3 gross basis

broker mMargn accoumts as
ine recurting velues tabde ol ths note.



Concentration of Credit Risk

Atlanta Gas Light Concentration of credit risk occurs at Atlania
Gas Light for amounts billed for services and other cosis 1o s
customers, which consist of nine Marketers in Georgia. The credit
risk exposure 10 Marketers varies seasonally, with the lowsest
exposwe in the nonpeak summer months and the highest
exposure in the peak winter months. Marketers are responsibie for
the retail sale of natural gas 1o end-use cusiomers in Georgia,
These retalt functions include customer service, billing, collections,
and the purchase and sale of natural gas. Atlanta Gas Light's tariff
allows it {o obtein security support in an amount equal 10 no less
than two fimes a Marketer's highest month’s estimated bilt from
Attanta Gas Light.

Wholesale Services Seguent has a concentration of credit risk for
services i provides to marketers and to utiity and industrial
counterparties. This credi risk is measured by 30-day receivabls
exposurs plus forward exposure, which is generally concentrated in
20 of its counterparties. Sequent evaluates the credit risk of its
counterparties using a S&P equivalent credit rating, which is
determined by a process of converting the lowsr of the S&F or
Mooty's rating to an internal rating ranging from 9.00 to 1.00, with
.00 being equivalent to AdA/Aaa by S&P and Moody's and 1.00
being equivalent to D or Default by 8&F and Moody's. For a customer
without an externgl rating, Sequent assigns an internal rating based
orn Sequent's analysis of the strength of its financial ratios. At
December 31, 2008, Sequent’s top 20 counterparties represented
approximately 58% of the total credit exposure of $534 million,
derived by adding together the top 20 counterparties’ exposures and
dividing by the iotal of Sequent’s counterparties’ exposures.
Sequent’s counterparties or the counterparties’ guarantors had a
weighted avarage S&P equivalent rating of A- at December 31, 2008.

The weighted average credit rating is obtained by multiplying
each customer's assigned internal rating by s credit exposure and
then adding the individual results for all counterparties. That total is
divided by the aggregate total exposure. This numeric value is
converted 10 an S&F equivalent.

Sequent has established credit policies to determine and
monitor  the creditworthiness  of counterparties,  including
reguirements for posting of coliateral or other gradit security, as well
as the quality of pledged collateral, Collateral or credit security is
most often in the form of cash or letters of credi from an vestment-
grade financial institution, but may also include cash or U5
Government Securities held by a trustee. When Seguent is engaged
in more than one outstanding derivative transaction with the same
counterpary and § also has 2 legally enforceable neting agreement
with that counterparty. the “net” mark-to-market exposure
represents the netting of the positive and negative exposures with
that counterparty and a reasonable measure of Sequent’s credit rigk,
Sequent alsc uses other netting agreements with certain
counterparties with which it conducts signficant transactions. ‘
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Note 3 Employee Benefit Plans

Accounting for employee benefit plans

The authoritative guidance related to retirement benefits requires that
we recognize all obligations related o defined benefit pensions and
other postretvement henefits and quantity the plans’ funding status
as an asset or a lability on ouwr consolidated statements of financial
position. The guidance further reguires that we measure the plans’
assets and obligations that determine our funded status as of the
and of the fiscal year. We are aiso required to recognize as a
compenent of OCHhe changes in funded status that occured during
the year that are not recognized as part of net perfodic benefitt cost
as explained In authoritative guidance related to pension and
postretirement benefits.

Based on the funded status of our defined benefit pension and
postretirament benefit plans as of December 31, 2008, we reported
an after-tax gain to our OC1 of $17 milken $28 milion before tax), a
net decrease of 348 million 1o accrued pension and postretrement
obligations and an increase of $11 milion to accumuiated deferred
income faxes.

Oversight of Plans

The Retirement Plan Investment Committee (the Committes)
appoited by our Board of Directors is responsibie for overseeing the
investments of the retrement plans. Further, we have an Investment
Policy (the Pelicy! for the ratirement and postretirement benefit plans
that aims to preserve these plansg” capital and maximize investment
eamings In excess of inflation within acceptabls levels of capital
markat volatility, To accomplish this goal, the retirement and
wostretirement benefit plans’ assets are actively managed o
optimize long-term return while maintaining a high standard of
portfolio quality and diversification.

We will continue to diversify retirement plan investments 1o
minimize the risk of large losses in a single asset class. We do not
have a concentration of assets in a single entity, industry, country,
commaodity or class of investment fund. The Policy’s permissible
nvesiments include domestic and international equities fincluding
convertible securities and mutual funds), domestic and international
fed income {corporate and U.S. government obligations), cash and
cash equivaients and other auitable investmanis,

Equity market performance and corporate bond rates have &
signiicant effect on ouwr reported unfunded projected benefit
obllgation (PBO} and accumudated postretirement benefit obligation
(AFBOL, as the primary factors that drive the value of our unfunded
FPBO and APBO are the assumed discount rate and the actual return
on plan assets, Additionally, equity market performance has a
significant effect on our market-related value of plan asseis (MRVIPA),
which is Used by our largest pension plan. The MRVPAs a calculated



AGL Resources inc, 2002 Annual Heport

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statemenis

value and differs from the actual market value of plan assets. The
MRVPA also recognizes the difference between the actual market
value and expected markst value of our plan assels and is
determined by our actuaries using a five-year moving weighted
average methodoiogy. Gains and losses on plan assets are spread
through the MBVPA hased on the five-year moving weighted average
mathodology, which affects the expected return on plan assets
component of pension expense,

Pension Benefits

We sponsor two tax-gualified defined benefit retirement plans for
our eligible emplovees, the AGL Resources Inc. Retirement Plan
(AGL Retirement Plan) and the Employees’ Retirement Plan of NUI
Caorporation (NUI Retiremant Flan). A defined benefit plan specifies
fhe amount of benefits an eligible participant eventually will receive
using information abouwt the participant,

We generally calculate the banefits under the AGL Retirement
lan based on age, years of service and pay, The benefit formula for
the AGL Retivernent Plan is a career average earnings formula,
exceant for participants who were employees as of July 1, 200C, and
who were at least 50 years of age as of that dats. For those
particlants, we use a final average earnings benefit formula, and
will continue 1o uge this benefit formula for such participarts uniil
December 31, 2010, at which time any of those participants who are
still actively employed will accrue future benefits under the career
average sarmings formula.

Thne NUL Retirement Plan covers substantially alf of NUI
Corporation's employees who were employed on or before
Decermber 31, 2008, except Florida City Gas union empiloyees, who
untl February 2008 participated in a union-sponsored multiemployer
plan, Pension henefits are based on years of ¢redited service and
final average compensation as of the plan freeze date. Effective,
January 1, 2006, participation and beneft accrual under the NUI
Retirernent Plan were frozen, As of that date, former participants in
that plan became eligible to participate in the AGL Retirement Plan.
Fiorida City Gas union employess becarme eligible to participate in
the AGL Retirernent Plan in February 2008,

Postretirement Benefits

We sponsor a defined benefit postretirement health care plan for
our gligible employess, the Health and Welfare Plan for Retirees
and Inactive Employees of AGL fesources Inc. {(AGL
Postretirement Plan). Eligibliity for these tenefits is based on age
and vears of service.

The AGL Postretirement Plan includes medical coverage for o
elgible AGL Resowrces emplicyees whe were employed as of
June 30, 2002, i they reach retirament age while working for us.
Additionally. the AGL Postretirement Plan provides life insurance ior af
employees if they have ten years of service at retirernent. The state
reguiatory commissions have approved phase-ing that cefer a portion
of other postretirement benelits expense for flure recovery, We
recorded a reguiatory asset for these future recoveries of $10 millon
as of Decermber 31, 2008 and 511 million as of December 31, 2008.
I addition, we recorded a reguiatory labiiity of $5 mifion as of
December 31, 2008 and $5 mifion as of Decermper 31, 2008 for our
expected expensas under the AGL Postretirermnent Plan. We expect io
pay 38 million of insurance claims for the postretirement plan in 2010,
but we do not anticipate making any addifional contributions,

CHective Decermber 8, 2003, the Medicare Frascription Drug,
Improvement and Modernization Act of 2003 was signed into law.
This act provides for a prescription drugy benefit under Medicare
(Part O} as well as a federal subsidy to sponscrs of retires health care
benefit plans that provide a benefit that is at least actuarially equivalent
to Medicare Fart D.

From January 1. through June 30, 2008, Medicare-eligible
participants receive prescription drug benefits through a Medicare
Part D plan offersd by a third party end to which we subsidized
participant premiums. Medicare-eligible retirees who opted out of the
AGL Pestretirement Plan were eligible to receive a cash subsidy which
could be used towards eligible prescription drug expenses. Effective
July 1, 2008, Medicare eligible retirees, including alt of those 2t least
age 65, receive benefits through owr contribution to a retiree heafth
reimbursement arrangement account.

Effective January 1, 2010, enhancements were made 1o the pre-
85 medical coverage by removing the current cap on our expected
costs and implamenting a new cap determined by the new retiree
premim schedule based on salary level and years of service,
Caonseguently, & one-percentage-point change in the assurmed health
care cost irend rates does not materially affect the periodic benefit
costs or owr accumulated projecied benefit obligation for our
postretirement plan.
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Contributions

Our employess do not contribute to the retirement plans. We fund the gualified pension plans by contributing at least the minimum amount
required by applicable reguiations and as recommended by our actuary, However, we may also contribute n excess of the minimum required
amount. As raguired by The Pension Protection Act (the Act) of 2006, we calculate the minimum amount of funding using the tradiional unit
credit cost method.

The Act contained new funding requirernents for single employer defined keneft pension plans. The Act established a 100% funding target
{over & V-year amertization parod) for plan vears beginning after December 31, 2007, If certain conditions are met, the Worker, Retiree and
Employer Recovery Act of 2008 {passed December. 2008) allowed us 1o measure cur 2008 and 2008 minemum required contributions based
on & funding target at 92% and 949%, respectivaly. In 2010, this will increase to 98% and for 2011, t will increase to 100%. In 2009 we coniributed
24 milion to owr qualified pension plans. in 2008 we did not make contributions to our gualified pension plans as one was not required. For
more information on our 2010 contributions o owr pension plans, see Note 7.

The following 1ables present details about cur AGL Retirement Plan and the NUI Retirerent Plan fretirement plans) and the AGL
Fostretirerment Plan tpostratirement plan).

Hedrement plans Postretiament plan
eflars i miions 2009 HKE 2009 e
Change in plan assets
Fair value of plan assets, January 1, 242 $ 383 8 49 270
Actua gairs {oss} on plan assets 61 {115} 14 Zn
Employer contribution 26 1 7 4
Benefits paid {28) 27 n 4
Fair value of plan assets, December 31, {A) $ 303 $ 242 $ 63 % 40
Change in benefit obligation
Benafit obligation, January 1, $ 442 $ 427 $ 95 % G4
Service cost 8 7 - —
Interest cost 26 s 6 5]
Flan amendment — - 1 —
Actuaral loss {gainy 13 g g (1
Benafits paid {26} 27 {7) {4
RBeneft obligation, December 31, (B} $ 463 & 442 $101 %08
% funded {A/B]) 65.4% 54.8% 62.4% £1.6%
Amounts recognized it the consolidated statements

of financial position consist of

Current liability $ ) $ $ - 3 -
Long-term liahbility {159) {198} {38) (46}
Total bability at December 31, ${160} $(200) 5 (38) $i46)
Assumptions used to determine benefit obligations
Discount rate 58-6.0% 6.2% 5.8% £8.2%
Rate of compensation Increase 3.7% 3.7% 3.7% 3.7%

Accumulated benefit obligation $ 448 § 425 Not apolicabie

&5
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The components of our pension ard postretirerment benefit costs are sat forth in the following table.

Zetirarment plans

Lollars in railions 2009 2008 2007

Net benefit cost

Service Cost $ 8 37 g 7 $oem $— &1

Interest cost 6 26 26 6 5} &

Expected return on plan assets {29) (32) {31 {4} {6 )]

Net armortization 2) {2} @ {4} {4 {43

Recognized actuarial loss 9 3 7 2 1 1
Net anvwal pension cost $12 g 2 87 $— $ {3 31

Assumptions used to determine benefit costs

Discount rate 6.2% 5.4% 58% 6.2% 6.4% 58%

Expected refurn on plan assets 8.0% 8.0% 9.0% 9.0% 9.0% 8.0%

Rate of compensation increase 3.7% 3.7% 3.7% 3.7% 37%  37%

There were no other changes in plan assets and benefit
ohiigations recognized for our retirement and posiretirernent plans
for the year ended Cecember 31, 2008, The 2070 estimated OCI
amortization and expected refunds for these plans are sel forih in the
foliowing table.

Hetirement Fosiretirerient

N miffiors plans dlan
Arnortization of prioy

service credit $ @ 8i4)

Amertization of net loss i1 2

Refunds expecied — —

The following takle presents expected benelit payments for the
vears ended December 31, 2010 through 2019 for cur retirement
and postratirement plans. There will be benefit payments under
these plans beyond 2018,

Fetirgment Fostratirerment
i rfions plang phar
2010 § 27 %8
2011 Z7 8
2012 27 8
Z0138 27 8
2014 27 7
2015-2019 184 37
Total 280 876

Tne following table presents the amounts not yet reflected in
net periodic benefit cost and included in accumulated OC! as of
December 37, 2008,

Petirerres Postretirament
I riflions plans e
Prigr service credit § (17 F12)
Net loss 187 23
Accumdated OCH 170 21

Net armount recognized in

consolidaied statements

of financial position (160} {38}
Fregaid {accrued) cumulative employer

coniributions in excess of net periodic

penefit cost $ 10 $07)

There were no other changes in plan assets and benefit
obligations recognized in our retirerment and postretirement plans
for the year ended December 37, 2008,

We consider a number of factors in determining and selecting
assumptions for the overall expected long-term rate of return on
plan assets. We consider the historical long-term retum experience
of our assets, the current and expected allocation of our plan assets,
and expected long-term rates of return. We darive these expected
long-term rates of return with the assistance of our investment
advisors and generally bage these rates on a 10-year horizon for
various asset classes, our expecied investments of plan assets and
active asset management as cpposed o Investment in g passive
index fund, We base our expeciad allocation of plan assels on a
diversified portfolic consisting of domestic and international equity
securities, fixed income, real estate, private equity securities and
alternative assel classes.

We consider e variety of faciors in determining and selecting
our assumptions for the discount rate at December 31, We consider
certain market indices and including Moody's Comorate AA long-
term bond rate, the Citigroup Pension Liability rate, other high-grade
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bond indices a singte equivalent discount rate derived with the assistance of our actuaries by matching expecied future cash flows in gach year
to the appropriate spot rates based in high quallty (rated AA or better) corporate bonds.

O target asset aliocations consists of approximately 30% — 55% equity, 10% — 40% fixed income, 10% — 35% real estate and cther and
the remaining 0% ~ 10% in cash. Our actual retirement and postretirement plans” asset allocations by level within the fair value higrarchy at
Decerber 31, 2009, are presented in the table befow. Our retirement and postretirement plans' assets wars accounted for at tair value and are
classified in ther entirsty based on the lowast lavel of input that s significant to the fair value measurement. Our assessment of the significance
of a partictlar input to the fair value measurement requires judgment, and may affect the valuation of fair value asseis and thalr placermerst
within the fair value hierarchy levels. For more information on a description of the fair value higrarchy, see Note 1,

Fetirement plans s Posiretrement plan
Irs eniffions fevel 1 Lewed 2 Leread 3 Tolat 0 Lavei 1 Levet 2 ievel 3 Totu 10:3;
Cash g 12 $ - g~ & 12 % 31 $— $— g1 2%
Eouity Securities
LS. large cap® 73 — — 73 24% - 31 — 31 54%
LS, small cap” 44 o — 44 14% — — — — -—
international companies™® - 35 5 40 13% - i1 — 11 19%
merging markets™ o 13 o 13 4%, - - - - e
Fixed income securities
Corporate bonds®™ — 655 - 55 18% — 14 o 14 25%,
Other types of investments
Global hedged eguity® — — 33 33 1% - — — - -
Absolute retun™ — — 26 26 8% o - e e e
Frivate capital™ e - 13 13 4%, — — - — -
Total assets at fair value Fi09 2103 77 $309 100% &1 356 G letd 100%
% of fair value hierarchy 42% 33% 25% 100% 2% Q8% e 100%

¢ inckugies S8 mikon of medicat benefit (healih and welfare) cormponent o 4510 accounts to fung & portion of the postretiement cldigation
i i S 5

s

Inghicies Linds at invest pamarlly in U8, common siocks

Irckides fdunds that Invest prmarlly inforeign equity and equity-related securities

* Incides unds that invests primarily in cormmon stocks of em
s funds hat inves: pamaily Ininvestment grade debi &
nershins, menaged acceunis, and otrer investment eriities issled by non-traditional frms or *hacge funaz”

ds ihat invest primiadly in investment vehicles and commodity pooks 28 & "fund of funds”

Inckides funds that invest in private eouity 2nd small buycd funos. pannership vestroents, direct vestimens, secordary irvestments, directly £ indirectly in real estate and may vest in eguity securfies
of real estate related companies, real estale mortgags ioans, and real-eslate mazzanine loans

erging markels

ek ke ncome Securites

2 =

The following is a reconciliation of assets in level 3 of the fair value hierarchy.

Retirement Plans

Internatonst Glopal nedged Alnsolute

Iy rrilions Toat ety Uity rafure Frivaie capital
Beginning balance at December 31, 2008 %85 $3 $27 $23 &12
Actuzl return on plan assets:

Relating to assels stit held at the reporting date 10 2 5] 3 ;
Felating to assets soid during the period:

Purchagses, sales and setilements {nel) 2 - - e 2

Transfers in and/or out of Level 3 - - - - -
Ending balance at December 31, 2008 77 55 $33 $26 $13




AGL Resources inc. 2008 Annual Report

Notes to Consclidated Financial Statementis

Emplovee Savings Plan Benefits
We sponsor the Retirerment Savings Plus Plan (RSF), a defined candribution beneft plan that allows eligible participants to make contributions
t

to their accounts up to gpecified imits, Under the REF we made matching contributions to particinant accounts of $7 million n 2008 and
&8 million in poth 2008 and 2007,

Note 4 Stock-based and Other Incentive Compensation Plans and Agreements

General

We currently sponsor the following stock-based and other incentive compensation plans and agreements:

Enares issuabis
or BARs
wiialkie for
tX Details
2007 Omnibus Performancs 514,087 4,147 782 Grants of incentive and nongualifed stock
incentive Plan options, stock appreciation rights (SARs), shares of

resiricted stock, restricted stock uniis and
performance cash awards 10 key employees.

Long-Term incentive Plan (1699 2,039,248 o Grants of incentive and nonqualified stock options,
shares of restricted stock and performance units to
kay employees.

Cfficer ncentive Plan 60,731 211,408 Grants of nonqualfied stock options and shares of
restricted stock to new-hire officers,

2008 Non-Empilovee Directors 108 152,740 Grants of stock to non-employee directors in

Eouity Compensation Plan applicable connection with non-emplovee direcior
compensation {for annual retainer, chair retainer
znd for initial election or appointment).

1996 Nan-Employee Directors 40,213 14,304 Grants of nongualified stock options and slock o

Eouity Compensation Flan non-emplioyee directors in connection with non-
employee director compensation {for annual
retainer and for initial election or appointrment}.
The plan was amended in 2002 1o eliminate the
granting of stock options.

Employee Stock Purchase Hlan not 258,065 Nonguslified, broad-based employes stock
applicable purchase plan for sligible employees

g of December 31, 2008

¥ Foliowing shareholder approval of the Oronibus Periormance Incentive Plan in 2008, no further grants wif be made except for reload options hal may De granted under e plan's cuisianding oplons.



Accounting Treatment and Compensation Expense

Effective Jaruary 1, 2006, we adopted authoritative guidance related
to stock compensstion, using the modified prospective application
transition method, Prior 1o January 1, 2006, we accounted for our
share-based payment fransactions in accordance with guidance
previousty amended. This aliowed us 1o account for our slock-based
compensation piang under the intringic vatue method.

The autharitative guidance related to stock compensation
reguires us to measure and recognize stock-based compensation
expense in our financial statements based on the estimated fair
value gt the date of grant for our stock-based awards, which include:

¢ stock options

* stock awards, and

o periormance units fresiricted stock units and performance cash
urdts)

Ferformance-based stcck awards and performance uniis
contain market conditions. Stock options, restricted stock awards
and performance unlts also cortain a service conditon. In
accordance with this guidance, we recognize compensation
axpense over the requisite service period for:

* awards grantec on or after January 1, 2006 and
» unvested awards previously granted and outstanding as of
January 1, 2006

in addition, we estimate fordeitures over the requisite service
perod when recognizing compensation expense. These estimates
are adjusted to the extent that actual forfeitures differ, or are expected
to materially differ, from such estimates.

The following table provides additional information on
compensation costs and income tax berefits related 1o our stock-
bhased compensation awards. We recorded these amounts in our
consclidated  statemerss of income for the years ended
Cecember 31, 2009, 2008 and 2007.

I pnifliors 2009 2008 2007
Cormpensation cosis $11 210 &8
income tax benefils 2 1 3

AGL Resources inc. 2000 Annuat Report

The authoritative guidance requires excess tax benefits 1o be
reported as a financing cash inflow. In 2007, our cash flows from
financing activities included an immaterial amount for recognized
compensation costs in excess of the benefits of tax deductions. In
2009 and 2008, we included 82 millon of such benehis in cash
flow provided by operating activities.

incentive and Nonqualified Stock Options

We grant incentive and nongualified stock cptions with a strike price
squal to the fair market valug on the date of the grant. “Fair market
value™ is defined under the terms of the apolicable plans as the most
recent closing price per share of AGL Resources common stock as
reported in The Wall Street Journal, Stock options generally have a
three-year vesting period, Nongualified cptions generally expire
10 years after the date of grant. Farticipants realize value from option
grantz crly to the exient that the fair market value of cur common
stock on the date of exercise of the option exceeds the fair market
value of the common stock on the date of the grant, Compensation
expense associated with stock options is generally recorded over
the option vesting period;, howsver, for unvested opticns that are
gramted (o employees who are retirement-eligible, the remaining
compensation expense is recorded in the current period rather than
over the ramaining vesting period.

As of December 31, 2009, we had an immateral amount of
unrecognized compensation costs related to stock options. Cash
recelved from stock option exercises for 2009 was 82 miion, and
the incorme tax benefit from stock option exerciges was less than
$1 milion. The following tables summarize activity related to stock
options for key employees and non-employee direciors,
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Nurmbe WRIGNTES Averag Weighted average

Siock Options of oplinng ERSTUSE [QHOS i
Qutstanding — December 31, 2008 2,325,488 $30.8
Granted 735,198 39,11
Exercised (361,385) 27.78
Forfeited” (181,709) 36.75
Outstanding - December 31, 2007 2517 498 $33.28
Granied 258,017 38.70
Exercised {212,600 23.53
Forfeited™ (86,026) 38.01
OQutstanding ~ December 31, 2008 2,475,080 $34.52
Granted 250,440 31.09
Exercised {119,126} 27.20
Forfeited" (55,735) 36.50 -
Outstanding ~ December 31, 2009 2,561,568 $34.48 6.0 $7
Exercisable ~ December 31, 2009 1,767,248 $33.94 5.3 $6
fiecludes 13,716 shares wiveh expirad in 2005, 4,228 In 2008 ane note in 2007,

Mumbgr of Weaghted sverage WeRied average rermnaming Weighted average
Unvested Stock Options urvested ophong BRETTEG R wisling period fir yeers fair valle
Cutsianding - December 31, 2008 1,028,481 $37.80 1 $4.33
Granted 250,440 31.09 241 1.24
Forfeited {20,286} 36.97 1.7 2.95
Vested {474,315) 37.80 — 4.48
Cutstanding - December 31, 2009 784,320 $35.68 1.2 $3.29

information about outstanding and exercisable options as of December 31, 2009, s as follows.

Options Exerciaatie

Mumber it VErEQR rermaiing Wesnhted averags Hurrder Weighied average
Range of txergise Prices of GoEoNS contraciust Be fin years) exercise price of Sfston: ExerCise price
£20.69 to $24.43 164,576 2.0 $21.79 164,576 $21.79
824,50 to $28.30 162,375 3.6 28.80 162,375 26.80
$28.31 to 83211 268,519 8.6 30.89 24299 2883
$32.12t0 $35.92 1,074,085 5.5 34.87 574,035 34.65
$35.83 to $38.73 842,067 7.0 38.76 £13,234 38.71
530,74 to 343.54 38,806 6.6 41.45 28,729 41.44
Ouistanding - Dec, 31, 2009 2,551,568 6.0 $34.48 1,767,248 $33.94




Summarized below are outstanding options that are fully
exercisable,

Exqroinatie an Mumper of oplions

Decamber 31, 2007 1,102,536
December 31, 2008 1,447 508
December 31, 2009 1,767,248 $33.84

In accordance with the farr value method of determining
compensation expense, we use the Black-Scholes pricing model,
Seiow are the ranges for per share value and information about the
underlying assumptions used in developing the grart date value for
each of the grarts made during 200¢, 2008 and 2007.

200% 2008 2007
Expected Iife (vears) 7 7 7
Risk-free intarest rate %" 2.30 293331 3.87-0.05
Expected volatiity % 12.9 12.8-13.0 13.2-14.3
Drvdend vield %5 5.5 43484 3847
Falr value of

$1.24 3019-32.69 $3.55-35.08

options granted”

i ety — 7 yesrs,

ig actad ife of e options; weghiet average volatiky for
L 2008 was 1 and 2007 was 14.2%.
verage divioend vield for 2000 was 55%, 2008 was 4.2% and 2007 was 4.2%.
arresents e shangs valug,

Intrinsic value for options is defined as the diference between
the current market value and the grant price. Total Intrinsic value of
options  exercised during 2009 was 1 million. Wih the
implermentation of our share repurchase program in 2006, we use
shares purchased under this program io satisty share-based
exercises fo the extent thal repurchased shares are available.
Otherwise, we issuia new shares from our authorized common stock.

Performance Units

In general, a performance urit is an award of the right to receive
{iy an equal number of shares of our common stock, which we refer
to ag a restricted stock unit or () cash, subject (o the achievement
of certain pre-established performance criteria, which we referto as
a performance cash unit. Performance units are sublect to certain
trangfer restrictions and forfertture upon termination of employment.
The gollar value of restricted stock unit awards is equal to the grant
date fair value of the awerds, over the reguisiie service period,
determined pursuant 1o the authoritative guidance related to stock
compensation. The dotlar value of periormance cash unit awards is
sgual to the grant date falr value of the awards measured against
progress towsards the performance measure, over the recuisiie
service period, determined pursuant to the authoriiative guidance
related to stock compensation. No other assumptions are used o
value these awards.

AGL Resources ing. 2002 Annual Report

Resiricted Stock Units In general, a restricted stock unit is an
award that represenis the opoortunity to receive a specified number
of shares of our common stock, subject to the achievement of
cerain pre-established performance criteria, in 2008, we granted
1o a select group a total of 211,280 restricted stock units {the 200G
restricted stock unita), of which 204,580 of these units were
outstanding as of December 31, 2008, These restricted stock units
had a performance measurement period that ended December 31,
2008, which were achieved, and a performance measure related to
a basic earnings per common share atiributable to AGL Rescurces
Ine, common sharehoiders goat that was met.

Performance Cash Awards in general, aperiornance cash award
represents the cpporiunity 1o recelve cash, subject 1o the achieve-
ment of certain pre-established performance criteria. In 2009, we
granted performance cash awards 10 a select group of officers. These
awards have a performance measure that i related to annual
growth in basic sarnings per commen share attrbutable to
AGL Resaurces Inc. common sharehoiders and the average dividend
yield, Accruals in connection with these grants are as follows:

Aeasurernert Actrued at
peried end Dec, 31
I rrfficons date AGOS
Year of grant
2007 Dec. 31, 2009 $1 §2
2008 Dec. 31, 2010 i 3
2009 Dec. 31, 2011 1 4

" Agguated o reflect the effiect of economic value created during the performance measurement
peod by our wholessle serdoes segment.

Stock and Restricted Stock Awards

We refer to restricted stock as an award of our common stock that
is subject to time-based vesling or achievement of performance
measures. Restricted stock awards are subject to certain transfer
restrictions and forfeiture upon termination of employment. The
dollar value of both stock awards and restricted stock awards are
equal to the grant date fair value of the awards, over the requisite
sarvice period, determined pursuant 10 the authoritative guidance
related to stock compensation. No other assumptions are used to
value the awards.

Stock Awards - Non-Employee Directors Non-employee
director compensation may be paid in shares of our commeon stock
in connection with initlal election, the annual retairer, and chair
retainers, as applicable. Stock awards for non-employee directors
are 100% vested and nonforfeitable as of the date of grant, The
following table summarizes activity during 2008, related to stock
awsrds for our non-empioyee directors.
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Shates of Wesghter averag
resircied SnoK fair vakue
Issued 19.693 $29.43
Forfefied e -
Vested 16,683 §29.43

Qutstanding — -

Restricted Stock Awards — Employees The {ollowing table
summarizes the restricied stock awards acthvty for our employess
during the last three years.

\weighied average Weighied
Shares of ermaning vesing EVETage
restticted stogk

N years) fair value

Ouistanding -

Decernper 31, 2007" 349,036 $£38.15
tssuerd 286,024 3563
Forfeited {6,483 3843
Vasted (70,199 36.75
Outstanding —

Decernber 31, 2008" 300,378 1.3 $38.20
Issued 181,300 2.0 31.09
Forfeited {15,616} 1.4 36.03
Vested {134,817) — 39.17
Outstanding -~

Becember 31, 2009™ 341,245 1.0 $33.93

) Sutect to restriction,
# Inctuges 103,611 restricted shares with nonforfeitable dividend rights.

Employee Stock Purchase Plan (ESPP)

Under the ESPE employees may purchase shares of our commaon
stock in quarterly intervals at 88% of fair market value. Employee
contriputions under the ESPP may not excesd $25.000 per
emploves during any calendar year.

2009 2008 2007
Shares purchased on
the coen market 63,847 66.247 52,299
Muverage per-share
purchase price $ 345 § 3322 $ 3468
Purchase price discount  $288,968  $326,615 $313,584

Note 5 Variable Interest Entity

Noncontrolling Interests

Az of December 31, 2009, we owned a noncontroling 70% financial
interest in SouthStar. a joird venture with Piedmont who owns the
remaining 30%. ScuthStar markets natural gas and related senvices
under the trade name Georgia Natural Gas 1o retall customers
primarly in Georgia as well as to commercial and industrial
customers, principally In Florida, Ohio, Tennessee, Norh Caroling,

;
a0

South Caroling an Alabama. Our 70% interest is noncontroling
because ait signficant management decisions reguire approval by
both owners. Although cur ownership interest in the SouthStar
partrership is 70%, under an emended and restated joint venture
agreement executed in March 2004, SouthSiar's earnings are
currently allocated 76% to us end 25% o Pledmont except for
eamings related 10 custorners in Ohio and Florida, which are
currently allocated 70% to us and 30% to Flecdmont.

n July 2008, we sntered into an amended jcint veniure
agresrment with Piedmont pursuant o which we purchased an
additional 15% cownership interest for $58 milion, effective
January 1, 2010, thus increasing our interest 1o 85%. Fledrmont will
ratain the remaning 15% share. Eaminas are now allocated entirely
in accordance with the ownership interests. As part of the
agreement, our interest will remain a noncontroling interest and we
will have no further option rights to Pledmont's remaining 15%
ownership interest. The agreement was approved by the Georgia
Commissicn in October 2008,

We are the primary beneficiary of SouthStar’s activities and
have determined that SouthStar is a VIE as defined by the
authoritative guidance related to consolidations, which requires us
to consolidate the VIE. We determined that ScuthStar was a ViE
becavse our agual voting rghts with Piadrmont are not proportional
o our economic obligetion 10 absorh 756% of any losses or residual
returns from SouthStar, except those losses and returns related to
customers in Ohio and Florida. In addition, SoutnStar obtains
substantialy all its transportation capacity for defivery of natural gas
thraough our whelly-cwned subsidiary, Alanta Gas Light.

The naiure of resirictions on ScouthStar's asseis are
immaterial. The primary risks associated with SouthStar include
weather, government reguiation, competition, market risk, naturai
gas prices, economic conditions, inflation and bad debt, See
Note 9 for statements of iInceme, statements of financial position
and capital expenditure information related to the retail energy
cperations segment.

On January 1, 2008, we adopted additional authoritative
gulgance relating to consolidations, and applisd the presentation
and disclosure requirernents refrospectively for afl pericds presented,
The additional guidance required that the noncontroling inferest be
raported as a separate cormponent of aguity on our consolidated
statements of financial position,

Additionally, prior to adoption of the guidance, we recorded our
sarnings alfocated to Piedmont as a component of earnings before
income taxes in our consolidated statements of income. The
additonal guidance requires that any net income attributable to the
noncontrolling interest be presented separately in our consclidated
staterments of income. As a resuft, net income from noncontrelling
irterest is reported after net income in order 10 report net income
attributeble to the parent and the noncontroling interest, The
adoption of this guidance had no effect on our calodation of basic
or diluted earnings per comimon share amounts, which will continue
to be based upon amounts attributable to AGL Resources Inc.
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Note 6 Debt

Cur issuance of vanous securities, including leng-term and short-term debt, is subject 10 customary approval, authorization or review by state
and fedsral regulatory bodies, including state public service commissions, the SEC and the FERC as granted by 1he Energy Folicy Act of 2008.
The following table shows our long-term cebt included in cur consclidated statements of financial position. We estimate the fair value using a
discounted cash flow technique that incorporates a market interest yield curve with adiustments for duration, optionality and risk profie. In
determining the market interest yvield curve, we considersd our currently assigned ratings for unsecurad debt of BBB+ by S&F Baat by Moody's

and A~ by Fich.

Crstanding as of

Weighied average Decembar 31,
tn millions Year(st dug interest rofel interect rale 2009 2008
Short-term debt
Cormercial paper 2050 0.4% 0.7% $ 601 3273
Capital leases 2010 4.9 4.9 1 1
Credi Facility 2010 - 1.2 e 500
SeuthStar ine of credit 2010 — 1.1 —_ 75
Sequert fnes of credit” 2010 — 1.0 — 17
Total shori-term debt 0.4% 0.8% § 602 $ 866
Long-term debt ‘
Senior notes
Issuec February 2001 2011 T A% 7.1% $ 300 $ 300
Issued July 2003 2013 4.5 5 225 225
Issued Decemer 2004 2015 5. 5.0 200 200
Issued Juns 2006 & Decemnber 2007 2016 6.4 5.4 300 300
issued August 2008 20189 5.3 5.3 300 —
issue September 2004 2034 8.0 £.0 250 250
Total 5.8% 5.8% 1,575 1,275
Gas facility revenue honds
fssued July 1994 2022 0.2 0.2 47 47
tesued July 1994 2074 0.4 0.8 20 20
lssued June 1892 2028 c.2 0.2 39 39
lssued June 1892 2032 .2 0.2 b5 35
issued July 1997 2033 5.3 5.0 38 39
Total 1.2% 1.2% 260 200
Medium-termn notes
lssued June 1992 2012 83-84 §3-84 15 15
tssuad July 1997 2017 7.2 7.2 22 22
issued February 1981 2021 .1 .1 30 30
lssued Apri — May 1992 2022 86-87 86-8.7 48 46
issued November 1996 2026 8.6 6.6 30 30
issued July 1897 2027 7.3 7.3 53 33
Total 7.8% 7.8% 196 1868
Capital leases 2013 4£.9% 4.9% 3 4
Total long-term debt” 55% 2.6% $1.974 £1,675
Total debt 4,3% 4.6% $2,576 $2 541

Hiae of or e the year encsd December 31, 2008,
ESequent's $25 milion ine of crecit espired in Jurne 2008,
Uiwe esfirmate e Tair vatue was §2 056G milion as of December 31, 2008 ankl 81,847 milfion as of December 31, 2008,
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Short-term Debt

Our shari-term debt at December 371, 2008 and 2008 was
composed of borrowings under our commercial paper program;
Credit Faciity; current portions of our capital lease obligations; and
fnes of credit for Sequent and SouthStar

Commercial Paper and Credit Facility Our commercial paper
consists of shori-term, unsecured promissory notes with maturities
ranging from 4 to 27 days. These unsecured promissory notes are
supporied by our $1 bilion Credit Facility which expires In August
2011, We have fne option to reguest an increase in the aggregate
pringinal amount available for porrowing under the $1 oillion Credit
Facitity to $1.25 bilion on not more than three accasions during sach
calendar year. Several of our subsidiaries, including SouthStar
paricipate in our comrercial paper program.

SouthStar Credit Facility SouthStars five-year §75 million
unsecured credit facility expires in Novernber 2011, SouthStar will
use this Ine of credit for working capital and s general carporate
needs. SouthStar had no outstanding borrowings on this line of
credit at December 31, 2008 and 375 million of outstanding
borrowings at December 31, 2008, We do not guarantee or provide
any other form of security for the repayment of this credit {acility.

f.ong-term Debt

Our long-term debt at Decemper 31, 2008 and 2008 matures more
than ane year from the statements of financial position date and
congists of medium-term notes: Series A, Series 1B and Series G,
which we issued under an indenture dated December 1, 1989
senior noles; gas facility revenus bonds: and capital leases. The
trustee with respect to our senior notes fs The Bank of New York
Trust Company, N.A., pursuant to an indenture dated February 20,
2001, We fully and unconditionally guarantee all of our senior notes.
The annual maturities of our long-term debt for the next five years,
excluding capital ieases of $2 milion, are as follows:

Year Amound {in mdlions; % of total
2011 & 30C 16%
2012 15 1
2013 225 11
2015 200 10
After 2016 1,231 63
Total 81,971 100%

Gas Facility Revenue Bonds Pivotal Uitifity is party to @ sedes of
lcan agreements with the New Jersey Economic Development
Authority INJEDA) pursuant o which the NJEDA has issued a series
of gas facility revenue bonds, In 2008, we completed letter of credit
agreements for the honas with 2 cumulative principal amount of

(,\
[

$161 milion. These agreements provided additional credit support
and increased investor demand. As a result, these bonds were
successiully auctioned and fssued as variable rate gas faclity bonds,
The ponds with principal amounts of $55 milion, $47 miflion and
$38 million have nterest rates that raset daly and the bond with a
principal amount of $26 million has an interest rale that rasets
weskly. The letier of oredli agreements are set (o expire in June and
Septermber 2010,

Preferred Securities As of December 31, 2009, we had 10 milion
shares of authorized. unissued Class A junior participating praferred
stock, no par value, and 10 million shares of autharized, unissusd
preferred stock, ne par value,

Capital Leases Ow capital leases consist primarily of a
saleeaseback transaction completed in 2002 by Florida City Gas
relaled to #s gas meters and other eguipment and will be repaic at
approximaiely $1 milion per year untit 2013, Pursuant to the terms
of the lease agresment, Florida City Gas is required to insure the
leased equipment during the lease term. In addition, at the explration
of the lease term, Florida City Gas has the option o purchase the
leased meters from the lessor at their fair market value. The fair
market value of the eguipment wil be determined on the basis of an
arm's-length transaction between an informed and wiling buyer.

Default Events

Cur Credit Facility financial covenants require us to maintain a ratic
of total debt (o total capitalization of no greater than 70%; however,
our geal is 1o maintain this ratic at levels between 50% and 60%,
Cur ratio of total debt to total capitalization calculation contained in
our debt covenant includes standby letters of credit, surety bonds
and the exclusion of other comprehensive income pension
adjustments. Adusting for these items, ocur debi-fo-equity
calculation, as defined by our Credit Facity. was 57% al
December 31. 2008 and 59% at December 31, 2008. These
amounts are within our required and argeted ranges. Our debi-to-
equity caledlation, as calculated from our consolidated statements
of financial position, was 59% at December 31, 2008 and 0% &t
December 371, 2008,

Our debt instruments and other finencial cbligations include
provislons that, it not complied with, could require early payment,
additional collateral support or similar acticns. Cur mest important
default events inciude:

* a2 maximum leverage ratio

* insolvency events and nonpayment of scheduled principal or
Interest paymernts

« accaleration of other financial obiigations

» change of controt provisions
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We have no trigger events in our debt instrurnents that are tied tc changes in our specified cradit ratings or our stack price and have not
entered into any iransaction that requires us to issue eouity based on credit ratings or other trigger events. We are currently in compliance with
aft existing debt provisions and covenants.

Note 7 Commitments and Contingencies

We have incurred varous contractual obligations and financial commitments in the normal course of our operating and financing activities that
are reasonably [kely 10 have a maierial aifect on fiquidity or the availebility of capital resources. These otligations may result from both general
firarcing activities and from commercial arrangements that are directly supported by related revenue-producing activities. The followirg able
itustrales our expected future contractual payments such as debl and lease agresments, and commitment and contingencles as of
December 31, 2008,

2011 2013 208
& & S
Ir millions Teial e nk s thereafial
Recorded contractuat obligations:
Lono-term debt $1.974 5 — 3318 F225 $1.431
Short-term debt 802 B62 e e —
Fipaline replacemant program ¢osts” 210 55 111 44 -
Ervironmental remediation labilities™ 144 25 54 28 27
Total £2,830 682 483 3307 31,458
Unrecorded contractual obligations and commitments:®
Pipeline charges, storags capacity and gas supply® $2,049 $510 $712 $304 $ 473
Interest charges” 1,014 109 176 158 573
Operating leases® 115 28 40 14 33
Agset management agreements™ ar 23 14 - —
Pension contributions ™ 21 21 — - o
Standby letters of credit, performance / surety bords 19 18 1 = —
Total 33,285 $709 $943 $524 $1,079

Hincluges charges recoverable inrough rate rider mecnenisms.,
i accordance with GAAF. these temns are not reflected i o consolidiated slatements of fnancial position.

Dngiuges charges recoverabie through & nefural gas cost recovery meshanism or alrern: supply smount indodes Southiter
forward natural gas prices as of December 31, 2008, and s vatued at 587 milllon. As we oo for oiher subsidianes, we

rowide guaraniees to cerain gas supoiers for SouthStar in suppor: of payment ohligehons.,
a2 G Y i

gas commaodity purchase comm nts of 16 Bef at foating pas prces calculaled

*Floaiing rate debt is based on Ihe inierest rate 28 of Decernber 31, 5008 and the maturity of the underlying debt instrument. As of Decemiser 31 2006, we have 831 ralion of accrued migrest on our
s of fnancial posilion thal will be oad in 2070,
W fave certale operating leas

consaicdaled statement

s with provisions Tor siep renl or escafalion peyents and cerlain lease concessions. We acoount for mes [y recognizing 1he future minimum lease paymenis on &

straigv-lire Dasks over e respeclive miirmum lease s, 0 sceomance with sadhortalse guidence relaled 1o lsases. Bowever, Ihis lease aceounting beatment does sl affect the lulue atnuel orealing
e sh obligeions we hergin,

*Papresent fxed-fes minimurm payiments for Sequent's zeset managemen) agreements.
#2esed on the currert Unding status of the pf

w2510

19, we wnidld be reayired 10 make 3 mmimum cortinution b oo pension nleng of sppicximately 821 mllien in 2010, We may maie agdiional contributions



AGL Resources inc. 2000 Annial Report
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Environmentat Remediation Costs

We are subject to federal, state and local laws and regulations
governing environmental quality and polivtion contral. These laws
and regulations require us fo remove or remedy the effect on the
environmert of the dispesal or release of specified substances at
current and former operating sites, The following table provides
morg information on our former operating sites,

Cost

estmae Anaur G nexd twalve
iy rribiors range Tecories moaitis
Georgla ang Florida $ 64-%113 $ B4 $13
New Jersey 89~ 134 58 11
North Carolina 11—~ 18 11 1
Total T144 - 263 144 $25

We have confirmed 13 former operating sites in Georgia and
Fioricia where Atianta Gas Light owned or operated all or part of
these sites. One new former MGF site has beer recently identified
adjgcent to an existing MGP remediation site. Precise engineering
soft and groundwater clean up estimates are not avalable and
considerable variability exists with this potential new site. As of
Decernber 31, 2008, tre soil and sediment remedialion program
was substantially complete for all Georgia sites. excep for a few
remaining aress of recently discovered impact, although
groundwater cleanup continuas. Investigation is concluded for one
phase of the Orlands, Flerida site; however, the Environmental
Protection Agency has not approved the clean up plans. For
alements of the Georga and Florida sites where we still cannot
provice engineering cost estimates, considerable variabliity remaing
in future cost estimates.

Additionally, we have identlfied 6 former operating sites in New
Jersey where Efizabethtown Gas owned or ooerated all or part of
these sites. Maferial cleanups of these stes have not been
completed nor are precise estimates available for future cleanup
costs and therefore considerable variability remains in future cost
estimates. We have also identified a site in Norih Carclina, which is
subject 10 a remediation order by the North Carclina Deparirment of
Energy and Natural Resources, and there are no cost recovery
mecharisms for the environmental remediation,

Cur ERC lisbifities are customarlly reported estimates of future
remediation costs for these former sites based on probabilistic
models of potential costs and on ary undiscounted basis. As cleanup
options and plans mature and cleéanup contracts ars entered Into,
we are able 10 provide conventional engineering estimates of the
likely costs of remediation at our former sites. These estmates
contain various engineering uncertainties, but we continucusly
atternpt to refine and update these engineering estimates. These
lighifittes do not include other potential expenses, such as
unasseried property damage claims, personal injury or natural
resource damage claims, unbudgeted legal expenses or other costs

for which we may be held fiable but for which we cannot reasonably
estimate an amount.

Cur ERC fiabilities are included as a corresponding regulatory
asset. These unrecovered FRC assets are a combination ¢f accrued
ERC liabilities and unrecovered cash expendiiures for investigation
and cleanup costs, We primarnly recover these costs through rate
riders and expect to collect $11 milion in revenues over the next
12 months which is reflected as a currert asset. We recovered
20 milion in 2008, 323 million in 2008 and $28 milion in 2007 from
our ERC rate riders.

Rental Expense

We incurred rental expense in ihe amounts of $20 milion in 2008,
$£2% milion in 2008 and $21 mifion in 2007,

Litigation

We are involved i litigation arising in the normal course of business.
We believe the ultimate resolution of such Btigation will not have a
material adverse effect on our consolidated financial position, resulls
of cperations or cash flows.

In February 2008, a class action lawsuit was filed in the
Superior Court of Fulton County in the State of Georgila against
GNG alleging that it charged its customers of variable rate plans
prices for natural gas that were in excess of the published price,
failed to give proper notice regarding the availabilty of potentlally
lower price plans and thal it changed is methodology for
computing variable rates. GNG asserts that no violation of law or
Georgia Commission rules has occurred. This lawsuit was
dismissed in September 2008. The plaintiffs appealed the dismissal
of the lawsuit and, In May 2008, the Georgia Court of Appeais
reversed the lower court's order. in June 2008, GNG filed a petition
for reconsiceration with the Georgia Supreme Court. In Qctober
2008 the Georgia Supreme Court agreed to review the Court of
Appeals’ decision, Accordingly, ine Georgia Supreme Court hald
oral arguments in January 2010, and we are awaiting the court’s
decision, If the Court of Appeals' decision ig hot reversed, the
parties will procesd with the litigation at the trial court. _

In March 2008, a second class action suit was filed against
GNG in the State Court of Fulton County in the State of Georgia,
regarding monthly service charges. This lawsuit alleged that GNG
arbifrarily assigned customer service charges rather than basing
aach customer service charge on a specific credit score. GNG
asserled that no violation of law or Georgia Comimission rules
occurred and that this lawsuit was without merdl, Thus, GNG fied
motions to dismisg this class action suit on various grounds. This
lawsuit was dismissed with orejudice in March 2008, In April 2008,
the plaintiffs appesaled the decision but in June 2009, the plaintiffe
withdrew their appeal of the court’s dismissal order in exchange for
GNG withdrawing and dropping all claims for attorney’s fees and
costs in connection with the wial and appeliate proceedings.



Note 8 Income Taxes

We have two categories of income taxes in our consclidated
statements of income: current and deferred. Current income 1ax
expenss consists of federal and state income tax less applicable tax
credits related to the current year. Deferred income 1ax expense
generally is equal to the changes in the deferred Income tax Hability
and regulatory tax habity during the yesr,

Investment and Other Tax Credits

Deferred invesiment fax credile associated with distribution
operations are included as & regulatory kability in our consolidated
statements of financial position {(see Nate 1, "Accounting Folicies
and Methods of Application™. These investment fax cradits are being
amortized over the estimated life of the related properties as crediis
toincome in accordance with regulatory requirerments. In 2007, we
invested in a guaramteed affordable housing tax credit fund, We
reduce income tax expense in our consclidated statements of
income for the investment tax credis and cther tax credits
associated with our nonregulated subsidiaries, including the
affordable housing creaits. Components of income fax expense
shown in the consolidated statements of income are shown in the
following table.

income Tax Expense

Tre relative split between current and deferred laxes is due to a
vartety of factors including true ups of prior year tax returns, and
most impartantly, the timing of ow praperty-related deductions.

In mifans 2009 SO06 2007
Current income taxes
Facaral $ 22 $ 37 %86
State 8 7 12
Deferred income taxes
Federal a5 77 23
State 11 12 7
Amortization of investment tax credits {1} {1} {1}
Total $135 $132  $127
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The reconciliations between the statutory federal income tax
rate, the efiective rate and the related amount of tax for the years
ended December 31, 2008, 2008 and 2007 on our consolidated
statements of income are presented in the foliowing table, Our
adoption of the authortative guidance relating to consclidations (see
Note 5) had no effect on the tolal income tax expense reporied n
our consolidated staternents of income or on our accrued federsl
and slale income taxes, including accumulated deferred income
taxes as reported in our consolidated statements of financial position.

Ir: mifors 2008 2008 208
Computed tax expense at

statutory rate $134 $126  $120
State income tax, net of federal

income tax benefit 16 15 14
Tax gffect of net ncome attributable

to the noncantrolling interest {11} s oy
Amaortization of investment tax credits (1} n i
Affordable housing credits {2} (2} 1}
Flexivte dividend deduction {2} 2 24
Ciher -~ net 1 1 -

Totat income tax expense on
congolicaied statements
of income $135 £132 %127

Accumulated Deferred Income Tax Assets
and Liabilities

We repert some of our assets and labiities differently for financial
accounting purposes than we do for income tax purposes. We
report the tax effects of the differences in those items as deferrad
incorme tax assets or liabilities n our consdolidaled staternerts of
financial position. We measure the assets and liabilities using income
tax rates that are currendly in effect. Because of the regulated nature
of the utilities” business, we recorded a regulatory fax liability in
accordance with authoritative guidance related 1o income taxes,
which we are amortizing over approximately 30 years {see Note 1).
Cur deferred tax assets include 74 million refated to an unfunded
pension and postretirement benefit obligation a decrease of
%11 million from 2008,

i
$
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We have provided a valuation allowance for some of these
iterms that reduce our net deferred tax assets to amounts we beteve
are more Ekely than not 1o be realized in future perlods. With respsct
to our continuing operalions, we have net operating losses in varicus
jursdictions, Componeants that give rise o the net sccumuliated
deferrad income tax liabdity are as follows.

Ae of Cecemnber
I millions 2009 2008

Accumulated deferred income tax liahilities
Froperty — accelerated depraciation and

other property-related tems $760 E636
Mark to market 9 5
Other 2 32
Total accumulated deferred
ncome tax liablities 7N 6872
Accumulated deferred income tax assets
Deferred invesiment fax credits 5 5
Unrfunded pension and postretirement
benefit obligation 74 86
Net operating loss — NU| Corporstion — 2
Other —_ 11
Total accumulated deferred
income tax assets 79 104
Valuation alowances” {3} 35
Total sccumulated deferred
income tax assets, net of
valuation allowance 76 101
Net accumulated deferred
tax liability $695 $571

U*Valuaton alowance is die 10 the net operabing losses on a fomer non-operating sulsiciary
that are not allowes in New Jerssy,

Tax Benefits

The authoritative guidance related to income taxes requires us to
determine whether tax benefits claimed or expected fo be claitned on
our tax return should be recorded in the consolidated financial
statements. Under this guidance, we may recognize the lax benefit
from an uncertain tax position only i it is more fikely than net that the
tax position wifl be sustained on sxamination by the taxing authorities,
hased on the technical merlts of the posaition. The tax benefiis
recognized in the financial staterments from such & postion shoutd
be measurad based on the largest benefi that has a greater than
fitty percent likelfihood of being realized upon ulimate setlernent. This
guidance also provides guidance on derecognition, classification,
interast and penalties on income taxes, accounting in interim periods
and requires increased disclosures. As of December 31, 2008 and
December 31, 2009, we did not have a lability for urvecognized tax
benefits. Based on current information, we do not anticipate that thig
will change materially in 2010.

We recognize accrued interest and pehalties ralated 1o
uncertain lax positions in operating expenses in the conscldated
statemants of income, which is consistent with the recognition of
these #tems in prior raporting periods. As of December 31, 2008,
we did not have g liabifity recorded for payment of interest and
penalties associated with uncertain tax positions.

We fie a UL.S. fzderal consolidated income tax return and
various state incorme tax returns. We are no longer subject to income
fax examinations by the Internal Revenue Service for years before
2008 or any state for years before 2002,

Note 9 Segment Information

We generate nearly all our operating revenues through the sale,
distritution, transportation and storage of natural gas, Our operating
segments comprise revenue-generating componants of our
company ior which we produce separate financial information
internally that we regularly use o make operating decisions and
assess performance, Our determination of reportable segments
considers the strategic operating units under which we manage
sales of various products and services to customers In differing
regulatory environments. We manage our businesses througn four
operating segments - distribution operations, retall energy
operations, wholesale services and energy investments and a
nonoperating corporate segment,

O distribution operations segment is the largest component of
our pusiness and Includes naturgl gas local distribution utiliies in six
states - Forida, Georgia, Maryland, New Jersey, Tennesses and
Virginia, These utllities construct, manage, and maintain intrastate
natural gas pipefines and distribution facilities. Although the opera-
tions of our distribution cperations segment are geographically
dispersed, the operating subsidiaries within the distribution operations
segment are regulated utiites, with rates determined by indlvidual
state regulatory commissions. These natural gas distribution utilities
have similar economic and risk cheracteristics,

We are also involved in several related and complementary
husingsses. Our retadl snergy operations segment includes retall
natural gas marketing to end-use custorners primarlly in Georgla. Qur
wholesale services segment includes natural gas asset management
and related fogistics activities for each of our utilities as well ag for
nonaffiiated companies, natural gas storage arbitrage and related
activities, Our energy investments segment includes a number of
aggregated businesses that are related and complementary fo our
primary business, The most significant is the development and
operation of high-deliverability natural gas storage assets. Qur
corporale  segment includes  Intercompany  eliminations  and
aggregated subsidiaries that are not significart enough on a stand-
alone basis to warrant treatment as an operating segment, and that
do not fit into one of our four operating segments.



We evaluate segment performance based primarily on the non-
GAAP measure of EBIT, which includes the effects of corporate
expense allocations. ERIT i a non-GAARP measure that nclides
operating income and other iIncome and expenses. Hems we do not
inchude in EBIT are financing costs, including interest and debt
expense and income taxes, each of which we evaluale on a
consolidated level. We believe EBI is a useful measurement of our
performance because it provides information that can be used o
evaluate the sffectivensss of our businesses from an opsrational
perspective, exclusive of the costs to finance those activities and
exclusive of income taxes, nelthar of which is directly relevant 1o the
efficiency of those operations.

You sheudd not consider EBIT an alternative te, or a more
meaningtul indicator of, owr operaling performance than operating
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income or ngt ncome as determined in aocordance with GAAR In
addition, cur EBIT may net be comparable to a simifarly tiled
measure of another company. The recondiations of EBIT o
operating income, earmings befors income taxes and net income for
2009, 2008 and 2007 are presented balow,

I midhons 2008 pasiesd 2007
Operating income $476 478 8489
Other income 9 8] 4
=BT 485 484 493
interast expense 101 115 125
Farnings before income 1axes 384 369 368
fncome taxes 135 132 127
Nat income $249 $237 8241

Summarized income statement, statements of financial position and capital expenditure information by segment as of and for the vears
ended December 31, 2009, 2008 and 2007 is shown in the following tables,

Corgorate and

Diesrinrion Betall energy Whinkesals fnergy FERITOMnAny Loneokidated
in rrifions cperations CDErEHONS SETVICRS BSOS afirrinations AT, Sesnurres
2009
Operating revencues from external parties $1,344 801 $ 121 $ 47 $ 4 $2,317
Irdarecompany revenues ™ 138 — e - {138} -

Tetal operating revenues 1,482 81 121 47 {134} 2,317
Operating expenses
Cost of gas 646 620 10 1 (135; 1,142
Operation and maintenance 351 71 59 25 {9) 497
Depreciation and amortization 134 4 3 6 11 158
Taxes other than income taxes 34 1 2 2 5 44
Total operating expenses 1,165 696 74 34 (128} 1,841
Operating income foss) 317 105 47 13 {86} 476
Other income lexpense) 9 — - {1} 1 8
FBIT 5 326 $105 $ 47 $ 12 $ (5 $ 485
ldertifiable and total assets §5,230 $261 %$1,168 $454 $ {39) $7,074
Goodwil S 404 $ ~ $§ - S 14 5 — $ 418
Capital expenditures $ 354 $ 2 5 1 110 $ 9 5 475

&
-
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Rl enerty

In mmiligors DR ANIONG AGL Resources
2008
Operating revenues from external parties 81,581 287 8170 $ &5 g 7 $2.800
Intercompany revenies” 187 — - (187} -
Tolal operating revenues 1,768 987 170 &5 {1804 2,800
Operaling sxgenses
Cost of gas 850 838 43 5 187} 1,654
Operztion and maintenance 330 67 58 24 {#) 472
Depreciation and armortization 128 4 5 g G 152
Taxes other than income taxes 35 2 2 i 4 44
Total operating expenses 1,443 a11 118 38 {178} 2,322
Operating income foss) 325 78 60 19 2} 478
Other income 4 1 — - 1 B
FRBIT % 329 $ 77 60 19 T 3 484
identifiable and total assets £5,138 $315 3070 $363 3 (86} %6,710
Goodwil § 404 $ ~ § - 3 14 $ - $ 418
Capital expenditures 3 278 $ 8 g 1 3 75 $ 12 5 g72
Cormporaie and
Uiztritsurion Hezit energy Energy HETLOMEETy Corsoidated
I smiions CReTalions operabong stments climinalions AL Resources
2007
Operating revenues from external parties §1.477 862 % 83 g 42 $ - $2,494
intercompany revenues” 188 - - - {(188) -
Total operating revenues 1,665 /G2 83 42 {188) 2,494
Operating expenses
Cost of gas 845 704 6 2 [188) 1,369
Cperation and maintenance 330 68 38 19 (5} 451
Depraciation and amortization 122 5 4 5 8 144
Taxes other than income taxes 33 1 1 1 5 41
Total operating expenses 1,320 779 49 27 {180} 2,005
Operating incorme loss) 335 113 34 15 (8} 489
Other income 3 - — - 1 4
EBIT $ 438 $113 $ 34 % 15 g N % 493
identifiable and total assets $4,847 o8z $890 g2av T {48) $6,258
Goodwill T 408 & - $ — & 14 g -~ $ 420
Capital expendifures & 201 s 2 3 2 3 o8 g 28 $ 259

wies — Wholase

in 2008 and $638

THNSICOAnY fe
P00C, 3087 mif

its energy markeding and rsk manapement revenues on g et Bags and ke otal operating revenues nclude mercompany feventes of 5425 milion in



AGL Resourges Inc. 2008 Annual Report

Note 16 Quarterly Financial Data {(Unaudited

Cur quarterly financial data for 2009, 2008 and 2007 are summarized below. The variance in our quarterly earnings is the result of the seasonal
nature of our primary business.

Ir milllions, excent par Shars amownis March 31 June 30 Sept 30 [es. 31
2008 .
Operating revenuss $ o085 $ 377 $ 307 $ 638
Operating ncome 230 55 43 148
Net income attributable to AGL Resources Inc. 119 20 12 71
Basic earnings per common share attributable to

AGL Rescurces Inc. cormmaen shareholders 1.55 0.26 0.16 0.92
Diuted earnings per comimon share attributable to

AGL Resolrces Inc. common shareholders 1.55 0.26 0.16 0.92
2008
Operating revenues $1.012 % 444 3838 § 805
Operating income 188 B 128 158
Net income foss) attributable 1o AGL Resources Inc. 88 {113 B85 74
Basic earnings {oss) per common share attributable to

AGL Resources Inc. common sharsholders 1.17 0.15) 0.85 .97
Diluted earnings {loss) per share attributable 10

AGL Resources inc. common sharehclders 1.18 {0.15) 0.85 0.07
2007
Operating revenues $ o973 $ 467 $ 369 % 885
Cperating income 218 78 55 140
Net income attributable to AGL Resources nc. 102 30 13 66
Basic earnings per commaon share attributable to

AGE Resources inc., commaon shareholders 1,319 0.40 0.17 0.86
Diuted earnings per common share attribuiable to

AGL Resources Inc. common shareholders 1.30 .40 o7 0.88

Cur basic and diluted sarnings per commaon share are calculated based on the weighied daily average number of commoen shares and
common share equivalents outstanding during the guarier. Those totals differ from the basic and diivted sarnings per common share atirbutable
to AGL Resowrces Inc. comman shareholders shown in the consclidated statements of income, which are based on the weighted average
numbper of common shares and common share equivalents cutstanding during the entire year.
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item 8. Changes In and Disagreements
with Accountants on Accounting and
Financial Disclosure

None
item SA. Controis and Procedures

Conclusions Regarding the Effectiveness
of Disclosure Controls and Procedures

Undier the supervision and with the participation of our management,
including our principal executive officer and principal financial officer,
we conducted an evaluation of our disclosure controls and
procedures, as such ferm is defined under Rule 13a-15(g)
promuigated under the Securities Exchange Act of 1834, as
amended {the Exchange Act). No systern of controlg, no mattsr how
well-designed and operated, can provide absoclute assuwrance that
the objectives of the systemn of controls are met, and ne evalustion
of contrals can provide assurance that the system of controls has
operated efiectively in all cages. Qur disclosure controls and
procedures however are designed to provide reasonable assurance
that the obiectives of disclosure contrals and procedures are met,
Based on this evaluation, cur principal executive officer and our
principat financial officer concluded that ow disclosure controls and
procedures were effective as of December 31, 2008, in providing a
reasonable level of assurance that information we are required o
disclose in reports that we file or submit under the Exchange Act is
recorded, processed, summarized and reporied within the time peri-
ods in SEC rules and forms, including a reasonable tevel of assur
ance that information required to be disclosed by us in such reporis
is accumulated and communicated to our management, including
our principal executive officer and our orincipal financial officer, as
appropriate 1o allow timely decisions regarding required disclosure.

Changes in internal Control over Financial Reporting

There were no changes in our internal control over financial reporting
identified in connection with the above-referenced evaluation by
managerment of the affectiveness of cur internal controt over inancial
reportng  that occurred during the fourth quarter ended
December 31, 2008, that have materially afected, or are reasonably
likely to materially affect, our internal control over financial reporting.

Reports of Management and independent
Registered Public Accounting Firm on Internal
Control Over Financial Reporiing

Management nas assessed, and our independent registered public
accounting firm, PricewaterhouseCoopers LLLF has audited, ouwr
internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2008,
The ungualified reperis of management and Pricewsisrhouse-
Coopers LLP thereon are included inftem 8 of this Annual Report on
Form 10-K and are incorporated by reference herain.

lem 9B. Other information

None



Part il

item 10. Directors, Executive Officers and
Corporate Governance

The information reguired Dy this item with respect 1o directors will be
set forth under the captions “Proposal | - Election of Directorg”, -
“Corporate Governance - Ethics and Compliance Program,” -
‘Commitiees of the Board” and "~ Audit Commitiee” in the Proxy
Staternent for our 2010 Annual Meeting of Shareholders or in a sub-
sequeant amendment to this report. The information required by this
kem with respect {o the executive officers is get forth gt Part |, em 4
of thig report under the caption “Executive Officers of the Registrant,”
The information required by thig tem with respect to Section 16{(g)
heneficial ownership reporting compliance will be set forth under the
caption "Section 16(a) Beneficial Ownership Reporting Compliance”
in the Proxy Statement or subseguent amendment referred o
above. All such information that is provided in the Proxy Statement
is incorporated herain by reference,

item 11. Executive Compensation

The information required by this item will be set forth under the
cagtions “Compensation and Managemeant Developrment Committee
Report," "Compensation and Management Development Commities
intertocks and Insider Participation,” "Director Compensation,”
“‘Compensation  Discussion  and  Analysis” and  "Executive
Compensation™ in the Froxy Statement or subsaquent amendment
referred to in iftem 10 above. All such information that is provided in
the Proxy Statement is incorperated hereln by reference, except for
the infarmation under the caption "Compensation and Management
Davelopment Commiltee Report” which is specifically not so
incorporated herein by reference,
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ltem 12. Security Ownership of Certain
Beneficial Owners and Management and
Reiated Stockholder Matters

Tre information required by this tem will be set forth under the
captiens "Sharg Ownership” and “Executive Compensation —
Equity Compensation Plan Information” In the Proxy Staterment or
subseguent amendment referred to in tlem 10 above. All such
information that is provided in the Proxy Statement is incorporated
hergin by reference.

ltem 13, Certain Relationships and Related
Transactions and Director Independence

The information required by this item will be set forth under the
captions *Corporate Governance -~ Director Independence” and
“~ Policy on Related Persen Transactions” and “Certain Relationships
and Related Transactions” in the Proxy Statement or subseguent
amendment referred to In ltem 106 above. Al such information that is
provided in the Proxy Statement is incorporated herein by reference,

Item 14. Principal Accountant Fees and
Services

The information required by this item will be set forth under the
caption "Proposal 3 - Ratification of the Appointment of
PricewaterhousaCoopers [LLFP as Cur Independent Registered
Public Accounting Firm for 2008" in the Froxy Staternent or sub-
secuent amendment 1o referred to in ltem 10 abeve. All such infor-
mation that is provided in the Proxy Statement is incorporated
herein by reterence.
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ltem 15. Exhibits and Financial Statement
Schedules

(a} Documents Filed as Part of This Report.
{1) Financial Statements Includsd in ltem 8 are the following:

» Raport of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

® Management's Report on Internal Control Over Financial
Reporting

= Consolidated  Statements  of Financial Position as  of
December 31, 2009 and 2008

* Consofidated Statements of income for the years ended
December 31, 2009, 2008, and 2007

= Censolidated  Statements  of Eauity for the years ended
December 31, 2009, 2008 and 2007

= Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income [Loss) for
the years ended Decerber 31, 2009, 2008, and 2007

« Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the vears ended
Decermnber 31, 2009, 2008, and 2007

= Notes to Consolidated Fnancial Statements

{2) Financial Statement Schedules

Financial  Statement Schedule il Valuation and  Quallfying
Accounts — Allowance for Uncollectible Accounts and Income Tax
Valuations for Each of the Three Years in the Period tnded
Decernber 31, 2008.

Schedules oiher than those referred to above are omitted and
are not applicable or not required, or the required information [s
shown in the financial statements or notes thereto.

{3) Exhibits

Where an exhibit is filed by incorporation by reference to a
previously filed registration siatement or report, such registration
statement or report is icentified in parentheses.

3.1.2 Amended and Restated Articles of Incorporation filed
November 2, 20086, with the Secretary of State of the state of
Georgla [Exhibit 3.7, AGL Resources Inc. o 8-K dated Novernber
2, 2005}

3.1.b  Articles of Amendment o the Amended and Restated
Articles of Incorporation fled May 4, 2008, with the Secratary ¢f
State of the state of Georgia. {Exhibit 3.1.b, AGL Resources Inc.
Form 10-0 for the quarter ended June 30, 2008},

3.2 Bylaws, as amended on December 10, 2008 Exhibit 3.2, AGL.
Resources inc, Form 8-K dated December 16, 2008),

107

41a Specimen form of Common Stock certificate {Exhibit 4.1,
AGL Resources Inc. Form 10-Q for the fiscal quarter ended
September 30, 2007},

4.1.b  Specimen AGL Capital Corporation £.00% Senior Notes
due 2034 (Exhibit 4.1, AGL Rescurces Inc. Form 8- dated
September 27, 2004},

4.1.c  Specimen AGL Capital Corporation 4.95% Senior Notas
due 2015 {Exhibit 4.1, AGL Resources inc. Form 8-K dated
December 21, 2004),

41.d  Specimen AGL Caphal Corporation 6.375% Senior Secured
Notes due 2016 {Exhibit 4.1, AGL Resources Inc. Form 8-K dated
December 11, 20071

41.e Specimen AGL Capital Corporation 7.128% Senior Secured
Notes due 2011 {Exnhibit 4.1.1, AGL Resources Inc. Form 10-K for
the fiscal year ended Decernber 31, 20071

4.1.f Specimen AGL Capital Corporation 4.45% Senior Secured
Notes due 2013 {Exhibit 4.7.g, AGL Resources Inc, Form 10-K for
the fiscal vear ended December 31, 20071,

4.1.g Specimen AGL Capital Corporation, 5,25% Senior Notes
due 2019 (Exhibit 4.1, AGL Rescurces inc. Form 8-K dated
August 5, 2009,

4.2.a [Indenturs, dated as of December 1, 1889, between Atlanta
Gas Light Company and Bankers Trust Company, as Trustee
(Exhibit 4{a), Atlanta Gas Light Company registration statement on
Form 8-3, No. 33-32274).

4.2.b  Hrst Supplemental iIndenture dated as of March 16, 1592,
between Atlanta Gas Light Company and NaticnsBank of Georgia.
National Association, as Successor Trustee Exhibit 4(g), Atianta Gas
Light Gompany registration statement on Form 5-3, No. 33-46419),

4.2.¢ Indenture, dated February 20, 2001 among AGL Capiial
Corporation, AGL. Resources Inc, and The Bank of New York, as
Trustee (Exhibit 4.2, AGL Resouwrces Inc. registration statement on
Form 8-3, filed on September 17, 2001, No, 333-69500),

4.2.d Form of Guarantee of AGL Resowcss Inc. dated as of
August 10, 2009 regarding the AGL Capital Corporation 5,28%
Senior Notes due 2019 (Exhibit 4.2, AGL Resources Inc. Form 8-K
dated August 5, 2009),



4.3.2 Form of Guarantee of AGL Rescurces Inc. dated as of
Decerrber 14, 2007 regarding the AGL Capltal Corporation 6.375%
Senior Note aue 2016 (Exhibit 4.2, AGL Besources Inc. Form &-K
dated December 14, 20073

4.3.h Form of Guarantes of AGL Resourgss Inc, dated as of
September 27, 2004 regarding the AGL Capital Corporation
8.00% Senior Note due 2034 {Exhibit 4.7, AGL Resources Inc.
Form 8-K daied September 27, 2004),

4.3.c Form of Guarantee of AGL Resources Inc. dated as of
December 20, 2004 regarding the AGL Capital Corporation 4.95%
Senior Note due 2015 (Exhibit 4.1, AGL Rescurces Inc. Form 8-K
dated December 21, 2004).

4.3.d Form of Guarantee of AGL Rescurces Inc. dated as of
March 31, 2007 regarding the AGL Capfial Corporation
7.128% Senlor Note dus 2011 xhiit 4.3.d, AGL Resources Inc.
Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2007},

4.3.e Form of Guarantee of AGL Resources Inc. deted as of
July 2, 2003 regarding the AGL. Capital Corporation 4.45% Senior
MNote due 2013 [Exhibit 4.3.e, AGL Resources Inc. Form 10-K for the
fiscal year ended Decermber 31, 2007).

10,1 Director and Executive Compensation Contracts, Plans and
Arrangsments

Directior Compensation Contracts, Plans and Arrangements

10.4.a AGL Resources Inc. Amended and Restated 1986
Non-Empiloyee Directors Equity Compensation Plan (Exnibit 10,7,
AGL Resources inc. Form 10-Q for the quarer ended
September 30, 2002).

10,1.b  First Amendment to the AGL Resources Inc, Amended and
Reastated 1986 Non-Employee Directors Equity Compensation Flan
{Exhibit 10.1.0, AGL Resouwrces Inc. Form 10-K for the fiscal vear
ended December 31, 2002),

10.1.c  Second Amendment to the AGL Resources Inc. Amended
and Restated 1996 Non-Emplovee Directors Equity Compensation
Plan (Exhibit 10.1 .k, AGL Rescurces Inc. Form 10-Q for the quarter
ended June 30, 2007).

10.1.d  AGL Rescurces inc. 2006 Non-Employee Directors Equity
Compensation Plan ncorporsted herein by reference to Annex © of
the AGL Hesources inc. Proxy Staterment for the Annual Meeting of
Shargholders held May 3, 2006 fled on March 20, 2006).
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10.1.e  First Amendment io the AGL Resources inc. 2006 Non-
Employee Directors Equity Compensation Plan (Exhibit 10.1.1, AGL
Resources ine, Form 10-Q for the quarter ended June 30, 2007).

10.1.f  Second Amendment 1o the AGL Resources Inc. 2008
Non-Employee Directors Equity Cornpensation Plan, ([Exhibit 10.1.,
AGL Resources Inc. Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended
December 31, 2008},

10.4.g  AGL Resources Inc. 1098 Comman Stock Equivalent Plan
for Non-Emgioyee Directors {Exhibit 10.1.0, AGL Resources Ine.
Form 10-G for the guarter ended Decernber 31, 1887).

10.1.h  First Amendment o the AGL Hesources Inc. 1988
Common Stock Equivalent Flan for Non-Employee Directors
Exhibit 10.8, AGL Resources Inc. Form 10-Q for the quarier ended
March 31, Z000).

10.1.4  Second Amendment o the AGL Resources Inc. 1598
Commorn Stock Equivalent Plan for Non-Employes Directors
{(Exhibit 10,4, AGL Resources Inc. Form 10-Q) for the quatter ended
Septernber 30, 2002).

101 Third Amendment to the AGL Resources Inc. 1988
Common Stock Equivalent Plan for Non-Employee Directors
(Exhibit 10.5, AGL Resources inc. Form 10-Q for the guarfer ended
September 30, 2002}

101k Fourth Amendment to the AGL Fesources ine, 1988
Common Stock Equivalent Plan for Non-Employee Directors
{(Exhibit 10.1.m, AGL Resources Inc. Formn 10-Q for the guarier
ended June 30, 2007).

1010 Fifth Amendment to the AGL Resources Inc. 1588
Common Stock Equivalent Plan for Non-Emplovee Direciors,
{Exhibit 10.1.0, AGL Resources Inc, Form 10-K for the fiscal year
ended Decermber 31, 2008).

10.1.m  Description of Directors’ Compensation (Exhibit 10,1,
AGL Resources Inc. Form 8-K dated December 1, 2004},

10.1.n Form of Sitock Award Agreement for Non-Ernmployves
Direciors (Exhibit 10.1.8), AGL Resources inc, Form 10-K for the
fiscad year ended December 31, 2004).

10.1.0 Form on Nongualfied Stock Option Agreement for
Non-Emplovee Directors {(Exhibit 10.1.ak, AGL Rescurces inc.
Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2004).
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10.4.p Form of Direclor ngemnification Agreement, dated
Aprt 28, 2004, between AGL Resources Inc., on behalf of itself and
the Indemnities named therein (Exnibit 10.3, AGL Resources Inc.
Form 10-Q for the quarter ended June 30, Z004).

Executive Compensation Contracts, Plans
and Arrangements

10.1.aa  AGL Resources Ing, Long-Term incentive Plan [1959), as
amended and restated as of January 1, 2002 (Exhiblt §9.2. AGL.
Resources Inc. Form 10-G for the quarter ended March 31, 2002).

10.1.ab  First zmandment to the AGL Resources Ina. Long-Term
Incentive Plan (1899), as amended and restated (Exhibit 10.1.b,
AGL Resources Inc. Form 1G-K for the fiscal vear ended
December 31, 2004}

i0.1.ac  Second amendment fo the AGL Resources Inc.
Long-Term inceniive Plan [1999), as amended and restated
(Exhibit 10.1.1L AGL Resources Inc. Form 10-C for the quarier ended
June 30, 2007).

10.1.ad  Third amendment to the AGL Resources Inc. Long-Term
Incentive Plan (1899}, as amended and restated, {Exhiblt 10,124,
AGL Resources Inc. Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended
December 31, 2008),

101.ae AGL Resources inc. Officer Incentive Plan (kxhibit 10.2,
AGL Resources inc. Form 10-Q) for the quarter ended June 30,
2001).

10.1.af  First amendment to the AGL Resowrces Inc. Officer
Incentive Plan {Exhibit 10,11, AGL Resources Ine. Form 10-Q for the
quarier ended June 30, 2007).

10.1.ag  Second amendment 1o the AGL Resources inc, Officer
Incentive Plan. {Exhibit 10.7.ag, AGL Resources Inc. Form 10-K for
the fiscal year ended December 31, 2008).

10.1.ah  AGL Resources Inc. 2007 Omnibus Performance
Incentive Plan {Annex A of AGL Resources Ine.’s Schedule 14A, File
No. 001-1417 4, filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission
on March 18, 2007).

10.1.ai  First Amendment to the AGL Resources Ihc. 2007
Omnibug Performance  Incentive  Plan (Exhibit  10.1.a8i0,
AGL Resources inc. Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended
December 31, 2008).

&

10.1.a] Form  of incentive Stock  Option Agreement -
AGL Rescurces ing. 2007 Omnibus Performance incentive Plan
{Exhipit 10.1.b, AGL Rasources inc, Form 106-Q for the quarter
ended June 30, 2007},

10.1.ak  Form of Nongualified Stock Option Agreement ~
AGL Resources Inc. 2007 Omnibus Ferformance incentive Flan
{Extibit 10.1.c, AGL Resources Inc. Form 10-Q for the guarter
ended June 30, 2007).

10.t.al Form of Performance Cash Award  Agreerent -
AGL. Besources inc. 2007 Simnibus Perforrmance Incentive Plar.

10.1.am Form of Restricted Stock Agreement (perormance
hased) - AGL Resources inc. 2007 Omnibus Performance Incentive
Flan {Exhibit 10.1.e, AGL Resources Inc. Form 10-Q for the guartar
ended June 30, 2007).

101.an Form of Restricted Stock Agreement (time based -
AGL Resources Inc. 2007 Omnibus Performance Incentive Flan
{Exhibit 10,11, AGL Resources inc, Form 10-Q for the guarter ended
June 30, 2007).

10t.a0 Form of Resiricted Stock Unit Agreement -
AGL Resources Inc. 2007 Omnibus Performance Incentive Plan,

10.4.ap Form of Stock Appreciation Rights Agreememt —
AGL Resources Inc. 2007 Omnibus Performance incentive Plan
{Extubit 10,7 h, AGL. Resources Inc. Form 10-Q for the guarter
ended June 30, 2007).

10.4.ag  Form of Incentive Stock Option Agreement, Nongualified
Stock Option Agreement and Restricted Siock Agreement for key
employees (Exhibit 10.1, AGL Resources Inc. Form 10-Q for the
quarter ended September 30, 20043,

104.ar  Form of Performance Unit Agreement for key empioyees
(Exhibit 10.1.e, AGL Resowces Inc. Form 10-K for the fiscal vear
ended December 31, 2004).

i01.as  Forme of Nongualiied Stock Option Agreement without
the reload provision (LT and Officer Plan) (Exhibit 10,1,
AGL Resources Inc, Form 8-K dated March 15, 2008).

10.1.at  Form of Nenqualified Stock Option Agreement with the
reload provision (Offtcer Plan) {Exhibit 10.2, AGL Resources Inc.
Form 8-K dated March 15, 2005),



101.au  Form of RHestricted Slock Unit Agreement  and
Performance Cash Unit Agreement for Key employees (Exhibit 101
and 10.2. raspectively, AGL Resources Inc. Form 8-K dated
February 24, 2006).

10.1.av  AGL Resources Inc. Nongualified Savings Plan as
amended and restated as of January 1, 2000, {Exhizit 10.1.av,
AGL Resources Inc. Form 10-K for the fiscal vear ended
December 31, 2008).

1048w AGL Resourcas Inc. Annual Incentive Plan - 2007 {Exhibit
10.1, AGL Rescurces Inc. Form 8-K dated August 6, 2007).

10.1.ax  Description of Supplemental Executive Ratrement Plan
for John W. Somerhalder H, (Exhibit 10.1.ay, AGL. Hesources Inc.
Form 10-K for the fiscal vear ended December 31, 2008).

10.1.ay  AGL Rescurces Inc. bxcess Benefit Plan as amended
and restated as of January 1, 2009, {Exhibit 10.1.az,
AGL Resources Inc. Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended
Cecermber 31, 2008},

10.1.az  Continuity Agreement, dated December 1, 2007, by and
between AGL Rescurces inc., on behalf of itself and AGL Services
Company (its wholly owned subsidiary} and Kevin P Madden
(Exnibit 10.1.¢, AGL Resouwrces Inc. Form 10-K for the fiscal year
ended December 31, 2007),

i0.1.ba  Continuity Agreement, entered into as of Decermber 1,
2009, by and between AGL Resources Inc., on behalf of itself and
AGHL Services Company {its wholly owned subsidiary) and John W,
Somerhaider (Exhibit 10.1.a2 AGL Resources Inc. Form 8-K dated
January 21, 2010}

10.1.bb  Continuity Agreement, entered mnto as of December 1,
2008, by and between AGL Resources Inc., on behalf of itself
and AGL Services Company (its wholly owned subsidiary) and
Andrew W. Evans (Exhibit 10.1.b AGL Resources Inc. Form 8-K
dated January 21, 2010}

10.1.be  Coniinuity Agreement, ertered inte ag of December 1,
2009, by and between AGL Resources Inc., on behalf of itself
and AGL Services Company fits wholly owned subsidiary) and
Henry P. Linginfelier (Exhibit 10.1.c AGL Resources Inc. Form 8-K
dated January 21, 2010).
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10.1.bd  Continuity Agreement, entered irto as of December 1,
2008, by and between AGL Resources Inc.,, on benalf of ilseif and
AL Services Company {its wholly owned subsidiary) and Douglas
N. Schantz {Exhibit 10.7.¢ AGL Resources Inc. Form 8-K datsd
January 21, 2010,

10.1.be  Form of AGL Resouwrces Inc. Exscutive Post Employment
Medical Benefit Plan (Exhibit 10.1.d, AGL Resources Inc.
Form 10-0 for the quarter ended June 30, 2003).

10.1.bf  Description of compensation for each of John W
Somerhalder, Ardraw W, Evang. Kevin P Madden and Douglas N.
Schaniz {incorporated hereln by reterence to the Compensation
Discussion and Anslysis section of the AGL Resources Inc, Proxy
Statement for the Annual Meeting of Shareholders held Aprit 28,

2008 filed on March 18, 2008}

10.1.bg Retirement Enhancement Agreement, dated March 4,
2008, between Kevin P. Madden and AGL Resources Inc. Exhibit
.1, AGL Resources Inc, Form 8-K dated October 31, 2008),

10.2  Guaranty Agreement, effective December 13, 2005, by and
between Atlanta Gas Light Company and AGL Resgources Inc,
(Exhibi 10,2, AGL Resources Inc. Form 10-K for the fiscal year
enced December 31, 2007).

10.3 Form of Commercial Paper Dezler Agreement between
AGL Capital Corporation, as lIssuer, AGL Resources Inc., as
Guarantor, and the Desalers named thersin, dated September 28,
2000 {Exhibit 10.79, AGL Resources Inc. Form 10-K for the fiscal
year ended September 30, 2000).

10.4 Guarantee of AGL Resources Inc., dated October 5, 2000,
of payments on promissory noies issued by AGL Capitgl
Corporation (AGLCC) pursuant 1o the issuing and Paying Agency
Agreement dated September 25, 2000, between AGLCC and The
Bank of New York {Exnibit 10.80, AGL Resources Inc. Form 10-K for
the fiscal year ended September 30, 20003

106 issuing and  Paying  Agency  Agreement,  dated
September 25, 2000, between AGL Capial Corporation and The
Bank of New York (Exhibit 10,81, AGL Resources Inc. Form 10-K for
the fiscal vear ended September 30, 2000),

£ I
105
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10.6.2 Amended and  Hestated Master  Environmental
Management Services Agreement, dated July 25, 2002 by and
betwesn Atlanta Gas Light Corrpany and The RETEC Group, Inc.
{Exhibit 10.2, AGL Resourcss Inc. Form 10-G for the quarter anded
June 30, 20031 Conidential treatment pursuant o 17 CFR
Sections 200.80 () and 240.24-b has heen granted regarding
certain portions of this exhibil, which portions have been fled
separately with the Carmmission),

1G.6.b  Modification o the Amended and Restated Master
Environmental Management Services Agreement, dated February
1, 2008 by and between Atlanta Gas Light Company and The
RETEC Group, inc. Exhibit 10.8.b, AGL Rescurces Inc. Form 10-K
for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2008},

10.6.c  Term Extension to the Amended and Rastated Masier
Environmental Management Servicas Agreement, dated August 3,
2005 by and between Atlanta Gas Light Company and The RETEC
Group, Inc. {Exhibit 10.6.c, AGL Resources Inc. Form 10-K for tha
fiscal year ended December 31, 2008).

10.6.d Modification to the Amended and Restated Master
Emvdronmental Management Services Agreement, dated June 30,
2005 by and between Atlanta Gas Light Company and The RETEC
Group, Inc, (Exhibit 10.6.d, AGL Resouwrces Inc. Form 10-K for the
fiscal year ended December 31, 2008),

10.6.e Sccond Modification fo the Armmended and Reslated Master
Environmental Management Services Agreement, dated February
1, 2006 by and between Allanta Gas tight Company and The
RETEC Group, Inc. {Exhibit 16.6.e, AGL Resources inc. Form 10-K
for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2008).

10.6.f  Third Medification to the Amendad and Rastated Master
Environmenial Management Services Agreement, dated February
1, 2008 by and between Aflanta Gas Light Company and The
RETEC Group, Inc., Exhibit 10.6.1, AGL Resources Inc. Form 10-K
for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2008).

10.6.g Fourth Medification to the amended and Restated Master
Ervironmental Maragement Senvices Agreement dated as of
February 1. 2008 by and between Atlanta Gas Light Company
and the RETEC Group. inc. (Exhibit 10.8, AGL Resources Inc.
Form 10-Q for the ouarter enced March 31, 2000).

10.6.h  Environmeniat Services Agreement, dated July 18, 2009,
by and between Atlenta Gas Light Company and MACTEC
engineering and Consulting, Inc. [Exhibit 10.2, AGL Resources Inc.
Form 10-G for the guarter ended Septermber 30, 2006}

10.7  Credit Agreement dated as of August 31, 2008, by and
among AGL Resources Inc., AGL Capital Corporation, SunTrust
Bank, as administrative agent, Wachovig Bank, National Association,
as syndication agent, JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A., The Bank of
Tokyo-Mitsubishi UFJ, Lid. and Calyon New York Branch, as
co-docurmentation agents, and the several other banks and other
financial institutions named therein ([Exhibit 10, AGL Resources ine.
Form 8-K dated August 31, 2008),

10.8.a ScuthStar Energy Services LLC Amended and Restated
Agreement, dated April 1, 2004 by and between Georgla Natural
Gas Company and Piedmont Energy Compary (Exhibit 10,
AGL Resources inc. Form 10-0 for the guarter ended
March 31, 2004).

10.8,b  Third Amendment tc Amended and Restated timited
Liabiity Company Agreement, dated July 29, 2008, by and between
Georgia Natural Gas Company and Pledmont Energy Company
[Exhilit 10, AGL Resources Inc. Form 10-Q) for the quarter ended
June 30, 20068).

109 Letter of Credit and Security Agreement dated as of
September 4. 2008 by and amang Pivotal Utility Holdings, Inc. as
borrower, AGL Resowrces Inc. as Guarantor, Bank of America, NA,
as Administrative Agent, The Bank of Tokyo-Mitsubishi UFJ, LTD.
as Syndication Agent and Bank of America, N.A, as lssuing Bank
(Exhibit 10,1, AGL Resources Inc. Form 10-Q for the quarter endad
September 30, 2008),

10,10 Credif Agreement as of September 30, 2008 by and among
AGHL Resources inc., AGL Capital Corporation, Wachovia Bank, NLA.,
as Administrative Agent, Wachovia Capital Markets, LLC as sole
lead arranger and sole lead poorrunner. SunTrust Bank, NA,
The Bark of Tokyo-Mitsubishi UFJ, L7D., Calyon New York
Brand and The Royat Bank of Scotland FLC as Co-Docurnentation
Agents {Exhibit 10.1, AGL Resources Inc. Form 8-K dated
September 30, 2008).

12 Statement of Computation of Ratio of Earnings to Fixed
Charges.



14  AGL Resouwrces Inc. Code of Ethics for its Chief Exscuiive
Officer and its Senicr Financial Officers (Exhibit 14, AGL Resources

Inc. Form 10-K for the vear ended Decemper 31, 2004},
21  Subsicianes of AGL Fescurces Ing.

23 Consent of PricewaterhouseCocpers LLP, indepandent regis-
tered public accounting firm.

24  Powers of Attorney (included on signalure page herelo}.

311 Certification of John W, Somerhalder i pursuant to Rule 13a
- 14{g),

31.2 Certification of Andrew W, Evang pursuant to Rule 138 -
TA&.

32,1 Certification of John'W, Somerkalder  pursuant 1o 18 1.5.C,
Section 1350.

32.2 Certification of Andrew W. Evans pursuard to 18 ULS.C.
Section 31350,
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101.3NS  XBRL Ingtance Document,™

101.8CH XBRL Taxonomy BExtension Schema. ™

101.CAL  XBRL Taxonomy Exiension Calculation Linkbase. ™
101.DEF  XBRL Taxenomy Dafinition Linkbase. ™

101.LAB  XBRL Taxonomy Exiension Labels Linkbase."
1H.PRE  XBRL Taxonomy Extension Presentation Linkbase, ™

0 Eurrigied, not fed,

{b) Exhibits fited as part of this report.

See kern 15(H3)

{c} Financial staternent schedules filed as part of this report.

See ltem 15(&)2).
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Signatures

in accordance with Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities bxchange
Act of 1934, the Registrant has duly caused this report 1o be signed
on its behalf by the undersigned: thereunic duly authorized, on
February 4, 2010,

AGL Resources Inc.

-
"
%,

John »/\E? Somerhalder il
Chairmén, President and Chief Executive Officer

Power of Attorney

KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS, that each person whose
signature appears below constitutes and appoints John W,
Somerhalder i, Andrew W. BEvans, Paul R. Shlanta and Bryan £
Seas, and each of them, his or her true and lawiul attorneys-in-fact

Signature, titke Signacure, e

and agenis, with full power of substitution and resubstitution, for
him or her ang i his or her name, olace and stead, In any and all
capaciies, to sign any and &l amendments to this Annual Report on
Form 10-K for the year ended Dacember 31, 2009, and to file the
same, with all exhibits thereto and other documents in connection
therewith, with the Securities and Exchange Commission, granting
unio said attorneys-in-fact and ageris, and each of them, Ull power
and authority 1o do and perform each and every act and thing reg-
uisite or necessary 1o be done, as fully 1o all intents and purpoeses
as he or she might or could do in person, hereby ratifying and con-
firming all that said attorneys-in-fact and agents or any of them, or
their or his substitute or substiutes, may lawiully do or cause 1o be
done by viriue hereof.

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of
1834, this report has been signed below by the following paersons on
behalf of the registrant and in the capachies indicated as of
Fetruary 4, 2010,

Signature. e

% o
FEU i S
i

John Vi Somerhalder |
Chairnan, President and
Chief Executive Officer
{Principal Executive Officer}

"{ ' 4 -~
. Ms e ?’é%j KJX‘%%;‘"
Aridrew W, Evans
Executive Vice Presidant,
Chief Financial Officer and

Treasurer

Sandra N. Bane, Director

5%w%%m~mw-

Thomas D, Bell, Jr., Director

Charles R. Cf!i%p, Director

AL P s

Charles M. McTier, Director

#
B

7

2
Dean R, O'Hare, Director

D. Raymond Riddle, Director

(Frincipal Financiat Officer)

- P
o . Seas

Senior Vice President. Controfler and

Chief Accounting Officer

{Principal Accounting Officen

108

e %
{i&ﬂmf‘%mw

Arthur E. Johnsor, Director

ke o \, Q:F?.
gt B F i ;f}

V\@(A Knox, Jr., Director

Loz —

Dennig M. Love, Director

/%,“4’/52@%

James A, Rubright, Director

; . s i
g LA A A -

Felker W. Ward, Jr., Director

L b

‘ 2

Betting M. Whyte, Director

wéf“? ¢ w%ﬁ

1
Henry C. Wolf, D EB;O!
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Schedule Il

AGL Resources Inc. and Subsidiaries

Valuation and Qualifying Accounts — Aliowance for Uncollectible Accounts and Income Tax Valuation for
Each of the Three Years in the Period Ended December 31, 2008,

I millors FAlowange for uncodoctible aocourts OO 13K vallETon
Balance at December 31, 2006 % 16 &3
Provisions charged 1o Income in 2007 19 -
Accounts written off as uncoliscticle, net in 2007 20 —
Balance at December 31, 2007 14 3
Provisions charged to income in 2008 27 —
Accounts written off as uncollectible, net i 2008 {25} -
Balance at December 31, 2008 16 3
Provisions charged to income in 2009 25 e
Accounts written off as uncoliectible, net in 2009 {27} e

Balance at December 31, 2008 514 $ 3
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Exhibit 31.1 ~ Certification of John W, Somerhalder il
pursuant to Rule 13a - 14(a}

|, John W, Somerhaider |, certify inat: (¢} Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant's disclosure

1. have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-K of AGL Resources
Inc.;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does nat contain any untrue
statement of a matergl fact or omit f¢ state g material fact
necessary (0 make theg statements made, in ight of the dircum-
stances under which such statements were made, not misieading
with respect ¢ the pertod covered by this repoert;

. Based on my knowledges, the financial statements, and other
financial informaeation included in this report, Tairly prezent in all
material respects the financial condition, results of operations
and gash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods
prasented in this report;

4, The registrant’s other certifying officer and | are responsible for
establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures
{as defined in Exchange Act Rules 133-18(e) and 18d-15(g)) and
internal control over financial reporting {as defined in Exchangs
Act Rules 13a-15{f and 16d-15{f)} for the registrant and have:

{a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or
caused such disclosure controls and procedures 10 be
designed under our supervision, o ensure that material
information relating to the registrant, including its consot-
dated subsidiaries, is made known 1o us by others within
those entities, particularly during the pericd in which this
report is being prepared:

{o) Designed such intermal conteol over financial reporting, or
caused such internal control aver financial reporting to be
cesigned under cur supervision, o provide reasonable
assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting
and the preparation of financial statemenis for external
purposes in accordance with generally accepted account-
ing principles;

(€3]

controls and procedures and presented in this report our
conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure con-
trols and procedures, as of the end of the period covered
by this report based on such evaluation; and

(dt Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant's inter-
nal controf over financlal reporting that occourred during the
registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant's fourth
fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has mate-
rigdly affected, oris reasonably likely 1o materially affect, the
registrant’s internal contral over financial reporting; and

The registrant's other certifying officer and | have disclosed,
based on our most recent evaluation of internal contral over
financial reporting, o the registrant’s auditors and the audit
committee of the registrant’s board of directars {or persons
parforring the equivalent functions):

(&) All signdicant deficiencies and materia weaknesses in the
design or operation of internal control over financial report-
ing which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the
registrant's atility to record, process, summarize and report
financial information; and

(o) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves manage-
ment or other emgoloyees who have a significant role in the
registrant’s internal control over financial reporting,

o

T
"

(U7 = A

P

y
John W. Somerhalder |l
Chalrman, President and
Chief Executive Officer

Date: February 4, 2010



Exhibit 31.2 - Certification of Andrew W. Evans

pursuant to Rule 13a - 14(a}
|, Angrew W, Evans, certify that;

11 have reviewed thig annual report on Form 10-K of AGL Resources
nc.,

2. Based onmy knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue
statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact
necessary to make the staternents made, in light of the circun
stances under which such statements were made, not misleading
with respect 1o the perod covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial staterments, and other
financial information included in this report, fairly present in all
material respects the financial condition, results of operations
and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods
presented in this report;

4, The registrant’s other certifying officer and | are responsibile for
establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures
{as defingd In Exchange Act Rules 13a-15{8) and 15¢-15{l} and
internal controt over financial reporting {(as defined in Exchange
Act Rules 132-15{f) and 15d-15{f} for the registrant and have:

{a) Designea such disciosure controls and procedures, of
caused such disclosure controls and procedures 1o be
designed under our supervision, to ensure that maferial
information relating to the registrant, including its consoli-
dated subsidianies, is made known to us by others within
those entities, particularly during the period in which this
report is being prepared;

(ol Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or
caused such internal controf over firancial reporting to be
designed under our supenvsicn, to provide reasonable
assurance regarding the relabllity of financial reporting
and the preparation cf financial statements for external
DUrposas in accordance with generally accepted account-
ing principles;

AGL Resources inc. 2008 Annual Report

(¢} Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant's disclosure
cordrolg and procedures and presented in this report owr
corclusions about the effectivensss of the disclosure con-
rols and proceduras, as of the end of the period coverad
by this report based on such evaluation, and

() Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s inter-
nal control over financlal reporting that occurred during the
registrant's most recent fiscal guarter {the regisirant’s fourth
fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has mate-
riglly affected, or is reasonably xely fo matenally sffect, the
registrant’s internal control over financial reporting; and

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer and | have disclosed,
based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over
financial reporting, 1o the registrant's auditors and the audit com-
mittes ¢f the registrant’s board of directors for persons perform-
ing the eguivalent functions):

{a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the
design or operation of internat control over financial report-
ing which are reasonably fikely to adversely affect the
registrant's ability to record, process, summarfze and
report financial information; and

{0 Ary fraud, whether or not material, that involves manage-
ment or other employees who have a significant role in the
registrant’s internal control over financial reporting.

i
At igd o
~ f’
Andrew W. Evans
Executive Vice President,

Chief Financial Officar
and Treasurer

Date: February 4, 2010
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Executive Officers

John W. Somerhalder Il
Chairman, President and Chief Executive Officer

Raiph Cleveland
Executive Vice Prasident, Engineering and Operations

Andrew W. Evans
Executive Vice President, Chief Financial Officer and Treasurer

Henry P. Linginfelter
Executive Vice President, Ulility Operations

Melanie M. Piatt
Senijor Vice President, Human Resources and Marketing
Communications

Douglas N. Schantz
President, Sequent Energy Management, L.P.

Paul R. Shianta _
Executive Vice President, General Counsel and
Chief Ethics and Compliance Officer

Shareholder Information

Corporate Headguarters
AGL Resources inc., Ten Peachtree Place, NLE., Atlanta, GA 30308;
404-584-4000; website: aglresources.com.

Stock Exchange Listing

Cur common stock is traded on the New York Stock Exchange
under the symbol "AGL”" and quoted In The Wall Street Joumal as
“AGL Res.”

Transfer Agent and Registrar
Wells Fargo serves as our transfer agent and registrar and can help
with a variety of stock-related matters, including name and address
changes; transfer of stock ownership; lost certificates; and
Form 1099s,

Inquiries may be directed to: Wells Fargo Shareowner
Services, PO, Box 84874, St. Paul, MN 55164-0874,; toll-free
800-468-9716; website: wellsfargo.com/shareownerservices,

Available Information

A copy of this Annual Report, as well as our Annual Report on Form
10-K, Quarterly Reports on Form 10-Q, Current Reports on Form
8-¥, other reports that we file with or furnish to the Securities and
Exchange Commission (SEC) and our recent news releases are
available free of charge at our webshe, agiresources.com, as soon
as reasonably practicable, The information contained on our
website shouid not be considered part of this document and is not
incorporated by reference,

Our Annual Report on Form 10-K includes the ceriifications
of our chief executive officer and chief financial officer required by
Sections 302 and 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.
Additionally, we have filed the most recent annual CEO certification
as required by Section 303A.12{(a) of the New York Stock Exchange
Listed Company Manual pursuant to which cur CEQ certified to
the NYSE that he was not aware of any violation by AGL Resources
of the NYSE's corporate governance listing standards,

Our corperate governance guidelines; our code of ethics for
the CEO and senior financial officers; our code of conduct and
ethics: and the charters of our Board committees also are available
on our website,

The ahove information and any exhibit to our 2009
Form 10-K also will be furnished free of charge upon
written reguest to our Investor Relations department at:
Steve Cave, Vice President, Finance, AGL Resources, Ten
Peachiree Place, N.E., Allanta, GA 30308: 404-584-4000:
scave@aglresources.com.

Institutional Investor Inquiries

Instituticnal investors and securities analysts should dirsct
inquiries to; Steve Cave, Vice President, Finance, AGL Resources,
Ten Peachtree Place, N.E., Atlanta, GA 3030%; 404-584-4000;
scave@aglrescurces.com.



Annual Meeting

The 2010 annual meeting of sharehelders will be held Tussday,
April 27, 2010, at AGL Resources’ corporate bheadquarters,
Ten Peachtree Place, N.E., Atlanta, GA 30308.

ResourcesDIRECT™

New investors may make an initial investment, and shareholders
of record may acquire additional shares of our common stock,
through ResourcesDIRECT™ without paying brokerage fees or
service charges. Initial cash investments, guarterly cash dividends
and/or optional cash purchases may be invested through the plan
prospectus and enroliment materials. Contact our transfer agent at
800-488-8718 or visit our website at agiresources,com.

Stock Price and Dividend Information

At January 29, 2010, there were approximatety 8,653 record
haolders of our common stock. Quarterly information concerning
our high, low and closing prices and cash dividends that we paid
in 2009 and 2008 is as follows:

2009

Sales price of commonr stock  Cash dividend per
Cuarier ended High Low Close common shiare
March 31, 2009 $34.93 $24.02 $26.53 $0.43
June 30, 2009 32,38 26.00 31.80 0.43
September 30, 2008 3579 30.05 3527 0.43
December 31, 2000 37.52 3350 3647 0.43
2008

Bates price of common steck  Cash divicend per
Cuarter ended High LOow Close common share
March 31, 2008 $39.13 $33.48 $34.32 $0.42
June 30, 2008 36.50 3346 3458 0.42
September 30, 2008 35644 306C 31.38 0.42
December 31, 2008 3207 2402 3135 0.42

We pay dividends four times a year: March 1, June 1,
September 1 and December 1. We have paid 249 consecutive
guarterly dividends beginning in 1948. Dividends are declared at
the discretion of our Board of Directors, and future dividends wiil
depend on our future earnings, cash flow, financial requirements
and other factors. In February 2010, we increased the quarterly
dividend to $0.44 per common share and in February 2009 # was
increased to $0.43 per common share.
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Comparison of Five-Year Cumulative Total Return*
The performance graph below compares the yearly percentage
change in our total return to shareholders for the last five years
with the total return of the Standard & Poor's 500 Stock index, the
cumuiative total return of two different customized peer company
groups, the new self-determined peer group and the oid self-
determined peer group. The new self-determined peer group
includes CenterPoint Energy inc. and NiSource Inc. and excludes
National Fuel Gas Company, Questar Corp. and South Jersey
industries Inc. because cur Beard of Directors determined that
CenterPoint Energy inc. and NiSource Inc. better fit the profile of
the companies in the peer group, which is composed of a hybrid
group of utifity companies, primarily natural gas distribution
companies, with similar revenues, market capialization and
asset base,

The new self-determined peer group was recommended by a
glokal management consuiting firm and approved by our Board
of Directors. There are 12 companies inciuded in this new self-
determined peer group. Atmos Energy Corp., CenterPoint Energy
inc., Integrys Energy Group inc., New Jersey Resources Corp.,
Nicor Inc., NiSource inc., Northwest Naturat Gas Company, Oneok
inc., Pledmont Natural Gas Company Inc., Southwest Gas Corp.,
UG| Corp. and WGL Holdings Inc. The old self-determined peer
group includes the companies listed above in the new self-
determined peer group with the exception of Nafional Fusel Gas
Company, Questar Corp. and South Jersey Industries Inc. for the
reasons discussed above.

$50 1 . &= AGL Resources Inc. "i"' Old Peer Group - E S
100 invested on December 31, 2004, in stock or intdex, including investrrent of <
dividerds, for years ending Tiecernber 31,7 1 - Sowrce. Research Data Group -

80 T T v .
12/04 12/88 12/08 107 12/08 12/69
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